(qi/a\i’éd&ﬁ%@iﬁf‘&a}ﬂ
HoprsoN DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED

Stock Code B 4 X 5% : 0754







Contents B %

22

40

63

65

69

71

Corporate Profile

RGN

Corporate and Listing Information
EEREHER

Corporate Structure

REIRE

Financial Highlights

PSS

Chairman’s Statement
IE®mE

Chief Executive Officer's Report
TR E RS

Property Profile

S ESL Y

Investment Property Factsheet
REME—BR

Directors’ Profile

B/

Senior Management's Profile
SREEEEN

Financial Review

g tel

81

101

111

113

115

116

118

121

226

Report of the Directors
EEgRE

Corporate Governance Report
PEERRE

Report of the Independent Auditor
MV TRy

Balance Sheets

BEAGBXR

Consolidated Income Statement
reBmK

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement

RAReRER

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

GAMREDE

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

fra I mRA MR
Summary of Financial Information

MBERE



Corporate Profile

PRGN

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED (“Hopson Development”)
was founded in 1992, and its shares have been listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 1998 (Stock code:
0754). Hopson Development is a major property group that specializes
in the development of medium-to high-end large-scale residential
properties. In terms of land bank, it is one of the largest property
developersin the People’s Republic of China.

Since 1995, Hopson Development has started to establish its brand on
a nationwide scale through deploying appropriate corporate strategy
and business model. The principal focus is on three Core Economic
Zones, namely Pearl River Delta, Huanbohai Area and Yangtze River
Delta, with Guangzhou, Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai as the core
cities. In Guangzhou and Beijing, the brands such as “Regal Riviera”,
“Gallopade” and “Fairview" have been established to cover a range of
product designs, customer services and facilities, and to accommodate
different community cultures and different operating models. Each
property project is featured with a unique theme to demonstrate the
strength of our corporate branding. Strong brand recognition at project
level enhances the positioning and marketability of the corporate
branding.

Major investments were made in the first-tier cities such as Guangzhou,
Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai over the past few years.
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Corporate and Listing Information

CORPORATE INFORMATION

Board of Directors
Executive Directors

CHU Mang Yee (Chairman)
XIANG Bin (Deputy Chairman)
ZHAO Hai (Deputy Chairman)
(Appointed on 23rd October 2007)
WU lJiesi (Chief Executive Officer)

(Resigned on 17th January 2008)

(Chief Executive Officer)

(Appointed as Chief Executive Officer
on 17th January 2008)

CHEN Chang Ying

AU Wai Kin
XIAO Yan Xia
XUE Hu (Appointed on 23rd October 2007)
Non-executive Director

SHAFRAN, Steven

Independent Non-executive Directors
YUEN Pak Yiu, Philip

LEE Tsung Hei, David

WONG Shing Kay, Oliver

Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee

YUEN Pak Yiu, Philip
LEE Tsung Hei, David
WONG Shing Kay, Oliver

Qualified Accountant
LEE Bun Ching, Terence

Company Secretary
MOK Wai Kun, Barbara, solicitor

Authorized Representatives
AU Wai Kin
XIAO Yan Xia

Independent Auditor
PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants
22nd Floor

Prince’s Building

Central

Hong Kong
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Corporate and Listing Information

RN ETER

Legal Advisor

Jones Day

29th Floor, Edinburgh Tower

The Landmark, 15 Queen’s Road Central
Hong Kong

Principal Bankers

Agricultural Bank of China

Bank of China

Bank of Communications

Bank of East Asia

China CITIC Bank

China Construction Bank

Industrial and Commercial Bank of China
Industrial and Commercial Bank of China (Asia)
Standard Chartered Bank

Branch Share Registrars In Hong Kong
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
46th Floor, Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

Registered Office
Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM11, Bermuda

Principal Office

Suites 3305-09, 33rd Floor, Jardine House,
1 Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

REPRESENTATIVE OFFICES

16th Floor, South Tower
Zhujiang Investment Building
421 Zhujiang East Road
Zhujiang New City, Guanghzou

Guangzhou

Beijing — Zhujiang Development Centre
23 Dawang Road West
Chaoyang District, Beijing

Shanghai — 18thFloor, Guangdong Development Bank Building

555 Xujiahui Road, Shanghai

Tianjin — No. 14 Dongchengnan Road
Baodi District, Tianjin
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Corporate and Listing Information

SHAREHOLDERS' CALENDAR

Register of Shareholders
Close of Register
11th June 2008 to 16th June 2008 (both days inclusive)

Annual General Meeting
16th June 2008

Dividends (Per Share)
Interim dividend HK9.9 cents
Paid on Wednesday, 28th November 2007

Proposed final dividend HK32 cents
Payable on Monday, 30th June 2008

LISTING INFORMATION

Shares Listing
The Company’s shares are listed on the Main Board of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Stock Code
0754

Guaranteed Senior Notes Listing
The Company’s 8.125% Guaranteed Senior Notes are listed on
The Singapore Exchange Securities Trading Limited

USD Settled Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds

The Company's zero coupon convertible bonds are listed on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
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Corporate Structure
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|
Hotel Operations
S Mk
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Guangdong | Zhongshan

Guangzhou Regal
Riviera Hotel

N BR ST 75 SUE S

Gallopade Park
BREE
Pleasant View Garden
BRERE
Regal Riviera Villa
FRILE
Yunshan Xijing
SRR
Yijing Huayuan
REREES
Huanan New City
ERIHTIE
Hopson Yujing Mid-level
AEMEEIL
Guangzhou Jiahe Com-
mercial City
i UERIEE S
Nanhai Junjing Bay
EEERE
Regal Riviera
BHIHR
Guangzhou Jiufo Machao
Project
EMNNGHEHER
Guangzhou Southern
Yuexiu Plaza
BN EEES
Guangzhou Hopson Inter-
national Tower
EMNEEERKE
Others"”

Hf®

Guangdong Esteem

——— Property Services Limited

ERESNEBBERRAA

Huizhou
=

Zhongshan Torch Project
ML RIEEE
Zhongshan Dongkeng
Project
FILRIER
Zhongshan Rainbow
Project
LIPS =]

Huizhou Regal
Riviera Bay
EMNwERE

Hopson International
New City
AEERRHE
Ziyun Villa
RELG
Huizhou World Island
EMHERS

(1) Others include development projects such as Huajing New City, Regal Court, Fairview
Garden, Fairview South Court and Regal Palace.
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Beijing Plaza
Royale Hotel
ERFREEEE

Beijing Regal Court
ERHTIHR
Beijing Citta Eterna
tRESER
Hopson International Garden
AEERTEE
Beijing Xinjingrun
Project
ERFREER
Beijing Dongfangwenhua
Project
ERERANFEER
Beijing Desheng Building
BB AR
Beijing Wangjing Project
tREFER

Beijing Zhujiang Century
Property Management
Limited
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Corporate Structure
TERE

ShT%hai

Hyatt Regency

|
Hotel Operations
v 3int

Jingjin City
SR S BB I
ge)
()
5=
|
(2] Shanghai Hopson Town
(o)) EBEEH
c é E Hopson Lantern Garden
—— AENER
E gi o Shar?ghai Hopson o
(e ﬁlj g_ International Tower Tianjin Jingjin New
T 5 LEAEEBAE Town
E T L] Shanghai Sheshan KBFUEFHH Dalian Lushun P—— Hangzhou
'E % > % Dongziyuan Ningbo Gaojiaoyuan Tianjin Regal Riviera ~ Hopson Dijing = ElEy :lygar: Technology Digital
0= — @ — EERUREE - District Project - Bay Project - Yuan Project - lcj.ln%/; Er;ﬁje*c Plaza Project
o Shanghai Yangpu Xuchang R EHEEEE ~ REESMER  ABKEAE S AN RERS
E ﬁ >R Road Project Tianjin Getian FRWER HH
o |ZE = LB BFERER Building
(@] g- Shanghai Dongjing Project REHE R KB
E /L\ ) EiRRER
S = = Shanghai YuTai Project
2 " o LEmREE
Shanghai Yizeyuan Project

(&) +SEEHER
c Shanghai Zhongxian Inter-
o national
s 292 Project
o g EE2921E
(®)
I

-

c

Q

£

>

s ¥

L &%

=8

>HE

ot

£

Q

Q.

<

o

Notes:
(1) Others include development projects such as Huajing New City, Regal Court, Fairview
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Financial Highlights

2
2003 2004 2005 2006
“T%= —ZEIMF —ZTLF —EERF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET TAT FET
Revenues WA 2,511,630 3,973,184 6,133,894 6,920,294 11,130,643
Profit before taxation B Fi B A 302,761 816,146 1,812,627 2,461,536 5,177,451
Taxation 1E (101,192) (298,338) (611,446) (837,358) (1,629,245)
Profit for the year EE R A 201,569 517,808 1,201,181 1,624,178 3,548,206
Minority interests DERRER (32,664) (85,023) 16,142 (70,426) (30,894)
Profit attributable to BRR R
sharesholders 168,905 432,785 1,217,323 1,553,752 3,517,312
Earnings per share BRE M
- Basic -ARK HK17 cents 71l HK43 cents 581l HK113 cents 7&fll  HK127 cents 84l IRGLOEINE N
- Diluted —-@ HK17 cents 4L HK43 cents &fll  HK113 cents /1L HK126 cents 1L GTPZEREER:H
Dividends per share SRR HKS cents 1l HK9 cents 381l HK33.95 cents 584l HK37.9 cents i1l IRGLEYERENSL
Net assets value per share G4 EFE HK$3.13 B T HK$3.32 % T HK$4.75 & 1T RICION:T  HK13.64 cents & T

(HK$ million) (HK$ million)
A®ET BEET
12,000,000 4,000,000
9,000,000 3,000,000
6,000,000 2,000,000
3,000,000 1,000,000
ol e el
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
(cents) (HK$)
A BT
40 20
30 15
20 10
10 5
.0 B oa@l
2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

(1) Market overview and operating (=) TIHHE R EERE

environment

(i) Nationwide i) =E

In 2007, PRC macro economy was satisfactory. The annual
GDP is estimated to have grown by 11.4% over the last
year. Resident income rose significantly with resident disposal
income per capita had an effective growth of 13%, after
taking into account of the price factor. The exchange rate of
RMB to USD increased by 6.9% when compared to that at
the beginning of the year. Foreign exchange reserve increased
to US$1.53 trillion, representing a growth of 43.3% over the
last year.

Rapid and stable economic growth, increase in disposal
income per capita and continuing appreciation of RMB are
favorable factors that led to an increase in demand in the
real estate market.

The demand in real estate market, coupled with the relatively
low real estate investment base in prior period, had led
to an investment rebound in real estate industry in 2007.
According to the data of National Statistical Bureau in 2007,
the total completed real estate development investment
nationwide was RMB2.5280 trillion, representing a growth
of 30.2% over the last year and the gross floor area sales
of commodity housing reached 761.93 million square meters
("sg.m."”), representing a growth of 23.2% over the last year.

The robust demand also accelerated the rise of the property
prices. According to the report of the Secretary For Pricing
of NDRC, in 2007, the selling price of the properties in 70
major cities in PRC increased by 7.6% over the last year and
the selling price of new commodity housing increased by 8.2%
over the last year. The property price rose mainly in the first
three quarters of 2007 and certain regions began to see
signs of overheated purchases.

10  Hopson Development Holdings Limited

2007 F 2B REAS EEITR AT - TR 2 9 GDP
BEFLERER1.4%  ERIRABERS
ERAVAZRBBEANKREEEAZRERIERY
13% : ARBEEETIEXRLFY EFH6.9% » Hh
EFEESMES38BET  RAFLRER
43.3% o

EENRRTRIER - AL TXRIRARIRS -
URARE SR EFHASEFIEERRRE TR
HETHHFE -

FHEMSNFER - UEATHEERERER
BIE - 9EF2007FEFMERE RE - R
BIZR et BEEE - 2007 FE 2B K EE
FERERARK25288 B - BEAFLEE
£30.2% - BmFEHERRET61.938H K -
FIEFLHEIER23.2% °

AR TR EREE LR - REBERENR
LERBINTRE  2007F%E > PEETEEE
HTEEHEEERLEF LR7.6% @ FEEM®
EEHEERLEF LRS2% - BEMNKIBE
ZHIRE2007FRI=FE - FIPubEFE B D
RGN ©

Annual Report 2007



Chairman’s Statement
FREHE

(1) Market overview and operating (-) MZHERRERE &)

environment (Continued)

(i) Nationwide (Continued) () =BE#&)

In order to regulate the real estate market so as to
encourage a stable development sentiment, the government
introduced a series of administrative measures to regulate the
real estate industry. These include land appreciation tax policy,
policies on restriction of foreign investments in domestic real
estate market, policies on increasing in capital adequacy ratio
and interest rates, increasing mortgage barrier and interest
rates for second property mortgage, restricting net increase
in lending, increasing the supply of low rental properties
and middle to low pricing commodity properties, and
impeding and regulating property developers in respect of
land accumulation. The purposes of adopting these policies
were to: (1) regulate the behaviors of property developers to
impede their speculative moves in order to increase property
supply within the industry, (2) restrict the speculation/
investment of foreign investments on domestic real estate
industry and (3) suppress the speculative/investment demands
of residents. In particular, the new policy on second property
mortgage, which was implemented in September 2007,
to suppress the investment needs of residents, had been
effective in impeding the accelerated increase of property
price nationwide, leading to a slow down in the fourth
quarter of 2007 with the sales volume and price of the
properties dropped in certain first tier cities. Although
the above policies affect both the sales and cash flow of
developers in the short run, they should be able to regulate
the industry and ensure a healthy and stable development in
the long run.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

(1) Market overview and operating () TiZME REERE (@)

environment (continued)

(i) Guangzhou (i) =

Guangzhou is an important market for the Group, from
which approximately 41% of its revenue in 2007 was
originated. The economy of Guangzhou developed rapidly
in 2007 with annual GDP exceeding RMB700 billion,
representing a growth of 14.5% over the last year.

Guangzhou experienced a spree of properties buying in the
first three quarters of 2007. The sales volume and price of
the properties in Guangzhou surged resulting in the increase
in the cash flow of the developers. The developers perceived
the market with an optimistic outlook and hence, there
was intense competition in Guangzhou land market in the
first three quarters of 2007. Land transaction price achieved
unprecedentedly high and the market was overheated. In
the fourth quarter, with the effect of “Sui Seven Guidelines”
policies, the market began to cool down temporarily, giving
a more reasonable development in land transaction market in
that quarter.

The Guangzhou economy is prospering. According to the
recent government working report by its major, the provincial
GDP in 2007 reached RMB3 trillion, accounted for 1/8
of the GDP of the nation. Going forward, we believe the
development of the economy of Guangzhou will maintain
healthy. Moreover, being the host of Asian Games in 2010,
Guangzhou will enhance its transportation infrastructure
development which will, in turn, facilitate its urbanization
development and in the long run, will support a stable
development of the Guangzhou real estate market.

12 Hopson Development Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHE

(1) Market overview and operating (—) MIZHERRERE (&)

environment (Continued)

(ii) Beijing @iii) b=

Beijing is the second largest market of the Group, from
which approximately 32% of its revenue in 2007 was
originated. Its annual GDP was approximately RMB900
billion, representing a growth of 12.5% over the last year. Its
gross regional product per capita exceeded US$7,000.

As the amount of construction works in the first three
quarters of 2007 fell below expectation, the overall residential
property market dropped by approximately 5% when
compared to that in the last year. However, as the demand
continued to exceed the supply, the annual average price
increased to RMB11,000 per sg.m., representing an increase
of 41.2% over the last year. The property price increased in
the first three quarters and began to decrease stably in the
fourth quarter after as a result of the macroeconomic control
policies.

The land market transactions in Beijing were active in 2007.
Total area of land granted for the year in Beijing was 8.5
million sq.m. The average floor area transaction prices for
core districts and peripheral districts under development
increased by 57% and 78% respectively.

As 2008 Olympics is approaching, we believe the Olympic
games will bring economic benefits to Beijing, sustaining its
growth momentum, which in turn will lead to a continuous
development of local real estate market.
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

(1) Market overview and operating (-) MZHERRERE &)

environment (continued)

(iv) Tianjin (iv) Xi#

Tianjin is a significant region of the State’s Huanbohai
development strategy, from which approximately 6% of the
Group’s revenue in 2007 was originated.

In 2007, the transaction volume of the residential property
market in Tianjin increased to 12.42 million sq.m.,
representing an increase of 18% over the last year. Average
selling price reached RMB6,400 per sg.m., representing an
increase of 26% over the last year.

The land market transactions in Tianjin were active in 2007
with an aggregate actual floor area transactions of 14.83
million sg.m., representing a growth of approximately 100%
over the last year. Quite a number of foreign large-scale
developers participated in land auction activities of Tianjin
land market this year and competition became more intense
resulting in record high transaction prices.

The development of Huanbohai zone, where Tianjin is
situated, is the main focus of development under the
Eleventh Five-Year Plan. Tianjin has been recognized as the
economic center in Northern China. The development of
Binhai New District has already been endorsed as part of the
national strategy. In particular, in view of the comprehensive
linking up of Beijing-Tianjin Intercity Railway by the end of
2007 and its official opening in the first half of 2008, it is
expected that the flow of exchange between the two cities
will increase, thereby facilitating the development of both the
economy and real estate market in Tianjin.

14 Hopson Development Holdings Limited
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Chairman’s Statement
FREHE

(1) Market overview and operating (—) MIZHERRERE (&)

environment (Continued)

(v) Shanghai (v) Lif

In 2007, approximately 8% of the Group's revenue was
originated from Shanghai. The economy of Shanghai is
developing rapidly with its GDP reached RMB1.2 trillion, in
2007 representing a growth of approximately 10% over the
last year, after taking into account of the price factor.

The demand for housing is high and both the sales volume
and price of Shanghai property market went up in 2007. In
the first three quarters of 2007, the transaction volume of
Shanghai residential property market reached 16.75 million
sg.m., which was comparable to the annual transaction
volume in 2006. However, as a result of the macroeconomic
control policies, in particular the mortgage policy on second
housing which was introduced in the fourth quarter, the
property market began to slow down. Price of residential
properties continued to rise and the average transaction
price was RMB11,000 per sg.m., representing an increase of
approximately 27% over the last year.

The land market competition in Shanghai was intense in
2007. Many domestic and foreign developers participated
in land auction activities in Shanghai, which escalated the
increase in the land transaction prices. The Huangpu 163
land site was auctioned at RMB66,927 per sq.m. of floor
area, which was the country’s record high.

Shanghai possesses an excellent investment environment.
According to government statistics, besides Hong Kong,
Shanghai is by far the city attracting most economic projects
invested by the headquarters of foreign enterprises. Its
economy, culture and finance are developing rapidly. The
hosting of the 2010 World Expo in Shanghai will further
enhance Shanghai’s reputation and bring forth fruitful
economic benefits to Shanghai.
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(1) Market overview and operating (-) MZHERRERE &)

environment (continued)

(vi) Others (vi) Efth
In 2007, the Group developed several projects in Huizhou 2007 FALBBHEEMNRERNEERET
and Ningbo. Moreover, the Group also increased its land HE - WHN AEBEBERIL S KE - RES
bank in second-tier cities such as Zhongshan, Dalian, RARRE Z@RWMmEiEE T HinEE - BMNE

Qinhuangdao and Taiyuan. Huizhou is an important industrial
base in Guangdong Province, with the compound annual
growth rate of its GDP exceeding 14% over the last 5 years.
Ningbo is the industrial center of the Yangtze River Delta. In
terms of total GDP, it ranked fifth among the fifteen vice-
provincial cities and with tremendous growing potential.
Zhongshan benefited from global industrial relocation move
and co-operative ventures in Pearl River Delta. Both its
manufacturing industry and light industry are developing
maturely. Dalian is a famous tourist city in Northern China
which is also the economic center of North-eastern China.
Qinhuangdao is one of the first batch of the 14 coastal cities
opened for development in PRC. It is an important port for
foreign trade in Northern China and is a first class tourist
city of the country endorsed by State Council. Taiyuan is
the capital city of Shanxi Province with rich resources in coal
and ample strengths in energy resources and the wealth of
its residents keep growing from time to time. The Company
is optimistic about the outlook of these second-tier cities
in view of their rapid economic development. The fact that
most properties are purchased for self-living purposes will
give rise to a relatively stable development in the real estate
market and will diversify part of our regional risk.

(2) Development of the property sector in

the PRC

In recent years, the PRC economy has been developing rapidly and
both the wealth and living standard of residents have improved.
With a stable development towards urbanization, the demand
for better living conditions will continue to drive the long-term
development of the real estate market. Hence, the real estate
market still has tremendous development potential.

Although the real estate industry experienced short-term volatility
as a result of the introduction of the macroeconomic control
policies, it is expected that a more regulated industry free of
speculation and bubble will be achieved, leading to a healthy and
stable development of the industry.
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(3) Prospects of the Group

In terms of overall capabilities, the Group is one of the leading
property developers in Mainland China. We are equipped with
first class capabilities and experience in property operation,
flexible operation system, strong capabilities in development and
marketing, and abilities in resources integration. Moving forward,
the Group will further achieve a more rapid growth in its results
and bring satisfactory returns to our shareholders.

The Group will achieve this objective through increasing its
land bank, enhancing product and service quality, accelerating
work progress and increasing contracted sales, enlarging the
developments of commercial property and high-end property and
strengthening the communications with investors.

Increase in land bank

Currently, the land bank of the Group is mainly located in the
core districts of the most well-developed cities in PRC, namely
Guangzhou, Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai. The costs of acquiring
land bank in those cities were low and with the significant surge
in property price, the values of land bank also rose sharply. The
Group is optimistic about the increasing demand in the second
and third tier cities where market risks are relatively low. We are
increasing our investment in second tier cities gradually. In 2007,
we obtained approximately 4,925,000 sqg.m. of land bank in
second and third tier cities such as Huizhou, Zhongshan, Dalian
and Taiyuan one after another. By the end of 2007, our land bank
reached 21.19 million sg.m.

In future, the Group will still leverage on our extensive experience
and vision on the market to obtain more land bank with growth
potential. In terms of size, the balance of land bank at the end
of each year should be sufficient for the development in the next
3 to 5 years. In terms of quality, we expect the value of the land
acquired will continue to appreciate. Hence, we will continue to
acquire land bank in second and third tier cities with potential and
also those regions in first tier cities with development potential.
Moreover, the Group will pay close attention to the market
fluctuation information of land market and will prepare itself to
enter the market at the appropriate moment and avoid acquiring
land in peak periods.
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(3) Prospects of the Group (continued) (Z) EEZRRRE &)

Strengthen information set up and optimize
production service mechanism

The Group has made significant achievements in its information
infrastructure since 2007. By perorating our years of development
experience, we have standardized, systemized and programmed
the workflows of the design, construction and sales procedures of
land acquired into an integrated production management system.
Such information system will ensure the implementation by the
Company of a business model in a rapid and stable development
manner which will facilitate internal management efficiency
enhancement and strengthen the turnaround time of respective
projects developed by the Group.

Since 2007, we acquired K EEF R LR T B R A A, being a
company with class-one status, and EHR A &l TIREEABER A
7). Moreover, through acquiring existing business partners and
establishing new companies, the Group owns companies engaging
in production activities, including sourcing-by-tender, landscape
greenery, renovation and decoration, to carry out mainly the
construction projects of the Group.

At present, we have basically established an integrated property
service system covering planning design, sourcing-by-
tender, construction, renovation and decoration and property
management. This system will assist the Group to speed up its
projects, improve property quality, reduce property development
costs which lay a strong foundation for the Group’s rapid future
development.

Enhance product and service quality

The Group is a middle-to-high end property developer. We
believe that by means of sustaining our quality and continuously
upgrading our services will attract loyal customers and strengthen
our brand name. In future, the Group will continue to increase
its investments in research and development, enhance its design
capabilities, improve its construction work quality further,
upgrade and consolidate the leading position of its products in
the industry. The Company will also strive to provide the best of
property management services and to provide premium property
management services to property owners.
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(3) Prospects of the Group (continued)

Accelerate work progress and increase contracted
sales

The Six Guidelines have affected the work progress of many
developers since 2006. A lot of our projects are unable to meet
the scheduled pre-sale time-table in the first three quarters of
2007 and in turn unable to complete construction by end of
2007, thereby affected the growth in contracted and delivered
sales of the Group for the year. Currently, the effects of the Six
Guidelines have diminished and the Group is firmly grasping the
momentum in project construction, accelerating the development
of existing land bank. It is expected that the annual completed
GFA from 2008 to 2010 will increase when compared to that in
2007.

We have sufficient inventory in 2008. Our company will leverage
on our premium product quality and strong marketing capabilities
to speed up the increase of contracted sales. It is expected that
average purchase price of the Group’s properties in 2008 and
the years thereafter is unlikely to be lower than the 2007 level.
In terms of selling price determination, we strive to strike a
good balance between pricing and sales momentum, namely,
to obtain more sales through our first class product quality and
services in order to gain customers and to maintain sufficient sales
momentum, while sustaining reasonable gross margins and net
sales margins.

By carrying out serious and in-depth research on both domestic
and foreign business counterparts and encapsulating our own
experience, we realize the important implications to strike a good
balance between turnaround time and profit margins. Over-
emphasis on sales momentum at lower selling prices will result
in lower net profit margins. Albeit achieving a larger scale, the
increase in margins will, however, be slackened. This will also
result in greater sufferings should market adjustment occur. On
the other hand, although high selling price will achieve higher
profit margin in per unit GFA sales, it will bring negative effects
when dealing with high value land appreciation tax where
customers are unable to afford high prices which will, in turn,
lower the sales momentum. The properties of the Group are
usually sold out before completion and will not affect our delivery
performance. The Group believes that by leveraging on our superb
market experience and judgement, we will be able to strike a
good balance between selling price and sales momentum which
will, in turn, lead to better returns on shareholders’ equity.
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(3) Prospects of the Group (continued) (Z) EEZRRRE &)

Accelerate work progress and increase contracted
sales (Continued)

With the above reasonable understanding, the Group will not
overly focus on sizeable and rapid expansion. Instead, we will
strive to achieve relative higher selling prices subject to a steady
growth in our cash flow. We also aim to achieve a steady growth
in both sales turnover and net profit and expect to strike a good
balance between selling prices and selling momentum; which in
turn, will achieve a higher return in shareholder equity. In terms of
controlling our sales momentum, as the properties of our projects
are usually sold out around construction completion period, our
sale will not affect our delivery performance.

Commercial property outlook

Sustainable macroeconomic developments, continuous
improvements of income per capita, the thrust of urbanization
and the entry of global top 500 enterprises will create strong
long-term demand for high-end commercial property. The Group
has already increased its investments in commercial properties and
expects to obtain a new profit source through the development,
operation and sales of commercial properties, thereby enabling the
Group to secure a stable cash flow. Of the commercial property
land bank that the Group currently owns, the construction works
of commercial property of about 1.88 million sq.m. in GFA have
commenced and are expected to complete in 3 to 5 years’ time.
These commercial properties are located in the premium districts
in Guangzhou, Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai and are planned to
be developed into hotels, office buildings, shopping centers and
serviced apartments with low costs, high-end positioning and with
top commercial values.

In future, the Group will continue to explore suitable commercial
property land bank to ensure higher growth momentum, using
our existing 1.88 million sg.m. commercial property completion
area planning as a base. We believe the commercial property
development will facilitate the Group to hold some premium
investment properties in establishing a balanced portfolio platform.
Such move will complement the development of residential
projects and both will progress mutually. However, the Group will
still pursue the development of residential property to be its main
business focus.
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(3) Prospects of the Group (continued)

High-end property development

As the PRC economy continues to prosper, we expect an
increasing domestic demand for high-end property. The Group has
already foreseen the market opportunities in high-end property
and is well prepared for it. Currently, we own 7 large-scale high-
end property projects in the central districts in Beijing, Tianjin,
Shanghai and Guangzhou. The construction of these projects
commenced in 2007 and we are striving to provide luxurious
apartments for the wealthiest high-end group in the country.
The Group is currently establishing co-operation with first-
class international design teams and is equipped with teams in
construction, sales and property management of highest caliber
for enhancing the quality and services of high-end property. We
believe the high-end property will draw more market attention
and be more competitive, and it will become the new profit
source of the Group and enhance our brand name. The quality
and services of high-end property will also enhance the market
responses to other properties developed by the Group.

Strengthen the communications with investors

The Group will continue to strictly comply with the disclosure
requirements of listed companies and will disclose full information
to all shareholders and investors in time. We shall develop
various communication activities with investors and improve the
transparency of the Group and, thus, boost, the capital market’s
confidence in our Group.

We are confident that, from 2008 onwards, we will clinch on
the long-term historical opportunities of the real estate market
in the PRC, enhance our competitiveness, capture more market
share and achieve a higher performance growth in creating higher
returns for our shareholders.
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Chief Executive Officer’s Report

Business Review

Property Development Business

Though operating under a series of macroeconomic control policies
implemented by the Central Government and the Group’s restructure
of its construction work, our total contracted sales in 2007 still achieved
some definite results. Total contracted sales of the Group, inclusive of
Guangzhou Regal Riviera, amounted to RMB 10,690 million.

In 2007, contracted sales of the Group in Guangzhou amounted to
RMB4,734 million, accounted for 44.2% of total contracted sales of
the Group. We have 17 property projects under sale in Guangzhou, the
main ones are Regal Riviera Villa, Junjing Bay, Pleasant View Garden,
Huajing New City, Gallopade Park — South Court, Guangzhou Regal
Riviera, Huanan New City and Yunshan Xijing, accounted for 97% of
total sales; of which, Junjing Bay, located in Nanhai, at the junction
between Guangzhou and Foshan, is a brand new property project
launched by the Company. Junjing Bay is a multi-storey and high-
rise housing project. Since its introduction in the second half of 2007,
the sales of RMB205 million had been achieved. In 2007, the average
contracted selling price in the Guangzhou region was RMB11,975 per
sg.m., anincrease of 49.5% over last year.

In 2007, contracted sales of the Group in Huizhou amounted to
RMB805 million, accounted for 7.5% of total contracted sales of the
Group. We have two property projects under sale in Huizhou, of which
the contracted sales of Regal Riviera Bay and Hopson International New
City amounted to RMB279 million and RMB526 million respectively. In
2007, the average contracted selling price in the Huizhou region was
RMB8,218 per sq.m., an increase of 31% over last year.

In 2007, contracted sales of the Group in Beijing amounted to
RMB3,516 million, accounted for 32.9% of total contracted sales of
the Group. We have 4 property projects under sale in Beijing, which are
Beijing Regal Court, Hopson International Garden, Citta Eterna and
Fresh Life Garden. Excluding the last batch of units sold for Fresh Life
Garden, sales of Beijing Regal Court, Hopson International Garden and
Citta Eterna amounted to RMB 1,839 million, RMB1,118 million and
RMB555 million respectively. In 2007, the average contracted selling
price in the Beijing region was RMB17,283 per sq.m., an increase of
55.4% over last year.
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Business Review (continued)

Property Development Business (Continued)

In 2007, contracted sales of Jingjin New Town of the Group in Tianjin
amounted to RMB644 million, a surge of 62% over last year, due
mainly to the gradual refinement of its ancillary facilities increasing
brand recognition, and satisfactory commencement of operation of
Phase | of Hyatt Regency invested by the Group under the Jingjin New
Town Project. The average contracted selling price of Jingjin New
Town was RMB7,180 per sq.m., an increase of 40% over last year. The
construction of Jingjin New Town is being refined in accordance with
the Group's target. Upon the full opening of Hyatt Regency Jingjin City
in the future, Jingjin New Town will become a high-end holiday resort
comprising golf, hot spring resort, conference and entertainment
facilities, which will help to further promote the sales of its villas.

In 2007, contracted sales of the Group in Shanghai amounted to
RMB991 million, accounted for 9.3% of total contracted sales of the
Group. We have two property projects under sale in Shanghai, of which
the contracted sales of Hopson Lantern Garden and Hopson Town
amounted to RMB325 million and RMB666 million respectively. In
2007, the average contracted selling price in the Shanghai region was
RMB8,086 per sq.m., an increase of 14.7% over last year.

In 2008, the Group will have more development projects attaining pre-
sale stage. The commencement and completion of work in terms of
floor area will be gradually increased. Together with the inventory
brought forward from 2007, we believe the contracted sales of the
Group in 2008 will achieve a considerable growth over 2007.
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Business Review (continued) ¥ OE )

Property Development Business (Continued) MEBRRERE)

The operation of the Group was satisfactory for the year. For the year RNEBAFHLEXRBIE B2 - TS+E+ - A=+—
ended 31st December 2007, the Group had a record-breaking turnover B IEFE - AEEME EBEHSHCHN,1315EE T
of HK$11,131 million, an increase of 61% over last year. The following  #&EF1E0161% - TRIURBERSE RTXBEE REX
tables show the turnover by geographical locations, major projects and &9 2 & %% :

business segments:

Turnover of the Group by geographical locations: REAE D 2 EEEEENT -

2006

—EERE
HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
BEE#T Lt 51 (%) BEET EEB1(%)
Guangzhou J& M 4,526 41 3,121 45
Beijing it = 3,606 32 2,173 31
Shanghai 8 901 8 666 10
Tianjin K 627 6 699 10
Huizhou =M 1,471 13 261 4
11,131 100 6,920 100
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Business Review (continued)

Property Development Business (Continued)
Turnover by major projects:

¥EE )

ERRR ()
BETIER BSEEBLHINT

2007 2006
—EFLE ZETREF

HK$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)

BEE#T Lt #1(%) B &E T L BI(%)

Hopson International SHBBIER 1,224 1 — —

Garden

Guangzhou Regal Riviera E M KT % = 1,224 11 — —

Beijing Regal Court ERKIHER 1,057 9 1,334 19

Huajing New City S 917 8 373 5

Hopson International A B BRI 859 8 — —
New City

Beijing Citta Eterna ITREFZE 755 7 366 5

Pleasant View Garden iR =R [E 663 6 898 13

Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay E M 5 5 & 612 6 261 4

Shanghai HopsonTown £ & 4 i 3B 568 5 666 10

Tianjin Jingjin New Town X 3 50 )% 735 555 5 663 10

Huanan New City [ 542 5 390 6

Others HA 2,155 19 1,969 28

11,131 100 6,920 100

Turnover by business segments:

BEBB D EEBLHIT

2007 2006
—FFLHF —EERF
HKS$ million Ratio (%) HK$ million Ratio (%)
BEE#ET LE 151 (%) BEET FEAY(%)
Property development MR 10,722 96 6,613 96
Property investment MERE 58 1 54 1
Property management ¥ & 18 235 173 2
Hotel and golf BIER =B X 116 1 80 1
11,131 100 6,920 100
26 Hopson Development Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2007



Chief Executive Officer's Report
TR RS

Business Review (continued) EBEE )
Property Development Business (continued) MEBRERE)
Property Development Completion (Estimated) WERERT (B

Name of Project

2008

Completed

Area

= 18-
= LEH®

(sq.m.)

(FHX)

Total

At

2009
Completed
Area
=L 3
EILEE
(sg.m.)
(FFHK)
Total

PANE
(=0

2010
Completed
Area
—g-%%
TIEK
(sg.m.)

(F7HK)
Total

A =
=]

2011 and after
Completed
Area
—E-—%R
NERTIEE
(sq.m.)

(FHK)
Total

A =
(=]

Gallopade Park BEItE — — — 439,529
Pleasant View Garden r=2E 102,728 — 82,338 570,106
Huanan New City B 72,869 — 200,704 1,761,075
Gallopade Park — South Court S8 = /%8 — 69,835 — 139,583
Regal Riviera Kilwms 102,235 — — 399,062
Regal Palace EERER 24,236 — — —
Yijing Huayuan PRSE — 115,994 — —
Guangzhou Hopson BM&EEBEAE — 99,059 — —
International Building
Yunshan Xijing ZLER 63,747 29,599 — —
Hopson Yujing Mid-level BEMRFU — 55,491 80,410 248,609
Regal Riviera Villa BRI — 40,387 38,200 —
Nanhai Junjing Bay MEESRE 77,855 23,746 224,307 414,298
Guangzhou Jiahe BN E i ER — — — 178,983
Commercial City
Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay BEMNERE 43,631 137,369 193,965 184,700
Hopson International B BRI 38,558 176,644 — 876,891
New City
Beijing Regal Court ERHIFER 86,259 77,479 175,766 73,077
Beijing Citta Eterna ERESE 80,906 — 72,116 —
Hopson International Garden AHEBERIEE 83,981 — — —
Shanghai Hopson Town LBEEHH 117,458 129,037 121,506 —
Shanghai Hopson LBEEBEBERE 82,671 — — —
International Tower
Shanghai Yangpu Xuchang LB BHRTERIEE — — 57,373 —
Road Project
Shanghai Sheshan Dongziyuan ~ F/8 & IR L E 71,270 — — 54,878
Hopson Lantern Garden BHERRE 71,903 — — —
Shanghai Dongjing Project EFEREIEE 18,120 — 113,109 —
Ningbo Gaojiaoyuan ERSHEREIEER 65,624 67,493 182,200 223,606
District Project
Tianjin Jingjin New Town KT 206,743 199,850 375,482 2,690,480
Guangzhou Ziyun Villa BMEE L 81,819 121,626 144,166 1,097,214

e REEEARAA
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Business Review (continued)

Property Development Business (Continued)
Property Development Completion (Estimated)

Name of Project

Beijing Desheng Building

Beijing Dongfangwenhua Project

Shanghai Yu Tai Project
Tianjin Ge Tian Building
Tianjin Regal Riviera Bay
Huizhou World Island Project
Zhongshan Torch Project
Zhongshan Rainbow Project
Zhongshan Dong Keng Project
Southern Yue Xiu Plaza

Guangzhou Jiufo Machao Project

Beijing Xin Jing Run Project
Beijing Wang Jing Project
Shanxi Tai Yuan Tongye Project
Phase One
Dalian Lushun Hopson
Dijing Yuan Phase One
Shanghai YiZe Yuan
Hangzhou Technology Digital
Plaza Project

Shanghai Zhongxian International

292 Project
Hyatt Regency Jingjin City

Total

28

EREBAE

ERRAIXERE

LBHMEEE
REBRAE
RETHRE
BEMEREER
RIAEER
FILFIAA
FIIRAIEAR
MAMEES

EMAHBHEE

ERHRBER
tRERER

WAARFARER —H

ABIRIES £ TR —H

LERES

TN R 808 B 358 B

LR EEE2921EE

AR GEE
B8

¥EE )
MAEBRERB)

MERET T (85

2008
Completed
Area
—EFN\E
TIEK
(sq.m.)

(F7HK)
Total

A =
(=1

2009
Completed
Area
—EENE
EImE
(sq.m.)

(FHK)
Total

A =
(=N

2010
Completed
Area
EIEE
(sq.m.)

(FHR)
Total

A =
[=N7]

2011 and after
Completed
Area
—F——(R
NETIEE
(sq.m.)

(FHR)
Total

Bt

. — 70,936 —

— 92,055 — —
24,628 37,793 — —
— — — 137,120

— — — 134,550
51,760 128,546 75,040 1,498,605
— 80,000 119,822 —

— — 120,000 229,388

— — — 328,828

— 132,518 — —

— — — 193,513

— 180,050 201,812 510,098

— — 153,469 —

— 91,432 100,000 148,568
56,559 146,252 110,840 194,636
— 60,000 58,681 —

— — 88,205 —

— — — 314,900
73,326 18,669 — —
1,698,886 2,310,924 3,160,447 13,042,297

Hopson Development Holdings Limited
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Business Review (continued)

Property Management Service

The property management service is an important protective shield of
the Group in its development. Guangdong Esteem Property Services
Limited (“Guangdong Esteem”), with State Grade 1 qualification, is
dedicated to providing comprehensive, professional and people-
oriented management services to residents. The business motto of
Guangdong Esteem is “People as core and creation of Quality Life”.
It endeavours to provide a healthy and comfortable environment for
the residents and its quality service is well received by the community.
In 2007, the Group aspired to meet the living needs of the PRC's
mainstream residents and strived to enhance the scope and variety of its
management services, Customized premium services which are at par
with international management services standards, are designed for
the clients, catering for their needs and enabling them to pursue quality
living style of international excellence.

Property Rental
The rental income of the Group in 2007 was approximately HK$58
million, an increase of approximately 7% over last year.

Until now, the rental income of the Group is mainly derived from retail
shops and car parks which represents only a small portion of the Group’s
business. However, in the foreseeable future, the Group will gradually
develop more commercial projects like office buildings and shopping
malls and hence will bring along more stable cash inflow to the Group.

Hotel and Commercial Property Business

Currently, the Group's land bank consist of low-cost prime sites in
Guangzhou, Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai with high commercial value.
With the continuous development of the macro economy, on-going
increase of per capita income and growing urbanization, the demand
for high-end commercial property will continue.

Currently, the Group has two hotels in operation and one is in soft
opening.

AHEARSEAR

1
oy

—F %

TTHARERE

¥ OEE )

MEEIE R

MEEERBREEAEZRNERRES - KEBTHERE
SOERBERIR (AR —REE  BBIBERESDR
BAREEREHETAM - FEL - AHEOMEERRS - B
RESFRAIAARAE - AERRATE |WEERES - B
RRFTAERREENEERE - ARERERELEE
RRBE - EETLFURRPEIREENEEFRARE
ko BARARYERBORENEE - stHEPHER R
BFEHEERRY - GEBEMERBRERY - BE
TITEAAEREENEEDEAENL  BEPWE -
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REER_ZZLFNHESWALSBEE ST - L EF1E
7]%"77% ©

BEEEARL  SENESRATZRESEROBELE
7 o BB REEBH —/ D - BERA RSN - KEE
BIRERFELBYHOSHEEAR - EM&REREN
BEM °
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Business Review (continued)

Hotel and Commercial Property Business (Continued)

The two hotels in operation are Guangzhou Regal Riviera Hotel and
Beijing Plaza Royale Hotel. The hotel in soft opening is Hyatt Regency
Jingjin City. The turnover of Guangzhou Regal Riviera Hotel for the year
was RMB20.24 million, a growth of 4.4% over last year. Its occupancy
rate was 70%, a growth of 21% over last year. The turnover of Beijing
Plaza Royale Hotel for the year was RMB32.88 million, a growth of 19%
over last year. Its occupancy rate was 61.2%, a growth of 11% over
last year. Hyatt Regency Jingjin City, with a total GFA of 150,000 sg.m.,
is managed by Hyatt Group, an international renowned hotel group,
with full authorisation from the Group. Hyatt Regency commenced its
soft opening in September 2007 with a total of 516 guest rooms in its
phase | trial. Certain areas had already commenced operation in early
January 2008. Backed by the abundant resources of hot spring, golf and
holiday resort of Jingjin New Town, Hyatt Regency will provide high-end
conference services for domestic and foreign leading enterprises and
premium hospitality services for domestic and overseas tourists.

The Group is optimistic about the long-term development of the hotel
business in the PRC and its strong promoting effects on our property
sales. In the next few years, the hotels will be principally managed under
the brand name of International Hyatt Group by way of authorised
management and some will be through franchised operation and
management under the brand name of Inter-continental Group while
management by the Group itself will only play a supplementary role. To
integrate with the development projects of the Group, the design of 21
new hotel projects (including the hotels mentioned below) will be made
on this basis.

In August 2007, the Group established our Hopson Group Commercial
Property Headquarter (“CPH"), building up a professional management
team with extensive experience, with its focus on the commercial
development and operation of the hotels, offices and shopping
malls under the Group. The CPH actively pursues the partnering
with international renowned agencies like CB Richard Ellis, DTZ, First
Pacific Davis and Colliers International on project positioning, design,
planning and property managements with the aim to attaining first-
class international standards for the development of the commercial
property in terms of hardware and property management.

Apart from the three hotels mentioned above, currently, the Group
has 10 commercial property projects located in the core districts of
Beijing, Tianjin, Shanghai, Hangzhou, Guangzhou and Huizhou which
are under different development stages, with total GFA of 1.88 million
sq.m. These projects are functionally planned for offices, hotels and
shopping malls. Their land costs are low, average floor area value being
RMB2,876 per sg.m., but with high commercial value.
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Business Review (continued)

Hotel and Commercial Property Business (Continued)

The above commercial projects will commence full construction in
2008. The construction of Shanghai Hopson International Tower will
be completed in 2008 and the rest of the projects will be completed
gradually during the next three years with the overall completion
scheduled around 2011.

Upon the completion of the above commercial properties, some of
them will be held by the Group on a long-term basis. The purpose is
to obtain long-term rental income and capital gains arising from the
assets. The rest of the properties will be sold at suitable time according
to market conditions and cash flow position of the Group.

In the long run, the Group will leverage on our premium properties
and first-class services in establishing our strong brand name in the
commercial property sector, and we will further identify suitable
commercial sites to augment our land bank. In enriching our land bank,
the Group is also seeking for improved integration for the commercial
and residential projects to attain mutual benefits. It is our goal to
use our premium commercial property brand name to enhance our
capabilities in obtaining large scale land sites with mixed commercial
and residential usage, which in turn will help to raise the selling prices
of our large-scale projects. On the other hand, the massive residential
population and the comprehensive ancillary facilities of large-scale
residential projects will also increase the value of the commercial
properties.

First Class Land Development

Currently, the Group is participating in the first class land development
business in Beijing and Huizhou. Participating in first class land
development is a strategic move of the Group . It will facilitate the
Group in further replenishing premium land sites at favourable prices.
In addition, in connection with the redevelopment works of old urban
(rural) districts in Guangzhou, the Group has entered into development
agreements with the respective governments of Haizhu, Yuexiu and
Tianhe.
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Review Of Financing Activities

In order to enhance its financial position and to raise fund to further
enlarge its land bank, the Group carried out the following financing
activities:

(1)

(2)

Issuance of convertible bonds of RMB1.83 billion
expiringin 2010

On 18th January 2007, the Company issued RMB1.83 billion zero
coupon convertible bonds with conversion price of HK$30.08
per share. The yield-to-put for the 3 year convertible bonds was
1.5% per annum. Upon full conversion, the total number of shares
to be issued is 61,107,715. It is the first ever RMB denominated
convertible bonds issued by a Hong Kong listed company.

Issuance of 182,232,346 shares to acquire an 80%
equity interest in Believe Best Investments Limited
("Believe Best")

During the year, the Group completed the acquisition of an
80% equity interest in Believe Best from Mr. Chu Mang Yee, the
controlling shareholder, Chairman and executive director of the
Company, for a consideration of HK$6,000 million, of which
HK$4,000 million was satisfied by issuance of 182,232,346 shares
of the Company at HK$21.95 per share on 7th August 2007.
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AEERARANLMEE  R_TTLF+_A=+—
B AEERRHBEREE21198F 5K -

Land Bank Replenishment

The land bank of the Group is substantial. As at 31st December 2007,
the saleable area of the Group was 21.19 million sg. m.

BARE 2 L HBENEER KA ECFRTE LA - £E

Although the land bank is sufficient for the Group to use in the coming

five to seven years, the Group continues to acquire new land to enlarge
its economic scale. The following is the new land that the acquisitions of
which has been completed during the year:

DATEBER LIABARELERR - T ARERAF
TERK BTG T3t 2 — K

Group's Gross
Name of Project interests Location of Project Floor Area SaleableArea
HE & AEEZ#ER RAMEL BEER A SHE T
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FI2K) (FIK)
Shanghai YiZe Yuan 94% Land Parcel No. 5Zhaoxiang Town, 118,681 118,681
LgREEs Qingpu, Shanghai
BT E B ESHE R
Shanghai Yu Tai Project 100% Sites C-4-2 and C-5, Jingiao-Zhangjiang 63,120 62,420
BEE%EE District, New Pudong Area, Shanghai
PEBRRRSE - RIhE
C-4-2HRC-5158
Hangzhou Technology Digital 95% 327 Tianmushan Road, Xihu District, 88,205 88,205
Plaza Project Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province
N 5 E 5 1E B AT EMM I FERRR B ILE3275%
Tianjin Ge Tian Building 100% Interchange between WeilinRoad and 137,120 137,120
RERKIKE ShuiShang North Road, Nan Kai District,
Tianjin
REME MR AR EK FEER A
Shanghai Zhongxian International 100% 292 Jiefeng Yangpu District, Shanghai 314,900 314,900
292 Project
i kEIRR29218E B HR2924
Huizhou World Island 100% Maliao, Dahe Village, Shuikou Town, 1,820,339 1,753,950
Project Huizhou
BNHRSIEE SRITSRINAE b RN T4 2
BMHKOEANN - BRUME
Guangzhou Ziyun Villa Project 100% Guangdong Zengcheng City, XintangTown, 1,499,956 1,444,825
BMEELGIER Guangzhou
EREERTHERRE NS
Guangzhou Jiufo Machao Project 55% Jiufo Machao Industry Town, Guangzhou 193,513 193,513
BMBRRSEER BT ALER S T3
Guangzhou Southern Yuexiu Plaza 51% No 198, Xiaobei Road, Yuexiu District, 132,518 132,518

Project Guangzhou
M HAREISIEE MR NMEEE 198557
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Land Bank Replenishment (continued)

Group's
interests

Name of Project

Location of Project

HH &S

Beijing Dongfangwenhua Project
IEREHXEEE

Beijing Xinjingrun Project
ERF R EER

Shanxi Tai Yuan Tongye Project

WP KRIZETE B

Beijing Wang Jing Project
ItRERER

Guangdong Zhongshan Torch
Project

BERFILAERR

Guangdong Zhongshan Dongkeng
Project

BRBILRITIER

Guangdong Zhongshan Rainbow
Project

BERPILFAIAR

Liaoning Dalian Lushun Hopson
Dijing Yuan Project
BERERIEESEFRIIER

Beijing Desheng Building
IEREBAE

Tianjin Regal RiveraBay Project

REFSEAR

Total
BE
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60.98%

80%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

98.90%

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

5 H b

No. D4 DongsiRedevelopment Area,
DongchengDistrict, Beijing
LR R R R AN R DAY

18 Xiaoyun Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing
ERTHGRE 1857

West of Bing Zhou Road,East of Ti Yu Road and
North of Er Ying Pan Street, Tai Yuan
KIRTIMEEATE - BB EIAR - &84
PAdE

Beijing Chaoyang District, Wang Jing Culture
and Entertainment Project

LRGSR 2R AREEB30)E B

Ling Gang District, Huo Ju development zone,
Zhongshan
Tl B R AR

Dongkeng, South District, Zhongshan
Bl R R SR T

CaiHong planning zone, West District,
Zhongshan
AL R AT AR A

Nan Ya Village,Lu Shun Kou District, Dalian

RETHKIE A& g A

De Wai Guan Xiang, Xicheng District, Beijing
LRk R 25N E e

FuAn Main Road and Xing An Road Border,
He Ping District, Tianjin
REDMTREZAGHEEAZEZA
(Jt&MEEsR)

Gross
Floor Area SaleableArea
BEmE A H & EiR
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(F75K) (F5K)
141,977 92,055
946,068 891,960
340,000 340,000
153,469 153,469
199,822 199,822
328,828 328,828
349,388 349,388
508,287 508,287
70,937 70,937
134,550 134,550
7,541,678 7,315,428
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Land Bank Replenishment (continued) T iR (o)

The following are the land acquisition contracts signed during the year

but the acquisitions were not completed at the end of the year: Z—E

Group's

Name of Project interests

HE &S FREZEE

Shanghai Wu Jiao Chang 100%
Project

LBRAGIER

Guangzhou Nam Fong Garden 100%
Project

BN R —#EE

Beijing Dou Ge Zhuang 100%
commodities exchange
centre Project

TtREEHERRSHOER

Qinhuangdao Di Bai Project 100%
ZESHEFEA
Fan Yu Zhong Xin Cheng Qu 100%
south district, 5-3 site
Project

FEEPLHRER
5-3i1 4RI B

Beijing Yu He Wen Bao Project 100%
IEREAXRIAE

Total
e

T AREERFAD EZENRE DR E RN FIRTENR

Gross
Location of Project Floor Area SaleableArea
HE B BEEE A S E TR
(sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(F7K) (FHK)
Lot No. NS-1, 1157 Xiangyin Road, Yangpu District, 93,332 93,332
Shanghai
EETRASIRIEI575
Nos. 168 and 170 Canggang Mid Road, Haizhu 82,915 82,915
District, Guangzhou
N TR 2 fe P 5 168-170%%
Chaoyang District Dou Ge Zhuang Xiang, Beijing 140,155 140,155
EtRBGRTEEH
JiLiao province border, Liao Dong Wan West north 764,523 764,523
shore
BREWILE  BEEMEXAE
Planning Bin Jiang Da Dao Main road by north, 86,461 81,291
Planning De Xing South road by west, Fan Yu
Zhong Xin Cheng Qu Nan Qu, Guangzhou
BMNTEBRORERRREETAE
68 - ARE R EE T
Plot# 11 located in Beijing Yu He Wen Bao Area, 6,222 6,222
South District
FAREENRER 11551
1,173,608 1,168,438

EEEAREEAFERAA —FTZE L FFR 35




Chief Executive Officer's Report
TR RS

Land Bank Replenishment (continued) T A o)

The following analysis of the land bank of the Group by saleable areais LT AREELibREE O - RAEEEEET RIBER
based on its internal records only without any independent verification:  AZP4cikstE - MEBIAZE ¢

Usage and Location AR RIE

Saleable Area (millionsq.m.)
FESHERE (55 F oK)

Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing® Tianjin Shanghai® Total
& M Y = xiE Lig Hst

Residential F= 5.40%* 3.67 2.10 3.86 1.05 0.49 16.57
Shopping arcade [k 0.82* 0.22 0.16 0.07 0.05 0.01 1.33
Office N 0.09 - 0.27 0.01 0.11 — 0.48
Carparks 8% 0.96* 0.93 0.18 0.01 0.22 0.04 2.34
Hotels BE 0.03 0.13 0.15 0.15 0.01 — 0.47
Total FaE 7.30 4.95 2.86 4.10 1.44 0.54 21.19

I I

Development Status and Location BREARTLME

Saleable Area (millionsq.m.)
AIESHE T (B 55 K)

Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing® Tianjin Shanghai® Total
& 1 B it= xiE LB #at

Completed [mhID%7ES 0.44 0.10 0.16 0.26 0.02 - 0.98
properties
Properties under BRERBYE 0.84 0.40 0.60 0.46 0.40 0.05 2.75
development
Properties to be R 6.02* 4.45 2.10 3.38 1.02 0.49 17.46
developed
Total 1meEr 7.30 4.95 2.86 4.10 1.44 0.54 21.19
L& & | L& & |

*  Seenote (6) on page 38 of the annual report. * BFREISEMTEE)
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Land Bank Replenishment (continued) T iR (o)
Development Status and Usage BERKARBE

Saleable Area (millionsq.m.)

ASHEER (55 F5K)

Shopping
Residential arcade Office  Carparks Hotels
£= il W= =E15 B
Completed properties b4 7/ES 0.28 0.30 0.01 0.24 0.15 0.98
Properties under ERAPME 2.09 0.10 0.16 0.27 0.13 2.75
development
Properties to be FERRYE 14.20%* 0.93* 0.31 1.83* 0.19 17.46
developed
Total Pt 16.57 1.33 0.48 2.34 0.47 21.19
I I I I
Title Status and Location E B REAR L R 3t B

Saleable Area (millionsq.m.)
AHRSHEER (55 F7K)

Guangzhou Huizhou Beijing® Tianjin  Shanghai® Total
B £V 1i= xi# Lif G

Land use rights certificates ~ BEVSHH{F A 1.54 0.20 0.48 0.50 0.60 0.06 3.38
and construction works BERERIRE
planning permits e U
obtained

Land use rights certificates ~ BEVSHHtFRE 2.41 3.51 0.15 0.92 0.53 — 7.52
obtained but without BRMGERT
construction works BT Ee

planning permits @

Construction land use EEERR 0.43 1.24 0.25 — — — 1.92
planning permits At
obtained®® SR BN
Grant of major approvals BHEEEHX 2.92 — 1.98 2.68 0.31 0.48 8.37
and certificates not yet REEZ
obtained @6 #H@wsie
Total e 7.30 4.95 2.86 4.10 1.44 0.54 21.19
I S L& & |

*  Seenote (6) on page 38 of the annual report. * RFRE38EMFLE®)
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Land Bank Replenishment (continued)

Notes:

(1

Relevant land use rights certificates and construction works planning
permits have been granted.

Relevant land use rights certificates have been granted while the
appertaining construction works planning permits have not yet been
obtained.

Relevant construction land use planning permits have been granted.
However, the land use rights certificates have not yet been obtained and
will only be secured upon execution of the relevant land transfer contracts
and payment of land premium.

Only upon completion of the land grant procedures (e.g. obtainment of the
construction land use planning permits, and the execution of land transfer
contracts) and the payment of the appertaining land premium will the land
use rights certificates be obtained.

For payment status of land premium, please refer to notes 21 and 38 to the
accounts.

The Group has established a sino-foreign co-operative joint venture
in the PRC for the development and construction of residential-
commercial properties of Huanan New City on a site of approximately
3,000 mu/Chinese acres in Pauyu of Guangdong Province, among which
approximately 2,000 mu/Chinese acres were contracted but have not
yet been transferred to the Group. Huanan New City is currently under
various stages of development. In mid-2007, the Urban Planning Bureau
of Guangzhou City ordered to revoke the construction land use planning
permit obtained for a portion of 1,500 mu/Chinese acres translating to
approximately 1,297,500 sq.m. of saleable area of Huanan New City,
reinstating the user thereof from residential-commercial properties to
affordable housing. A user application has been re-submitted to the Land
and Housing Management Authority of Guangzhou and the Land and
Resources Department of Guangdong Province to reinstate the user to
residential-commercial properties. Such application is currently pending
review by the relevant government bureaus.

Including Dalian and Shanxi Taiyuan.

Including Hangzhou.
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Chief Executive Officer's Report

Corporate Governance

During the year, the Group continued to maintain effective corporate
governance practices. Apart from the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Connected Transactions/Related
Party Transactions Committee continued to operate in accordance with
the corporate governance practices of the Group.

Details of the corporate governance report of the Group is set out on
pages 101 to 110 of the annual report of the year.

Inclusion In the Morgan Stanley Capital
International Inc. (“MSCI”) China Index

Since June 2006, our shares have been included in MSCI China Index,
reflecting our works in the past are recognised internationally.

Appreciation

I would like to express my heartfelt gratitude to our management and
all staff members for their commitments and dedications to the Group.

Chen ChangYing
Chief Executive Officer

Hong Kong, 16th April 2008
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Property Profile
WEBN

Huanbohai Economic Zone

B

Beijing Regal Court 1t KL% 5

Beijing Citta Eterna it R 5 5=

Hopson International Garden & A4 B[R 7 [

Beijing Xinjingrun Project 1t 72 7 7 18 B

Beijing Dongfangwenhua Project 4t JR & 5 X ZE 18 B
Beijing Desheng Building it = 1& s K B

Beijing Wangjing Project 1t 7 8 7 18 B

Dalian Lushun Hopson Dijing Yuan Project A & i B & 4 75 = 46,18 B
Shanxi Taiyuan Tongye Project || 78 K R i 3£ 18 B
10. Tianjin Jingjin New Town X2 52 Tk

11. Tianjin Regal Riviera Bay Project X 2% £ /&8 B
12. Tianjin Getian Building X 28 X A&

Lo NOUTE WN =

Yangtze River Delta Economic Zone

BI=ANEER

1. Shanghai Hopson Town 3§ & 4 4 38

2. Shanghai Hopson International Tower /8 & 4 Bl K&

3. Shanghai Yangpu Xuchang Road Project |-G 15 @ &F 2 118 B

4. Shanghai Sheshan DongZ|yuan FERLEERER

5. Hopson Lantern Garden & 4 BAEE

6. Shanghai Dongjing Project /& 3f< 18 B

7. Shanghai Yu Tai Project 5 #0218 B

8. Shanghai Yizeyuan Project & F8 24518 B

9. Shanghai Zhongxian International 292 Project & 1 % BI[(% 29218 B
10. Hangzhou Technology Digital Plaza Project )i &l £ 15 & 3518 B
11. Ningbo Gaojiaoyuan District Project Z )8 = 28 & [& 18 B
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%
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2. Pleasant View Garden rERE 13. Guangzhou Jiufo Machao Project
3. Huanan New City 2 g 73 BN LEE S IE B
4. Regal Riviera I}k,l?ﬁ% 14. Guangzhou Southern Yuexiu Plaza
5. Regal Palace % =45 EMNEETBEES
6.  Yijing Huayuan EEE =) 15.  Zhongshan Torch Project 7 L A fETE B
7. Guangzhou Hopson International Tower 16.  Zhongshan Dongkeng Project & 1| 52 31,78 B
EMNE&EBBRAE 17.  Zhongshan Rainbow Project 1|1 % #1 18 B
8. Yunshan Xijing 21 E 2 18.  Ziyun Villa Project ¥ |1 5118 B
9.  Regal Riviera Villa % & LI 5 19.  Huizhou World Island Project 2 M|ttt 52 & 18 B
10. Nanhai Junjing Bay 7 /8 & & /& 20. Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay = )N 7 = /&
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Gallopade Park & =1t E
Pleasant View Garden % =2 [E|

Huanan New City ZE &g 7 4
Regal Riviera k)T 7 &
Regal Palace ¥ &%t
Yijing Huayuan F& £ %%

Guangzhou Hopson International Tower &/ & 4 B KB
Yunshan Xijing Z || = &

Regal Riviera Villa & = 11 ¥

. Nanhai Junjing Bay F)8 & /&

. Guangzhou Jiahe Commercial City & M| 5= 7 75 2 35
12. Hopson Yujing Mid-level & A £ & 3 11|

. Guangzhou Jiufo Machao Project &M {3 & 518 B
14. Guangzhou Southern Yuexiu Plaza E /N 75 i85 E 5

RNV A WN =

Gallopade Park
BeitE

Zhongshan Avenue, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (95% owned)
BEMRAEP LKE (HEEIS%E )

Tk
Sg.m.

BT T Construction completed 36,466

158 LA T B il 58 T Construction to be completed

o —ETNF in 2009 69,835

e —T—TFHLE  in 2010 and after 579,112

R=ZEZF+F+=A Land bank as at

=t+t—HztHHE 31st December 2007 685,413
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Pleasant View Garden
BREEHE

Guangzhou Avenue, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (94.98% owned)
BENMEREREMKE (HEH94.98%# 35)

FIK
Sg.m.
25T Construction completed 50,766
1B LA T B il 58 T Construction to be completed
o —ETT)\F in 2008 102,728
e ZT—TF AR in 2010 and after 652,444
RZZEEE+EF+=-H  Land bank as at
=+—HztHfE#E  31st December 2007 805,938

Huanan New City
1/

Panyu District, Guangzhou (99% owned)

EMNERE (HEHI9%E )

50K

Sg.m.

E fy—EI Construction completed 86,969
15 LA T B il 58 T Construction to be completed
s —TT)\F in 2008 72,869
o —E—FFPE in 2010 and after 1,961,779
R_ZBEEL+F+_A Land bank as at
=+—HzZ tihf#EE 31st December 2007 2,121,617

Regal Riviera
HRILHE =

Guangzhou Avenue, Chigang, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (99.5% owned)
BENERESREEMKE (HHI9.5%EH)

75K
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 105,555
1 7 LA T B ] 58 T Construction to be completed
o —ETT)NF in 2008 102,235
o« — T — Zidzw% in 2010 and after 399,062
R-EELF+— Land bank as at
=+—H Ziiﬁlﬁ%ﬁ 31st December 2007 606,852

Regal Palace
TRER

Guangzhou Avenue, Chigang, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
JE 8 2k B 75 i B N K E (B 100% 4 #1)

IR
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 4,662
SR TR T Construction to be completed
« —ETNF in 2008 24,236
R+ F+— A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzLHHE 31st December 2007 28,898

LA REEAERRAA —ZTE L FFR 43



Yijing Huayuan

=EL

Dongxiaonan Road, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BEMERERBERER (HEH100%H# 55)

F 5K
Sg.m.
BEXELT Construction completed 11,201
R A TR EE T Construction to be completed
e —FTF in 2009 115,994
R_EZ+F+_A Land bank as at
=+—HB2ZtMkE#E  31st December 2007 127,195
Guangzhou Hopson International Tower 7
EMNEEBRBEXE .
Yuehua Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BEM S EEER (HEH 100%H# &)
F 7K
Sg.m.
R TR B T Construction to be completed
e —ETETNF in 2009 99,059
MN-ZEZELE+ R Land bank as at
=t+—HzZTh#EE 31st December 2007 99,059

Yunshan Xijing

Guangzhou Main Road, Baiyun District, Guangzhou (70% owned)
EMNEEEEMKE (BEH70%H# )

F oK
Sg.m.
BEEL Construction completed 4,857
150 LA T B il 58 T Construction to be completed
e _TENF in 2008 63,747
s _ZETNF in 2009 29,599
RZZTEZE+LF+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztifEE  31st December 2007 98,203

Regal Riviera Villa

o= W iE

Huanchang Road, Tianhe District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
B X [EER 35 8% (BEH 100% 4 #5)

F 75K
Sg.m.
BEEL Construction completed 10,561
B A TR fE 52 T Construction to be completed
s —EBNF in 2009 40,387
o —E—TEFHUK in 2010 and after 38,200
RZZEZELF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzLHFEE 31st December 2007 89,148
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Nanhai Junjing Bay
HBEERE

Huang Qi Yan Li Road, Foshan, Nanhai District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BB LR e E B (BEH 100% 1 7))

75K
Sg.m.
P LA TR B Al 58 T Construction to be completed
e T )N\F in 2008 77,855
e —TTNF in 2009 23,746
o —T—TFgPUE in 2010 and after 638,605
RZEZ+F+=A Land bank as at
=t+—HzZ TH#HE 31st December 2007 740,206

Guangzhou Jiahe Commercial City
BE N = AR R

Guangzhou Road South, Haizhu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
EMNTEREREMKER (FEH100% &)

5 K
Sg.m.
HE R LA T e fAl 582 T Construction to be completed
e T —TFYPAE in 2010 and after 178,983
R-_ZEE+F+ A Land bank as at
=t+—BztHHE 31st December 2007 178,983

Hopson Yujing Mid-level
sE#E=*W

Honbenggang Reservoir, Shiling Town, Huadu District, Guangzhou (100% owned)
& N T AE #B [ M S5 SR AT AR K B (BEH 100%#E 75)

F K
Sg.m.

AR LA TR fEl 52 T Construction to be completed
e —TTNF in 2009 55,491
o — T —TF AR in 2010 and after 329,019
R-_ET+F+— A Land bank as at
=t+—B2ztHf#EE  31st December 2007 384,510
Guangzhou Jiufo Machao Project
EMhEHER
Jiufo Machao Industry Town, Guangzhou (55% owned)
BT HES ST EN (BEH55%HE )
Tk
Sg.m.
HERA TR 52 T Construction to be completed
o — T —TFLAR in 2010 and after 193,513
R_EZL+F+_A Land bank as at
=+—HztfEE  31st December 2007 193,513
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Guangzhou Southern Yuexiu Plaza

EMEAEFES

46

No. 198, Xiaobei Road, Yuexiu District, Guangzhou (51% owned)
BEMH#FE L& 1985 (HH51%# 25)

F 5K
Sg.m.
AP LA T B Al 52 T Construction to be completed
e —TTNF in 2009 132,518
R_EZ+F+_A Land bank as at
=+—HZztRERE  31st December 2007 132,518
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Rainbow Bridge
F AL 1B

-
©
L
v
O)
-
O
L
N

°
i Xian Lake Park
BALHDE
/ m\
Zhongshan Town /
B L T

15. Zhongshan Torch Project A |1 X /ETE B
16. Zhongshan Dongkeng Project A || 5 3178 B
17. Zhongshan Rainbow Project |1 |1 % 41 18 B

Zhongshan Torch Project
B K KE IR B

Ling Gang District, Huo Ju development zone, Zhongshan (100% owned)
AR L T KOKE B 8% [ B e [ (BB 100 % HE 75)

K
Sg.m.
R A T B 52 T Construction to be completed
s —_ETNF in 2009 80,000
o — T —FTFYLAE in 2010 and after 119,822
R_EZELF+_A Land bank as at
=+ —HBztiREE 31st December 2007 199,822
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Zhongshan Dongkeng Project
RILEHRIEB

Dongkeng, South District, Zhongshan (100% owned)
fllmEER (HEH100%H# &)

K
Sg.m.
AN NEIE B Construction to be completed
o —T—FFYPAE in 2010 and after 328,828
RZZBTLE+A Land bank as at
=t+t—BHztifEE 31st December 2007 328,828
17 Zhongshan Rainbow Project

FILFUIRE

Cai Hong planning zone, West District, Zhongshan (100% owned)
Pl ARZITREE (HEH100%E %)

50K
Sg.m.
VNIV INS B Construction to be completed
o — T —TFLAR in 2010 and after 349,388
R=ZEZTtF+=A Land bank as at
=+—HzLihFEE 31st December 2007 349,388
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Ziyun Villa Project
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Guangdong Zengcheng City, XintangTown, Guangzhou (100% owned)
BREBEBHDHEERENE (FEH100%E)

5K
Sg.m.
NN Construction to be completed
o “ETN\F in 2008 81,819
« —EBFNF in 2009 121,626
e —E—THYE in 2010 and after 1,241,380
R-_EZLF+ -8 Land bank as at
=+t—Hztif#E#E  31st December 2007 1,444,825
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Huizhou World Island Project

Maliao, Dahe Village, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)

ST STt [ AB D N L i 2 B T K B AR - 5 B £
(FEE100%HE)
K
Sg.m.
18 B8 LA TR B ) 58 T Construction to be completed
e _TETNF in 2008 51,760
s —ETNF in 2009 128,546
o« —F— Eiajzwfz in 2010 and after 1,573,644
RIEBEZLF+ = Land bank as at
=+—H Ziiﬂzﬁ%{% 31st December 2007 1,753,950

Huizhou Regal Riviera Bay

BEMERBIRE

Wenchangyi Road, Jiangbei District, Huizhou (100% owned)
NI EXE -] (FEH100%E)

F K
Sq.m.
[ EI Construction completed 31,881
YNNI Construction to be completed
« _TET)\F in 2008 43,631
« —ETNF in 2009 137,369
o _ T —TFHYLUIR in 2010 and after 378,665
R_ZEZLF+_A Land bank as at
=t+—BZzLtif#®E  31st December 2007 591,546

Yaxin Gardens, Lianhe Village, Shuikou Town, Huizhou (100% owned)

FENK OEEFAHIEE (EH100%E5)

Hopson International New City

BT RE

50K
Sg.m.
BT Construction completed 69,848
B A TR =T Construction to be completed
s —ET)N\F in 2008 38,558
c —TTNEF in 2009 176,644
e T —TFHLAE  in 2010 and after 876,891
R-ZZLF+—H  Lland bank as at
=t—HztihEE 31st December 2007 1,161,941
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N. Chaoyang Road #15 1t &

;
T
i
I
Ritan Park &
BHEA P Chaoyang Road &35 7%
H
Beijing Youyi 75 £ Chaoyang
eI 2 2 #BE
=
Jianguomenwai St. 22 B8 F94) A 3 Jianguo Road Z4[3 &
:
Tonghui River 3 5]

Guangqumenwai St. & 2 P40 K Guangqu Road [ 3 %

22. Beijing Regal Court 3t R KT 76 &

23. Beijing Citta Eterna 1t R 78 55 52 &

24. Hopson International Garden & 4 Bl BR 7€ &

25. Beijing Xinjingrun Project 1t 5 5B 1E B

26. Beijing Dongfangwenhua Project 1t 5 8 5 X 218 H
27. Beijing Deshang Building 1t 5 12 5 A B

28. Beijing Wangjing Project 1t 5 2 72 78 B

Beijing Regal Court
LEFEHKIF=

23 Xidawang Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
I EHEGERARERE235 (EE100%E:)

FEoKR
Sg.m.
Bl Construction completed 114,399
ERUATRBTI Construction to be completed
e TN\ F in 2008 86,259
e —TTNF in 2009 77,479
e —ZE—THLA%E  in 2010 and after 248,843
R_EZELF+_A Land bank as at
=+—HztiEE  31st December 2007 526,980
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Beijing Citta Eterna
tRESZE

Gan Lu Yuan, Qingnian Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (100% owned)
TRTHEESFREEE (FEE100%EsR)

EH K

Sg.m.

H%E/\L/(TH% G Construction to be completed 17,157

o —EEN\F in 2008 80,906

o« — T —FTEF LA in 2010 and after 72,116
R-_ZEZLFE+_H4 Land bank as at

=+—RB 2z tHfEE  31st December 2007 170,179

Hopson International Garden
B EBERFE

South of international trade bridge of Chaoyang district, inside
East 3rd Ring Road, Beijing (100% owned)
TEMEHGREERRE  RERR (HEH100%E)

5K
Sg.m.
2L Construction completed 6,339
BRI TERETT Construction to be completed
e _TT)\F in 2008 83,981
RZZETLF+= Land bank as at
=1— ElZifMﬁ{ﬁ 31st December 2007 90,320
Beijing Xinjingrun Project
tEHEEER
18 Xiaoyun Road, Chaoyang District, Beijing (80% owned)
ERTEBEEER (HEH80%ER)
F K
Sg.m.
5P LA TR B R 52 T Construction to be completed
s _TTNEF in 2009 180,050
o — T —TFG LA in 2010 and after 711,910
R-ZEE+F+—A Land bank as at
=t+—HBztihf#EE 31st December 2007 891,960

Beijing Dongfangwenhua Project
EtEREAXEIERE

No. D4 Dongsi Redevelopment Area, Dongcheng District, Beijing (60.98% owned)
ERTRBERBHNEDAS (HH60.98%E )

oK
Sg.m.
BRATERETT Construction to be completed
o —_TEET N F in 2009 92,055
RZZZELF+A Land bank as at
=t+—RztTii#EE 31st December 2007 92,055
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Beijing Deshang Building

LtREBKE

Beijing Wangjing Project

27.

De Wai Guan Xiang, Xicheng District, Beijing (100% owned)
bR A EEINERE (BEE100%Ex)

0K
Sg.m.
NN Construction to be completed
o —_E—FTFYPURE in 2010 and after 70,936
RZBEZLF+_-A Land bank as at
=t+—B2ztihfEE 31st December 2007 70,936

EtRERIER

Beijing Chaoyang District, Wang Jing Culture and Entertainment Project (100% owned)
ERERLIRGE(B30)HE (HEH100%HEE)

5K
Sg.m.
=N Construction to be completed
o —E—THEFLAE in 2010 and after 153,469
R-TE+F+_-H Land bank as at
=t+—B2ztifHEE 31st December 2007 153,469
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Shanghai Hopson Town

. Shanghai Hopson Town & & 4 35 5

. Shanghai Hopson International Tower F/&4& 4 B KE

. Shanghai Yangpu Xuchang Road Project /818 5 & 15 B

. Shanghai Sheshan Dongziyuan £ /&4 [l & E

. Hopson Lantern Garden & 4 BAZEE

. Shanghai Dongjing Project /& "< 18 B

. Shanghai Yu Tai Project +/84fZ=1E R

. Shanghai Yizeyuan Project /&RE2%518 B

. Shanghai Zhongxian International 292 Project 8/ f B¢ 29218 B

EEES LW

54

518, Anling Road, Minhang District, Shanghai (100% owned)

FEBTEZERS518% (HA 100%E %) )

5K
Sq.m.

25T Construction completed 7,011

A LA T B FEl 58 T Construction to be completed

e —TT)N\F in 2008 117,458

e ZTTNF in 2009 129,037

e T —TFHLAE in 2010 and after 121,506

R-EELF+_A Land bank as at

= t+—HzLHHFEE 31st December 2007 375,012
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Lane 9 Block 5, Meiyuan Road, Pudong New District, Shanghai

Shanghai Hopson International Tower

EESEREBXE

(Contracted to dispose in 2006)
TERRFESEHEMMSE (RZEEAFEENHE)

77K
Sg.m.
1A LA T Bl 58 T Construction to be completed 82,671
e —ET)\F in 2008
R_EZLF+_A Land bank as at
=t+—BzZtiFEE 31st December 2007 82,671

Shanghai Yangpu Xuchang Road Project

LtBBHEFEREE

Xuchang Road, Shanghai (100% owned)

EiBFER (BEH100%E %)
IR
Sg.m.
1B LA T B il 58 T Construction to be completed
o _E-—TFFLUE in 2010 and after 57,373
R=ZZEZ+LF+=A Land bank as at
=t+t—HzLHHE 31st December 2007 57,373
Shanghai Sheshan Dongziyuan
EBRILEE
Land Parcels, No. 9 and No. 10, Sheshan National Holiday Resort,
Shanghai (100% owned)
b3 g L B SR 3 B 1R I 955 105 3t 358 (5 100%4E %5 )
IR
Sg.m.
HE R LA T e Al 58 T Construction to be completed
s —TT)\F in 2008 71,270
o —E—TFEPLIE in 2010 and after 54,878
R=ZEZT+F+=A Land bank as at
=+—HztfFEE  31st December 2007 126,148

New City Area, Zhaoxiang Town, Qingpu, Shanghai (100% owned)

Hopson Lantern Garden

BHEHER

EEEREBENNE (FEH100%E %)

5K
Sg.m.
25T Construction completed 6,913
LA T e Al 58 T Construction to be completed
o — T N\F in 2008 71,903
R-_ZBEELE+_-A Land bank as at
= t+t—HzLHHE 31st December 2007 78,816
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Shanghai Dongjing Project
EiBEEIEE

Site B, No. 10, Dongjing Town, Song Jiang District, Shanghai (90% owned)
EBMTRIERE 1037 Bit HR (FEH 90%E )

FH K
Sg.m.
1 LA T B il 58 T Construction to be completed
s —_ETN\F in 2008 18,120
o —TE—TF AR in 2010 and after 113,109
—EZEF+ZH Land bank as at
_‘1' B2 t#fE#  31st December 2007 131,229
Shanghai Yu Tai Project
tiB#RIER
Sites C-4-2 and C-5, Jingiao-Zhangjiang District,
New Pudong Area, Shanghai (100% owned)
FHHERFBEEE - RIMEC-4-2FC-511 38 (FEH 100%KE 3% ) )
73K
Sg.m.
R A T B 52 T Construction to be completed
o —TET)\F in 2008 24,628
« _TTNF in 2009 37,793
R-IZEZLFE+ = Land bank as at
=+—H Ziiﬂg{;ﬁﬁ 31st December 2007 62,421

Shanghai Yizeyuan Project
EiBEZEREE

Land Parcel No. 5 Zhaoxiang Town, Qingpu, Shanghai (94% owned)
EEmEHEEBESR I (EHU%ER)

5K
Sg.m.
BRATHERBRTLT Construction to be completed
e —ETTNF in 2009 60,000
o — T —TFEH L% in 2010 and after 58,681
R-ZEZELFE+=A Land bank as at
=t+—BztfEE  31st December 2007 118,681
Shanghai Zhongxian International 292 Project 37
LB EREE292IHE
292 Jiefeng Yangpu District, Shanghai (100% owned)
LB BAE292H 3 (HEH 100%#E =)
Sg.m.
158 LA T s il 58 T Construction to be completed
o _E—TFFHIUE in 2010 and after 314,900
RZZEZELF+ A Land bank as at
=t+—HzLHHE 31st December 2007 314,900
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38. Hangzhou Technology Digital Plaza Project #i /N & & & Ein1E R

Hangzhou Technology Digital Plaza Project
MBI R BIRESEEB

327 Tianmushan Road, Xihu District, Hangzhou City, Zhejiang Province
(95% owned)
ACIRBN T SRR B ILEE3275% (HEH95%E5)

FHK
Sg.m.
15 58 LA TR B il € T Construction to be completed
o —T—TFHLIE in 2010 and after 88,205
R-_ZEZL+F+ A Land bank as at
—+—HBztHfFHHE  31st December 2007 88,205
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39. Ningbo Gaojiaoyuan District Project 22 )% /= 2K & [& 78 B

Photo

Ningbo Gaojiaoyuan District Project
ERSHERER

Land Parcels No. 1-6, Gaojiaoyuan Core District North,
Hai Xin City, Ningbo (100% owned)
SR EEHN e A EEZ OB AI1-655 ik

(HEB100% %)

Sg.m.
1 58 LA TS B 58 T Construction to be completed
o —ETET )N\ F in 2008 65,624
e —TTNF in 2009 67,473
o — T —FTEFPLIE in 2010 and after 405,806
R-TBEZE+LE+—H Land bank as at
=+—HzLifF#H  31st December 2007 538,923
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: Beijing
~~~~ . =

Baodi District
=R

O

He Ping District
AN HE

40. Tianjin Jingjin New Town X2 52 373,
41. Tianjin Regal Riviera Bay Project &) % & /& 18 B
42. Tianjin Ge Tian Building XZ#& X A&

Tianjin Jingjin New Town
KET R

Baodi District, Tianjin (70% owned)
FKEMERE (BEH70% )

Sg.m.
BExT Construction completed 187,603
1 B8 LA TS B ] 58 T Construction to be completed
e —ETETNF in 2008 206,743
s _TETNF in 2009 199,850
o _ T —TFHLUAR in 2010 and after 3,065,962
R-_EZLF+_H Land bank as at
=t+—HzTHEE  31st December 2007 3,660,158
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Tianjin Regal Riviera Bay Project
XEFREHEE

Fu An Main Road and Xing An Road Border, He Ping District, Tianjin
(98.9% owned)
RETHFBRBELZAGREZERZA (LZEHE) (HFEH8.90%Ex)

75K
Sg.m.
1 7S LA TS B ] 58 T Construction to be completed
o —E—TFYLAE in 2010 and after 134,550
R-_ZTZLFE+_H4 Land bank as at
=+—HB2z ik  31st December 2007 134,550

Tianjin Ge Tian Building
REBBIKE

Interchange between Wei Jin Road and Shui Shang North Road,
Nan Kai District, Tianjin (100% owned)
RETHHEEEMEEK RO (HE100%Es)

Sg.m.
1 8 LA TS B il 58 T Construction to be completed
e —E—THFYPE in 2010 and after 137,120
R-EZLF+ =8 Land bank as at
=t+—BZ M FEE 31st December 2007 137,120
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43. Shanxi Taiyuan Tongye Project |l 75 A /Rt 218 B

Shanxi Taiyuan Tongye Project
A AREIXIER

West of Bing Zhou Road,East of Ti Yu Road and North of Er Ying Pan Street, Taiyuan (100% owned)
AR FHMEE AT - BBARUR » —&BEHUIt (HEE100%ER)

750K
Sg.m.
A N 52 T Construction to be completed
e ZTETNF in 2009 91,432
e — T —TEFHIE in 2010 and after 248,568
RZZEZLF+_A Land bank as at
=t+—HztHf#EE  31st December 2007 340,000
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Lu Shun Kou Station
Bt B A 3

Tie Shan Zhen
81 8&

44. Dalian Lushun Hopson Dijing Yuan Project A& ik/IE& 4 7 = 5518 B

Dalian Lushun Hopson Dijing Yuan Project
RERIBEEEFRIEE

Nan Ya Village,Lu Shun Kou District, Dalian (100% owned)
REMHRIEA &R FA (#EE 100%E )

T 5K
Sg.m.
R LA TR E 5T Construction to be completed
e —TTN\F in 2008 56,559
e —TTNF in 2009 146,252
o ~ T —TFEHPUE in 2010 and after 305,476
R-EZELF+_A Land bank as at
=t+—HztHf#EE  31st December 2007 508,287
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Investment Property Factsheet

Details of the investment properties of the Group as at 31st

December 2007 are as follows:

XEMFRE—

B

RZZZELEF+-_A=+—RH1t SERENE

ol

Approximate

Group’s interest Existing use gross floor area
Location B SEMEER Balf%E MAOEEEEEE
Phases 5A, 6A, 6B, 6C and 6D TEAEEREEMT 100% Commercial/retail 64,709 sq.m.
Huajing New City RO [ 1L KB 1055 and carparking 64,709 75 3K
105 Zhongshan Avenue ERHWMELA HE/TEREBS
Tianhe District 6A * 6B * 6C 6D
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
Phase 2, Jinan Garden PEAEEREEMT 90% Commercial/retail 10,373 sq.m.
South side of Zhongshan Avenue FAEFRLKEFRRE HE/TE 10,3731 #
Tianhe District BEHItEE 8
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
Phases 1, 2 and 3 HEREREREEMMT 90% Commercial/retail 22,324 sq.m.
Fairview Garden V8 IR [ 37 75 7 BR 238 5% and carparking 22,324 F F5 3
238 Xingang West Road WMEREE— —R=H ¥/ ZERFEES
Haizhu District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
Phases 1, 2 and 3 B REREREEMM 95% Commercial/retail 2,105 sq.m.
Gallopade Park AAEPILUAEBE and carparking 2,105 75 %
South side of Zhongshan Avenue BEREE— —R=H HE/TEREES
Tianhe District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
Phases 1 and 2, Regal Court HEAEEREEMT 100% Commercial/retail 24,355 sq.m.
East side of Longkou West Road AUBEOAKEM and carparking 24,355 5 K
Tianhe District TERE—R_H HEYES B2E g
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
Gallopade Park-South Court FEREREREEMMT 95% Commercial/retail 29,490 sq.m.
South side of Zhongshan Avenue RAEHRLKERE and carparking 29,490 7 %
Tianhe District BeitE-mit BE/TEREEYR
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China

* &l SEERAA ZZTTET L FEFR 63



Investment Property Factsheet

YEYME—BEXR

Approximate

Group's interest Existing use gross floor area
Location B SEMEER Balf%E MAOEEEEERE
Fairview South Court B REREREEMM 70% Commercial/retail 1,514 sq.m.
212 Xingang West Road BIREFBAE 2125 and carparking 1,514 F J5 3
Haizhu District b=4:2E BE/TEREES
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
East and Central area of HEREREREEMM 94.98% Commercial/retail 32,323 sq.m.
Pleasant View Garden BHREEMAERAT and carparking 32,323 7%
West side of Guangzhou BREREARENTE BE/TEREES
Avenue Haizhu District
Guangzhou
Guangdong Province
Mainland China
Phase 1, Huanan New City FEAERREREMT 99% Commercial/retail 65,669 sq.m.
Panyu District E8E and carparking 65,669 F 77 K
Guangzhou EETHE B BE/TEREES

Guangdong Province
Mainland China
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Directors’s Profile
FEEI

Executive Directors

HITES

CHU Mang Yee, aged 48, is our Chairman and one of our founders. Mr. Chu has over 20
years' experience in trading, construction, property investment and development. He is also a
member of the China People’s Political Liaison Committee, an Honored Citizen of Meizhou,
Guangdong Province and the Vice Chairman of Guangdong Research Institute for the
Development of Corporate Strategy.

KRB - 485% - ARFERE - WAREENED—(LAIPA - RELETEES BE  WERERFRITA
HAEB— &R - RIAZERBES  BEREWMNMEABTRMEROXERRBARLEGE -

XIANG Bin, aged 59, is our Deputy Chairman. Mr. Xiang is a Chinese Career Manager and
senior engineer. Mr. Xiang was on the senior management of a public listed company before
joining the Group in February 2001. He has over 35 years’ experience in construction and
administration management.

IR - 595% - ARFRIERE - BAREHEATESRTMBMELCENSRIIZMNEE - R —F = A
BAEEA  BEER—LTRARNSRERALR - (HERERTHERHEZERB=+HLFLR -

ZHAO Hai, aged 52, is the Deputy Chairman of the Board and joined the Company in
2007. He was the Senior Vice President of Development (China Region) of a large scale
multi-national hotel group prior to joining the Group. Mr. Zhao had also worked for two
prominent hotel groups and has 24 years of experience in international hotel management.
He participated in the business planning of large scale residential and commercial complex
projects in recent years and attained respective experience.

i 5258  ARFEEREILE © N2007FIMARRE o 2 HIE—FKAR BRI E S B BE #5%
BEREIBE - BAETSESINNRERBEEBRER - 524F0BEBEEEEFANLR < TFRS
BT AMEFENAEGARERNBERILERS T AHRR -

WU lJiesi, aged 56, was our Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director. Mr. Wu holds a
doctorate degree in economics. Prior to joining the Group in 2005, Mr. Wu was the president
of a branch of a state-owned commercial bank. Mr. Wu was also the Deputy Mayor of the
Shenzhen Municipal Government, the assistant to the Governor of Guangdong Province
and the chairman of a large-scale conglomerate, specializing in restructuring state-owned
enterprises. Mr. Wu has extensive banking and governmental experience. Mr. Wu resigned as
the Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director on 17th January 2008.

BIER - s6px 0 ATTHAHLESHLE - KAEAHAKESB LM - R-TTRFNBEANEEF - 5
—HEZRTOTITE - NEENEARTRAEENE  BEREERDEL —HWARGALEZERE
SEEZMXEAE - RALHELERTABUFESR - REER _ZENF— AT L ABHETREEFE
BRI
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Directors’s Profile

EESlV

CHEN Changying, aged 40, Executive Director and Chief Executive Officer. Mr. Chen holds a
master degree in engineering and is a senior engineer. He joined Hopson in 2003. Mr. Chen
was previously on the senior management of a subsidiary of a listed company. He has over
10 years of experience in civil engineering, property investment, marketing management and
enterprise management and is the Chairman of Beijing Guangdong Enterprise Commercial
Association.

FRRE - RFI05 MTEFRITHER - REERIESBRLIRESRITEM - R-_TZ=FNEA4
ZAA—LETRRZMBARNSRERAS - REEELREE  WERE  SHEERMGEER

B THELE > TRELRERCERNEER -

AU Wai Kin, aged 52, is an Executive Director. Mr. Au joined the Group in 1995. He is also
a director of our other member companies. Mr. Au graduated from Zhongshan University,
Guangzhou, and has over 20 years' experience in building construction, town planning, real
estate investment and property development.

BEE 5258 UITES - REARN - NNAEFMBEAERE  URAKEHMKERRZES - WEER
FENRILAE - BUEAEETRE MRS MERERYEERRTEEL — +FE%B

XUE Hu, aged 42, Executive Director and Executive Vice President of the Group. Mr. Xue
graduated from Zhongshan University and obtained a master degree in business administration,
a senior economist. He once worked for higher education institutes and large-size state-owned
enterprises in PRC. Mr. Xue joined the Group in 1994 and has over ten years of experience in
real estate investment, marketing management and enterprise management.

CIRFA2R PITEERAKERBEGH - BEERERTUAST R TRHERBRLEM ALK
o BEBNBEASFHRREAMEARE - —NWNMOFNBEREE  EFEHERSE - SHEE X

E f%ﬁ@ﬁfiJrii“(

XIAO Yan Xia, aged 46, is an Executive Director. Ms. Xiao joined the Group in 1995. She
holds a master’s degree in economics from Zhongshan University and is presently one of our
General Managers and a director of our other member companies. Ms. Xiao has over 15
years' experience in investment research and capital management.

BB 4608 ITEF - BLIRN—NNAFMBREE - REENBEMNPILARSLHR - BRELSE

i REAARELR (RS  WAREERERALTEE - BLLERETRLEATEHE
M+ FEEAEE -
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Directors’s Profile
EE/IT

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BIFPITES

YUEN Pak Yiu, Philip, aged 73, is a retired solicitor and is a director of a number of listed
companies. He is a China Appointed Attesting Officer in Hong Kong and panel member of the
China International Economic & Trade Arbitration Commission. Mr. Yuen has been a member
of our Board since 1998.

Briti® - 735% - MA—RRAEMRET EHARZES - RAEFENTHEEEAFARTEEREE
FHREZEGZAEAN - ELEBE-NNN\FRREEGKE -

LEE Tsung Hei, David, BBS, JR aged 58, is an Independent Non-Executive Director. Mr. Lee
is an Executive Director of PY Development Management Limited. He qualified as a Chartered
Valuation Surveyor in 1973 and registered as an Authorised Person in 1977. He is a fellow of
the Hong Kong Institute of Surveyors, a Registered Professional Surveyor, an associate of the
Incorporated Society of Valuers and Auctioneers, and an associate of the Chartered Institute
of Arbitrators. Mr. Lee is a former member of the Central Policy Unit, which is known as the
Government “Think Tank”, a past Chairman of the Hong Kong Housing Society, a former
director of Hong Kong Cyberport Management Company Limited and a former Council
member of Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He is currently a member of the Land and
Building Advisory Committee, a member of the Salvation Army Advisory Board, Chairman of
the Property Advisory Committee of the Salvation Army. Mr. Lee has been a member of our
Board since 1998.

FER - WEHEE - KFHL 585 BUFRTESR - FRERREUREBAFZHITES - GR-NE=FREBERFFIZME
B UR—NEEFAMA/RITAL - RATEASMBSEREE  TEAMEXV2M  KREGEERNEMNES S E MR FRAZ
BEE - FELLRBERNPABKAEABRNEERE) 2AEE BEFERSANLIR  HEHHEERERAFZAMEERFEETIAE
AIRE - FREATELWIERFEAZESERE MU FEHZESZENNEENEERZEGIE - FTREE - NN\ FRREES
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Directors’s Profile
EERIT

WONG Shing Kay, Oliver, aged 56, is an Independent Non-Executive Director. Mr. Wong
obtained his professional accounting qualifications in both Hong Kong and Canada. Mr. Wong
is an associate member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales and a
fellow member of the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants of the United Kingdom.
Mr. Wong is also a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
an ordinary member of The Society of Chinese Accountants and Auditors and an associate
member of the Certified General Accountants of Canada. Mr. Wong had worked in various
renowned auditing firms in Hong Kong with over 15 years’ experience in handling auditing,
financial accounting and taxation matters. Mr. Wong is currently appointed as an independent
non-executive director and a member of Audit Committee of several listed companies in Hong
Kong. He has also assumed the duty of financial controller for several listed companies in both Hong Kong and Canada for
over 10 years. Mr. Wong is presently practicing as a Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. He has expertise in financial
accounting, taxation, import-export business and company management. Mr. Wong has been a member of our Board since
1998.

EARE - 565%  BIFHITES - EEENEERNEARIGEMSHAER - BN ARSI KRBT ARG ATEREE -
ERGHIAGREERGHE  BEBEAGHAAGGERNEREME A MELETELHMARBE Gt EHM TEBBTRF
BEREENEN VB MRBREELR SAERBNE TEELTARZEYIFNTEENEAEZEGELE G HEZHEELMN
SERETRRZMISRERAEHHF - RENTEAZMEEE0DHE - BEREHNUB S B EHOEBRAREEHEREZ
Rl BELEB - NNNFRREEGHKE -

Non Executive Director

EHITES

SHAFRAN Steven, aged 48, is a Non-Executive Director. Mr. Shafran is the chief executive
officer and the founder of AMRI Financial Group Hong Kong Limited, a Hong Kong based
financial advisory firm. Mr. Shafran was a managing director and partner of Goldman Sachs,
where he was responsible for the firm’s merchant banking and private equity business in non-
Japan Asia from 1993 through 2000. He joined Goldman Sachs in 1986 and was based in
New York before moving to Hong Kong in 1993. Mr. Shafran has substantial private equity
and distressed asset investment experience throughout Asia, including the Greater China
region, India and Southeast Asia. Mr. Shafran holds an MBA from Harvard University and a BA
from the University of California at Berkeley.

FEERE) - IRFA8ET - IEITEF © ML E AT B LRI A]AMRIFinandal Group HongKong Limited 2 TR AR ELFEBIHE A » ML E B AeRER 2
BBESFHENA  R—NAN=ZFE2_TTFH  FTZATREHFEERZDMBE 2 ARITRLAERGEFS o RN SENA
BE MR—AN=FRATEEZR  —EEMNRRARIE AETENEARABRARERTREERETARELELE - HRE
18 BB IE R EE - ENE KRR - ARG ERRHARE 2 THERE 20 RN KERE RS 2 ST 24 -
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Senior Management’s Profile

Senior Management Profile of the Company

ZHAO Mingfeng, aged 53, Chief Financial Officer of the Group.
She holds a bachelor degree in Economics, a senior accountant and
a certified accountant in PRC. Prior to joining the Group in 2007, she
was Vice President of a large listed group. Since 1982, Ms. Zhao had
worked in different financial management positions at provincial level
and municipal level of the People’s Bank of China and large enterprises
respectively. She has extensive experience in financial management and
finance field.

ZHU Gouxing, aged 58, Vice-president of the Group, President of
Commercial Property Headquarter and General Manager of Eastern
China Commercial Property Company. Mr. Zhu holds a master degree
and qualified as a senior economist and a certified accountant in PRC.
He was appointed as Head of Financial and Taxation Bureau in Zhabei
District, Shanghai, Head of Financial and Taxation Bureau and Head
of Audit Bureau in Pudong New Area, Shanghai and the president of
a large-scale state-owned group since 1988. He is the Chairman of
Industry Association in Lujiazui, Shanghai, Vice-chairman of Commercial
Association in Pudong New Area, Shanghai. Mr. Zhu has extensive
management experiences in commercial property industry and has in
depth knowledge in the operation and administration of office building,
hotel, shopping mall and hi-technology software park.

LIAO Ruoqing, aged 44, Vice President of the Group. Mr. Liao
graduated from Zhongshan University in Guangzhou and obtained
a master degree in the University of Western Sydney. He has been
engaged in real estate investment and business management for over
10 years, and has extensive experience in the managing government
agencies and legal affairs and investment development.

XIN Zhu, aged 39, Vice-president of the Group. She graduated from
Renmin University of PRC and Business Institute of Auckland, New
Zealand and obtained a master degree in business administration. She
is a certified accountant in PRC. Ms. Xin once worked in a famous
accounting firm and a large-scale state-owned enterprise. She has
extensive management experience in finance, audit, budget and
financial information system. Before joining the Group in 2006, she
was on the senior management of a subsidiary of a listed company.

ZHANG Han Qiu, aged 38, Vice President of the Group. He graduated
from Chongging University and is an architect. Mr. Zhang once worked
as an architectural designer for several provincial level research institutes
on architectural design. Mr. Zhang joined the Group in 1997 and has
extensive experience in real estate architectural designs and operational
management.

ZHENG Yaoqin, aged 46, Vice President of the Group. Mr. Zheng
holds a master degree in business administration and qualified as a
senior engineer. He has been engaged in the real estate construction
and has over twenty years of experience in real estate construction,
and construction project management.

A REEARAR

I

—F %

EREEABBN

HRAE 5358 AREM SRR KEZEL 2R
Bh - EIEMEETED - — TR FINBEAREE 2 A S E—
RE FHEERRE - —NWN\ZFURDBIEDEARRT
BT W7 RBLERIBEMEEERY - KAFLENH
BEELSBMEETEA TR -
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Senior Management’s Profile

EREEAEREN

SHEN Huirong, aged 55, Vice President of the Group and Chairman
of the Hotel Group. Ms. Shen graduated from Beijing Foreign Language
Studies Institute. Prior to joining the Group in 2005, Ms. Shen was
Head of International Relations Promotion Office of National Tourism
Bureau. Ms. Shen engages in tourist industry for considerable years and
has extensive experience in marketing and international relations.

XU Hong, aged 39, Assistant to President of the Group, Chairman
and General Manger of the eastern regional company. She graduated
in the University of Western Sydney, Australia with a master degree
in business administration. Prior to joining the Group in 1994, she
worked in the real estate industry for over ten years and has extensive
experience in land bank, real estate investment, development and
management and project operation.

TAN Ning, aged 35, Assistant to President of the Group. Ms. Tan
graduated from Zhongshan University in Guangzhou and holds a
bachelor degree in law. She also holds a master degree in University of
Western Sydney and is a qualified solicitor. Ms. Tan joined the Group
in 1996 and has been engaged in various aspects in human resources,
legal affairs and corporate culture. She has accumulated extensive
hands-on experience.

ZHANG Liming, aged 40, Assistant to President of the Group. He
graduated in Xinjiang University and is an economist. Mr. Zhang joined
the Group in 2002. He once worked in Shenzhen Local Taxation
Bureau and had been engaged in real estate investment and operation
management for over ten years. He has extensive experience in
government public relations and investment and development.
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Turnover

The Group recorded a significant growth in turnover of 61% from
HK$6,920 million in 2006 to HK$11,131 million in 2007 due mainly
to the increase in selling prices and a high sales volume of properties
delivered of around 1,128,654 square metres of saleable GFA (2006:
963,423 square metres).

In 2007, delivery and completion of properties were largely as planned.
Overall, the average selling price went up by 29% to RMB 9,270 per
square metre (2006: RMB 7,205 per square metre). The increase was
primarily attributable to the continuing strong demand for quality
homes from buyers and a positive property market performance.
Different regions attained different average increases over the previous
year. Guangzhou achieved a most notable increase of 44% following
the inclusion of the renowned project Regal Riviera in the Group's
turnover as from September 2007 and the delivery of some high-
end products from Regal Riviera Villa, Pleasant View Garden, Huanan
New City and Huajing New City. In Beijing, because of a sale-mix of
properties — for instance, price increases of a hefty 50% from Beijing
Regal Court and a modest 6% from Beijing Fresh Life Garden —
an average price increase of 24% was recorded. Shanghai with the
delivery of Hopson Lantern Garden showed a 11% increase. In Tianjin,
Tianjin Jingjin New Town achieved an impressive price increase of 31%.
Huizhou, despite the Group’s relatively new development presence,
secured a price increase of 26% following the delivery of the sizable
project, Hopson International New City.

Cost of Sales

Cost of sales included land and construction costs, decoration and
design costs, capitalized interest and land premium amortization. In line
with the substantial increase in turnover, cost of sales was up by 48%
to HK$6,670 million (2006: HK$4,509 million) but, as a percentage
of turnover, dropped 5% to 60% (2006: 65%) due primarily to more
sales with higher profit margin recognized in 2007.

Gross Profit

Gross profit margin increased from 35% in 2006 to 40% in 2007
due mainly to the general rise in average selling prices, the increase
in economies of scale and the delivery of some new high-end
development projects with high gross margins during the year.
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Other Gains

Other gains comprise : (1) the fair value gains totalling HK$205
million on the acquisition of certain land sites located in Guangzhou,
Huizhou and Shanghai; (2) the negative goodwill of HK$848 million
on the acquisition of a further 30% equity interest in a former jointly
controlled entity, Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodao Real Estate Limited
("GZQREL"); (3) a surplus of HK$387 million from revaluation of
investment properties, and (4) the tax grants of HK$44 million from
government authorities in the mainland.

Operating Costs

The net operating costs relating to expenses for selling, marketing,
general and administration amounted to HK$781 million representing
an increase of 49% from 2006 of HK$525 million. The increase was
mainly due to (1) additional benefits and compensation costs expended
on senior management and staff of new projects; (2) greater outlay
amounts on selling and promotional activities for new projects; (3)
more professional fees incurred towards acquisitions of new projects
and companies; (4) donations made to public welfare organizations
in the PRC and (5) depreciation of new Tianjin Jingjin Hyatt Hotel
and golf course. The increase was, to a certain extent, offset by an
exchange gain of HK$163 million on account of the strengthening of
Renminbi.

Finance Costs

Gross interest before capitalization increased to HK$788 million (2006:
HK$483 million), up HK$305 million or 63%. The increase was mainly
attributable to the additional bank borrowings made in 2007 and the
amortisation of interest expense for the United States Dollar settled
zero coupon convertible bonds of RMB1,830 million due in 2010.
The effective interest rate in respect of the Group’s borrowings was
approximately 7.2% per annum (2006: 6.9%).

Operating Profit

Operating profit in 2007 increased by 116% to HK$5,163 million (2006:
HK$2,391 million), up HK$2,772 million.
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Share of Profit of and Other Gains Relating to
Jointly Controlled Entities

The Group recorded a share of profit from GZQREL, a jointly controlled
entity of HK$18.3 million (2006: HK$128.3 million). The decrease
was partly attributable to the consolidation of GZQREL in the Group’s
accounts from September 2007. Together with the negative goodwill
arising from the acquisition of a jointly controlled entity located in
Beijing of HK$84 million, the share of profit of and other gains relating
to jointly controlled entities decreased by 21% to HK$102 million (2006:
HK$128 million).

Taxation

The Group has assessed the impact of the new Corporate Income
Tax ("CIT") law, which will become effective from, 1st January 2008,
on the deferred tax liabilities as of 31st December 2007. Under the
new CIT law, the applicable enterprise income tax (“EIT") rate will
be reduced to 25% from 33%. The effect of change in EIT rate on
deferred tax liabilities was approximately HK$123 million. As a result,
the effective tax rate for 2007 dropped slightly to 32% (2006: 34%).

Excluding the (1) adjustment made to deferred tax liabilities of HK$123
million; (2) non-taxable items of fair value gains and negative goodwill
amounting to HK$1,053 million, government grants of HK$44 million
and interest income of HK$50 million, and (3) share of profit from
jointly controlled entities of HK$102 million, the effective tax rate for
2007 would have been 45% (2006: 44%).

Profit Attributable to Equity Holders of
the Company

Profit attributable to equity holders was HK$3,517 million for 2007
(2006: HK$1,554 million), up HK$1,963 million or 126%. Fully diluted
earnings per share rose by 98% to HK$2.49. Excluding the effect
of the gain representing the difference of the fair value of interests
acquired over purchase costs amounting to HK$1,137 million and
the gain from investment property revaluation of HK$387 million,
underlying profit was HK$1,993 million, up HK$900 million or 82% as
compared with previous year. The increase was mainly attributable to
the growth of the property development business and the higher profit
margin.
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Segment Information

Property development remains the Group’s core business activity (96%).
The geographical spread of financial performance among different
regions this year was similar to that of 2006, except that Huizhou
increased revenue contribution to the Group from 4% to 13% in 2007.
Guangzhou continued its leading position as top revenue contributor
within the Group (41%), followed by Beijing (32%), Huizhou (13%),
Shanghai (8%) and Tianjin (6%).

Financial Position

As at 31st December 2007, total assets of the Group amounted
to HK$47,933 million and its total liabilities (excluding minority
interests) amounted to HK$27,855 million, representing an increase of
HK$22,229 million and HK$10,378 million respectively on the previous
year. The increase in total assets was mainly attributable to the increase
in (1) investment in new land sites located in Guangdong Province,
Beijing, Shanghai and Tianjin, (2) prepayment of land and acquisition
costs for land sites located in Guangdong Province, Beijing, Shanghai,
Tianjin, Shanxi, Dalian and Qinhuangdao, and (3) acquisition of equity
interests in project companies located in Guangdong Province, Shanghai
and Tianjin. Aligned with this, total liabilities also increased, primarily
due to (1) additional bank borrowings obtained and issue of convertible
bonds to finance development projects and (2) increase in accruals and
other payables and deferred tax liabilities for newly acquired land sites
and companies.

Current ratio increased from 1.88 at last year to 3.43 this year. Equity
increased to HK$20,078 million at 31st December 2007 from HK$8,228
million at 31st December 2006, due mainly to (1) the contribution
from the current year's profit attributable to shareholders; (2) share
placement of 182,232,346 shares; (3) increase in convertible bonds
reserve, currency translation differences reserve and asset revaluation
reserve and; (4) increase in minority interests from newly acquired
equity interests in companies.

74

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

SRR

MEBRBRNAREE 2R LER(6%) - RFEEAEEBLET
EtE S k2 @M ERIRE-ZSTNFRE - HEMNEAR
EEZRFEBBA%EE_ZSTLFZ13% - EREER
FERRNEEZEABABERMEG1 %) BELE - HIREIL
(32%) * BIN(13%) * _EE(8%)RFIE6%) °

FATE AR

RZZBZLF+ZA=+—H AEEEEHEE
47,933,000,0008 - MABBERE(TRIE L ERRE
7 %% ) ¥27,855,000,000 % 7T © 9 Bl X F R B £ A
22,229,000,0005 7T %.10,378,000,00078 7T ° & EE 42 1E 1% A
FEARMRERS b7 - EERKEWREZFibi 2
WEEN: QB RERSE b= B K2 LFE -
REBERFREE 7R 2 T3t RUREER ANTEN FRIBLE A R
QUEBMARERE - BERAZEZEBE AR ZRELN -
Bt - AEAESAE LA EBTENEGEINEITE
BERETARRESAERIEERERQMEIEREA
R SRR A B AE R I8 B E Mk 3T U B 58 | A B IR R
BEEIGIFTEL

RENLLERHEFZI188LFAEAFE 2343 Bz _TT
NE+-HA=1+—H28,228,000,000E T tAHE -TT+
£+ = =+—H220,078,000,0008 7T * £ Z 5 AE (1)
REERREG N2 BB - QIR BLE 182,232,346 %
7 QURRELFHEE ERELEZEREREEEGR
EIG AN R 5 () EFTULHE A RIARAE B D SR SR A== 0 -

Annual Report 2007



Liquidity and Borrowings

As at 31st December 2007, the Group’s liability-to-asset ratio (i.e.
the ratio between total liabilities and total assets, excluding minority
interests) was 58% (2006: 68%). The net debt-to-equity ratio (i.e. total
debt less cash and bank deposits over shareholders’ equity) was 53%
(2006: 73%).

As at 31st December 2007, the Group has cash and short-term bank
deposits amounting to HK$2,262 million (2006: HK$2,570 million)
of which approximately HK$168 million (2006: HK$131 million) were
charged by certain banks in respect of the processing of mortgage
facilities granted by the banks to the buyers of the Group’s properties.
96% of the cash and bank deposits were denominated in Renminbi, 2%
in Hong Kong dollars and 2% in United States dollars.

Total borrowings from banks amounted to HK$8,191 million as at 31st
December 2007 representing an increase of 72% or HK$3,421 million
as compared to those at 31st December 2006. Gearing measured by
net bank borrowings, Guaranteed Senior Notes and Convertible Bonds
less cash and bank deposits as a percentage of shareholders’ equity,
was 52%, down 7 percentage point from 59% as at 31st December
2006. The decrease was mainly due to the issue of new shares for
acquisition of a land site located in Beijing and increase in profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company in 2007.

All of the bank borrowings were either secured or covered by
guarantees and were substantially denominated in Renminbi with
fixed interest rates whereas the United States Dollars denominated
Senior Notes and the Renminbi denominated United States Dollars
settled Convertible Bonds due 2010 were both jointly and severally
guaranteed by certain subsidiaries with fixed interest rate, representing
approximately 63%, 21% and 13%, respectively of the Group’s total
borrowings.

All of the other borrowings were unsecured, interest-free and
substantially denominated in Renminbi.
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Liquidity and Borrowings (Continued) nPEEREE®

The Group’s borrowings repayment profile as at 31st December 2007 4 &@mp-—ZTE+E+ - A=+ —A S SRELES
was as follows: W

As at 31st December 2007
R-BEtF+=-A=+—H

Guaranteed
Bank  Guaranteed Convertible Other
Borrowings  Seniornotes bond  borrowings
R &
RITEE REEBEEE ARRES Htvfe &
(HK$million)
(B&BT)
1 year —FRN 2,899 — — 375 3,274 25%
1-2 years —FEWF 3,590 — — — 3,590 28%
2-5 years —FERF 1,546 2,675 1,753 — 5,974 46%
After 5 years FFE% 156 — — — 156 1%
Total borrowings fEE B 8,191 2,675 1,753 375 12,994

Less: Cash and bank i : B& RIETER

deposits (2,262)
Net borrowings EEF5E 10,732
I

As at 31st December 2006
R-ZEEF+_HA=+—H

Bank Guaranteed Other
Borrowings Senior notes borrowings
RITEE RIJELEE HEEE
(HK$million)
(B8HT)
1 year —FR 1,345 — 1,146 2,491 29%
1-2 years —FEWEF 2,232 — — 2,232 26%
2-5 years —“HFERF 1,193 — — 1,193 14%
After 5 years HF% — 2,652 — 2,652 31%
Total borrowings Eteay 4,770 2,652 1,146 8,568
Less: Cash and bank deposits 5 : ] 4 RIFITER (2,570)
Net borrowings BEFE 5,998
I
1 year
—FR
[ 1-2 years
—FEWE
[T 2-5 years
—EZERE
After 5 year
HEFE#

2007 —EEEHF 2006 —EERE
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Liquidity and Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31st December 2007, the Group had banking facilities of
approximately HK$13,023 million (2006: HK$8,017 million) for short-
term and long-term bank loans, of which HK$4,832 million (2006:
HK$3,247 million) were unutilized.

Financial Guarantee

As at 31st December 2007, the Group provided guarantees to banks
for mortgage facilities granted to buyers of the Group’s properties
which amounted to HK$7,793 million (2006: HK$5,297 million).

Contingent Liabilities

Details of the Group’s contingent liabilities on a pending litigation
are set out in Note 37 to the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.

Charge on Assets

As at 31st December 2007, certain assets of the Group with an
aggregate carrying value of HK$4,363 million (2006: HK$3,811 million)
were pledged with banks for loan facilities used by subsidiaries, a
jointly controlled entity and related companies.
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Commitments

The Group’s commitments as at 31st December 2007 were as follows:

Capital commitments

Contracted but not provided for

— property construction costs
— Acquisition of equity interests in
certain Mainland China entities

— capital contribution to
BJ Dongfangwenhua

Authorized but not contracted for
— Land costs
— Property construction costs

78

B AN

BETAMEREE
— YIRS
— WA TR B
Z I T A

—RIERER T XE
ZEXREE

EREERETL
— AR
—VIREEERA

i
B
=

8

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

iR

RZZBZLF+-_A=+—8  AEBZAENT :

As at 31st
December

R+=A=+-—~
2007
b 2

HK$ million
BEET

As at 31st
December

HK$ million
BEATL

519 248
1,341 1,531
247 241
2,107 2,020
93 168
739 1,528
832 1,696
2,939 3,716
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Commitments (Continued) AIE ()
As at 31st As at 31st
December December
R+=—H=+—8H B+=—A=+—8
2007 2006
—EELF ZETREF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEAT BEBT
Property development commitments LE LI
Contracted but not provided for BETHVE R
— Property construction costs — VIR AR N 5,326 5,656
Authorized but not contracted for EREERTH
— Land costs — T HBARAR 2,872 1,346
— Property construction costs R /ES= % 1% 20,709 16,230
23,581 17,576
28,907 23,232

The Group's share of capital commitments of the jointly controlled  WAREEE F3 7 AEEE(E—HERZEHIERE 2 E40%8E

entity not included in the above were as follows: R

As at 31st As at 31st
December December
R+=A=+—H R+=A=+—H~
2007 2006
—EEtHF “TERF
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET AEETT

Contracted but not provided for EHESEES-
— Land costs — T AR - 8
— Property construction costs R/ ESEEADFIN 319 166
319 174

Authorized but not contracted for CRERRTH
— Land costs — TR 63 95
— Property construction costs R /ESCEADFIN 196 986
259 1,081
578 1,255
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Commitments (Continued)

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect of premises
under various non-cancellable operating lease agreements. The future
aggregate minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases are as follows:

TFIFHAN 2 TR

Amounts payable

— Within one year ——%R"
— Within two to five years —ZZRFRN
— After 5 years —REE

With continuous cash inflow from property sales, the banking facilities
available and the cash in hand, the Group should be in an adequate
liquidity position to meet these on-going capital commitments by
stages.

Treasury Policies

The Group adopts a prudent approach with respect to treasury and
funding policies, with a focus on risk management and transactions
that are directly related to the underlying business of the Group.

80

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

RIYE ()

AEERZHABEEMEZ T EHEEEEEHANEE
EHEASE - BETRIHEEHON ARz SEENES
R

As at 31st As at 31st
December December
W+=BA=+—H R+=—A=+—8
2007 2006
—EELF ZETRE
HK$ million HK$ million
BEET BEBIT

27 34

97 136
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148 170
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Report of the Directors
FEEHRS

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together with ZEZEMAREELEEREBMER AT ([ARQAT]) REW
the audited accounts of Hopson Development Holdings Limited (the BARI(ATHBIAERDEBEEZ-_"TTLF+-_A=+—
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (together the “Group”) for the year HBIEFEMFRERLHFZEE o

ended 371st December 2007.

Principal Activities FEXH

The Company is an investment holding company. Its subsidiaries, ARFRA—FEIREZERAR - ETISMELAF - BEQFR
associates and a jointly controlled entity are principally engaged in HEZGHIEBFZHREREZR  WEER  WERE Y
investment holding and property development, investment, property XEEEMKHAEZE

management and hotel operations.

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by activity and their respective AEEHZE_ZT+F+_A=+—HILFERMRES
contributions to operating profit for the year ended 31st December &% EESHHLEE R ERMAOTWT -
2007 by geographical locations is as follows:

Contribution
to operating

Turnover profit

HK$'000 HK$°000

Guangzhou &M 4,526,484 2,866,237
Beijing b 3,605,632 1,095,594
Shanghai = 900,636 420,967
Tianjin RE 626,865 24,172
Huizhou =M 1,471,026 706,942
Others Hi — 48,696
11,130,643 5,162,608

An analysis of the Group’s turnover by business segments for the year AEEHZE-_ZTT+F+_A=+—RIEFEREEIDE
ended 31st December 2007 is as follows: DEVEEBEDIAT -

Turnover
HK$'000
Property development V¥R 10,722,391
Property investment MEKRE 57,548
Property management MEEE 235,191
Hotel operations T E & E 115,513

11,130,643
I
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Report of the Directors
EEEHE

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year ended 31st December 2007, the five largest customers
of the Group accounted for approximately 1%of the Group’s turnover
while the five largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 36% of
the Group’s purchases. In addition, the largest customer of the Group
accounted for approximately 0.44% of the Group’s turnover while the
largest supplier of the Group accounted for approximately 22% of the
Group’s purchases.

Save for the association with certain related companies as set out in
Note 40 to the accompanying audited accounts, none of the Directors,
their associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) has a
beneficial interest in the Group’s five largest customers or five largest
suppliers.

Results and Appropriations

Details of the Group’s results for the year ended 31st December 2007
are set out in the consolidated income statement on page 115 of this
annual report.

An interim dividend of HK$0.099 per share, totalling HK$145,764,000,
was declared and paid during the year. The Directors recommend
the payment of a final dividend of HK$0.32 per share, which will
bring the total dividends for the year ended 31st December 2007 to
HK$471,158,000.

Share Capital

Details of movements in share capital of the Company are set out in
Note 25 to the accompanying accounts.

Reserves

Movements in reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
year are set out in Note 26 to the accounts.

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31st December 2007,
calculated under the Companies Act of Bermuda, amounted to
HK$3,848,000 (2006: HK$39,957,000).
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Donations

During the year, the Group made charitable donations totalling
HK$34,606,000 (2006:HK$24,580,000) to various charitable
organizations for charitable purposes.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Bye-laws and there is no restriction against such rights under the laws
of Bermuda.

Properties and Equipment and Investment
Properties

Details of movements in properties and equipment and investment

properties of the Group during the year are set out in Notes 7 and 8
to the accounts, respectively.

Subsidiaries and Associates

Particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries and associates are set out in
Notes 13 and 14 to the accounts, respectively.

Borrowings

Particulars of borrowings as at 31st December 2007 are set out in Note
23 to the accounts.

Pension Schemes

Details of the pension schemes are set out in Note 29 to the accounts.

Five Year Financial Summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on pages 226 to 228.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

On 13th April 2006, the Company and Guangdong Hanjiang
Construction Installation Project Limited (“Hanjiang”), being the
respective holding companies of the Group and the Hanjiang Group
(comprising Hanjiang, its subsidiaries and its associates), entered into
a framework agreement (the “Framework Agreement”) setting out,
among other things, the principal terms in respect of services/leased
premises to be provided to the Group by the Hanjiang Group and of
services/leased premises to be provided by the Group to the Hanjiang
Group. The Framework Agreement is effective for a term from 29th
May, 2006 to 31st December 2008. Hanjiang, a company owned by
the brother of Mr. Chu Mang Yee (the controlling shareholder and
chairman of the board of Directors of the Company) (“Mr. Chu") as
to 90 percent. and the brother-in-law of Mr. Chu as to 10 percent., is
a connected person of the Company under the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Hence, the transactions
between the Group and the Hanjiang Group as contemplated under
the Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected transactions
of the Company under the Listing Rules. Details of such continuing
connected transactions are set out as follows:

(i) Construction

For the three years ending 31st December 2008, the Group
may appoint Guangdong Zhujiang Construction Limited (“GZ
Construction”) and Hanjiang to carry out construction works
on certain property development projects of the Group and
Hanjiang agrees to, and/or procure GZ Construction to, carry
out such construction works for the Group. The construction
fees payable by the Group to Hanjiang and GZ Construction
for carrying out construction works for various property projects
of the Group in the PRC shall be determined by the parties
by reference to the market rate charged by independent third
parties for similar construction projects, which shall conform
with the stipulated standards issued by the relevant government
authorities. As mentioned above, Hanjiang is a connected person
of the Company. GZ Construction, a wholly-owned subsidiary
(directly and indirectly) of Hanjiang, is an associate of Hanjiang
and is therefore a connected person of the Company under the
Listing Rules. During the year ended 31st December, 2007, total
construction fees paid/payable by the Group to Hanjiang and
GZ Construction amounted to approximately HK$2,862,087,000
(2006: HK$1,475,868,000).
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(ii)

(iii)

Property management

For the three years ending 31st December 2008, the Group
may appoint Shanghai Hopson Property Management Limited
(“Shanghai Hopson”) to manage certain properties developed
and to be developed by the Group in Shanghai. The amount of
management fees payable by the Group to Shanghai Hopson for
providing management services to the said properties in Shanghai
shall be determined by the parties by reference to the market
rate charged by independent third parties for providing similar
property management services in similar locations. Shanghai
Hopson, an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of Hanjiang, is an
associate of Hanjiang and is therefore a connected person of the
Company under the Listing Rules. During the year ended 31st
December, 2007, management fees paid/payable by the Group
to Shanghai Hopson amounted to approximately HK$2,689,000
(2006: HK$49,000).

Design

For the three years ending 31st December 2008, the Group
may appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out design works for
certain property development projects of the Group and Hanjiang
agrees to procure any member of the Hanjiang Group which is
engaged in the business of property design, to carry out such
design works for the Group. The amount of design fees payable
by the Group to the Hanjiang Group for carrying out the design
works for various property development projects of the Group
shall be determined by the parties by reference to the market
rate charged by independent third parties for similar design
projects, which shall conform with certain standards prescribed
by the relevant government authorities. During the year ended
31st December, 2007, design fees paid/payable by the Group to
the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$24,298,000
(2006: HK$29,814,000).
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

Installation and decoration

For the three years ending 31st December 2008, the Group
may appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out installation and
decoration works for certain property development projects of
the Group and Hanjiang agrees to procure any member of the
Hanjiang Group which is engaged in the business of installation
and decoration, to carry out such installation and decoration
works for the Group. The amount of installation and decoration
fees payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group for carrying
out the installation and decoration works for various property
development projects of the Group shall be determined by the
parties by reference to the market rate charged by independent
third parties for similar installation and decoration projects,
which shall conform with certain standards prescribed by the
relevant government authorities. During the year ended 31st
December, 2007, installation and decoration fees paid/payable by
the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$28,466,000 (2006: HK$24,667,000).

Intelligent-building design and installation

For the three years ending 31st December 2008, the Group
may appoint the Hanjiang Group to carry out intelligent-building
design and installation works for certain property development
projects of the Group and Hanjiang agrees to procure any
member of the Hanjiang Group which is engaged in the business
of intelligent-building design and installation, to carry out such
intelligent-building design and installation works for the Group.
The amount of intelligent-building design and installation fees
payable by the Group to the Hanjiang Group for carrying out
intelligent-building design and installation works for various
property development projects of the Group shall be determined
by the parties by reference to the market rate charged by
independent third parties for similar intelligent-building design
and installation works. During the year ended 31st December,
2007, intelligent-building design and installation fees paid/payable
by the Group to the Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately
HK$18,720,000 (2006: HK$11,161,000).

Office lease

For the three years ending 31st December 2008, the Hanjiang
Group agrees to lease certain premises in Guangzhou in the
aggregate size of approximately 5,200 square meters to the
Group for use as office. The rent payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group will be determined by reference to the market
rents charged by independent third parties for the leasing of
similar properties in the vicinity. During the year ended 31st
December, 2007, rental paid/payable by the Group to the
Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$5,352,000 (2006:
HK$4,974,000).
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(vii) Shop lease

For the three years ending 31st December 2008, the Group
agrees to lease certain premises in Guangzhou in the aggregate
size of approximately 6,200 square meters to the Hanjiang Group
for use as shops. The rent receivable by the Group from the
Hanjiang Group will be determined by reference to the market
rents charged by Group for the leasing of the same or similar
properties to independent third parties. During the year ended
31st December, 2007, there was no rental received/receivable by
the Group from the Hanjiang Group (2006: HK$692,000).

(viii) Vacant property management

For the three years ending 31st December 2008, the Hanjiang
Group may appoint the Group to manage certain vacant
properties of the Hanjiang Group. The amount of management
fees receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang Group will
be determined by the parties by reference to the market rate
charged by independent third parties for providing similar
property management services in similar location, the location
of the vacant properties and the scope of management services
required, which shall conform with the standards prescribed by
the relevant government authorities. During the year ended 31st
December 2007, vacant property management fees received/
receivable by the Group from the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$1,938,000 (2006: HK$4,652,000).

The independent Non-executive Directors have reviewed the
above transactions and confirmed that:

the above transactions have been conducted at arm’s
length between the parties on normal commercial
terms or, if there are not sufficient comparable
transactions to judge whether they are on normal
commercial terms, on terms no less favorable to the
Company than terms to or from (as appropriate)
independent third parties;

@i a.

b.  the above transactions have been entered into in
the ordinary and usual course of the business of the
Group;

C. the above transactions have been carried out in
accordance with the terms of the relevant agreement
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable
and in the interests of the shareholders of the
Company as a whole;
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(ii)

(iif)

(vi)

(vii)

during the year ended 31st December 2007, total
construction fees paid/payable to Hanjiang and GZ
Construction amounted to approximately HK$2,862,087,000
(2006: HK$1,475,868,000), which have not exceeded the
annual construction fees paid/payable to Hanjiang and GZ
Construction in respect of the year concerned as disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 13th April
2006 (the "Announcement”);

during the year ended 31st December 2007, management
fees paid/payable to Shanghai Hopson amounted to
approximately HK$2,689,000 (2006: HK$49,000), which
have not exceeded the annual management fees paid/
payable to Shanghai Hopson in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2007, design
fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$24,298,000 (2006: HK$29,814,000),
which have not exceeded the annual design fees paid/
payable to the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2007, installation
and decoration fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group
amounted to approximately HK$28,466,000 (2006:
HK$24,667,000), which have not exceeded the annual
installation and decoration fees paid/payable to the Hanjiang
Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2007, intelligent-
building design and installation fees paid/payable to the
Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$18,720,000
(2006: HK$11,161,000), which have not exceeded the
annual intelligent-building design and installation fees
paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year
concerned as disclosed in the Announcement;

during the year ended 31st December 2007, office
rental paid/payable to the Hanjiang Group amounted to
approximately HK$5,352,000 (2006: HK$4,974,000), which
has not exceeded the annual office rental paid/payable to
the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned as
disclosed in the Announcement;
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Continuing Connected Transactions (Continued)

(viii) during the year ended 31st December 2007, there was
no shop rental received/receivable from the Hanjiang
Group (2006: HK$692,000), which has not exceeded the
annual shop rental received/receivable from the Hanjiang
Group in respect of the year concerned as disclosed in the
Announcement; and

(ix) during the year ended 31st December 2007, vacant
property management fees received/receivable from the
Hanjiang Group amounted to approximately HK$1,938,000
(2006: HK$4,652,000), which have not exceeded the
annual vacant property management fees received/receivable
from the Hanjiang Group in respect of the year concerned
as disclosed in the Announcement.

In accordance with Rule 14A.38 of the Listing Rules, the board of
directors engaged the auditor of the Company to perform certain
factual finding procedures on the above continuing connected
transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Related
Services 4400 “Engagements to Perform Agreed-Upon Procedures
Regarding Financial Information” issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has reported the factual
findings on the transactions based on the agreed upon procedures to
the board of directors.

Save as disclosed in Note 40 to the accompanying accounts, no other
contracts of significance in relation to the Company’s business to which
the Company or any of its subsidiaries, associates, jointly controlled
entity or holding company was a party and in which any of the
Company’s Directors had a material interest, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.
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Connected Transactions

During the year ended 31st December 2007, the Group entered into
the following connected transactions:

(M

On 22nd June 2007, the Company entered into a conditional
share purchase agreement with Mr. Chu for the acquisition from
Mr. Chu of an 80% equity interest in Believe Best Investments
Limited (“Believe Best”) and the interest free shareholder’s loans
advanced by Mr. Chu to any of Believe Best and its subsidiaries
(the "Believe Best Group”) and all accounts payable of any of
the Believe Best Group to Mr. Chu for a total consideration of
HK$6,000 million; payable as to the amount of HK$4,000 million
by the issuance of 182,232,346 new shares of the Company
at an issue price of HK$21.95 per share and the amount of
HK$2,000 million in cash in three instalments. The Believe Best
Group possesses the right to develop a land site in the Chaoyang
district of Beijing, the PRC which occupies approximately 200,000
square meters with a planned gross floor area of 700,000 square
meters. The Group intends to develop the land site into a high
quality residential project.

On 17th August 2007, the Group entered into a conditional
agreement with Guangdong Zhujiang Investment Company
Limited (“GD Zhujiang”), a substantial shareholder of certain
subsidiaries of the Company and the associate of the brother
of Mr. Chu, for the acquisition from GD Zhujiang of the entire
equity interest of Shanghai Dazhan Investment Management
Company Limited (“Dazhan”), a wholly-owned subsidiary of GD
Zhujiang, together with the land use right of a site located in
the Yangpu district of Shanghai, the PRC which is owned by
Dazhan for a consideration of RMB1,409 million (equivalent to
approximately HK$1,453 million).

In respect of the continuing connected transactions and connected
transactions, the Company has complied with the disclosure
requirements under the Listing Rules in force from time to time.
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Directors and Directors’ Service Contracts

The Directors who held office during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chu Mang Yee (Chairman)
Mr. Xiang Bin (Deputy Chairman)
Mr. Zhao Hai (Deputy Chairman)
(Appointed on 23rd October 2007)
Mr. Wu Jiesi (Chief Executive Officer)
(Resigned on 17th January 2008)
Mr. Chen Chang Ying
(Appointed as Chief Executive Officer on 17th January 2008)
Mr. Au Wai Kin
Ms. Xiao Yan Xia
Mr. Xue Hu
(Appointed on 23rd October 2007)
Mr. Tam Lai Ling
(Resigned on 1st December 2007)

Non-executive Director
Mr. Shafran, Steven

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip

Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David

Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation at annual general
meetings of the Company in accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip,
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver retire from
office by rotation and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

In accordance with the Company’s Bye-laws, all the Directors appointed
by the Directors during the year retire at the annual general meeting
next following their appointment. Accordingly, Mr. Zhao Hai and Mr.
Xue Hu retire from office and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting.

None of the Directors has a service contract with the Company or

any of its subsidiaries which is not terminable within one year without
payment of compensation other than statutory compensation.

AHEARSEAR

1
oy

Report of the Directors
EEEHE

EEREERBEN

AEEARBEEARETEBPEENERNT

HITEE

RESAE (L)

B (B

BB (AR
(R=BBLE+A=+= ARESE)

RIAR Stk (1RAER)
(R=FB/N\E— A+ ABHE)

BREASEE
(R-FFNF— A+ ARELATRAR)
B

LR

# Rk
(R=BBLF+A=+=ARESR)

mEEhE
(M= BBLE+= A—ARE)

EBITES

he R B

BIAFBPITES
FritiR st 4
FEELE
AR E

T REFHRARBARFTNATMRARRBBF RS
EwERE -

BRIBARABNRAARR - Bribistt - FEREEREHRE
FTEARERE  HEFEERARERERBRRBFKE
EEREEE -

REARBNRAMAY  MEAREERIZEEANERE
BT EARFRAF RS LR - it - BBEERERESE
ARE  EREAEREBRENEERRNBFEAS LE&E
e

BERRARARNRHEEMAMBRRFI LN —FATERE
OXERERRIN) IR AT IR AR -

tFFH 91



Report of the Directors
EEEWE

Independent Non-Executive Directors’
Confirmation of Independence

The Company has received independence confirmation from each of
the independent Non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu,
Philip, Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David and Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oliver, and
considers them to be independent.

Directors’ Interests in Contracts

No contract of significance to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had a
material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of
the year or at any time during the year.

Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures

As at 31st December 2007, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executives of the Company in the shares, underlying
shares and debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")) which were notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required, pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the “Model Code"”), to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange, were as follows:

(1) Long positions in shares

BYFIITES 2B B RM4

AAREERERSBILIFNTES (At L - FERSE
ERFEAREL) 2B MRARMN - ARARBRENDR
B -

EENEHN RS

PEFRYFAERR AR RESRENRA B S E M
BARRIN 2 ERA N T EEXHEEAE AR -

ESRTHRARARS - HERGORE
SEE B NXR

N\ZEREFFTZA=+—R  ARRERERITHEHRE
EH RGO (S REEED ) EXVEETRESHH
BRI A R R R EN AR R S EFARREE (E&
RBEZLHBRPIEXVER) 2kt - ARG RESHHEE
2wk R (BRRERES MG ED 2 ZERERRR
RRIEER 2 RATAR) » RBANNAREEZ MG E
PIE3S2ETAFE 2 ELMA » HRE LW HEITAESHE
TR R ZH Ry A ([RAEST R ) LBME A A B R
Rz SRR

(1) RERBzHR

Number of shares of the Company

AAEBRBEE Approximate

percentage

Personal Family Corporate Other of shares

Name of directors interests interests interests interests outstanding

HMEB BT

EEMA 8 A# = REED H i B E ot

Mr. Chu Mang Yee (a) KRAKEE@Q) — — 868,632,346 — 868,632,346 59.00%

Mr. Au Wai Kin (b) BL1E 12 5 & (b) — — 34,500,000 — 34,500,000 2.34%

Ms. Xiao Yan Xia LB S 30,000 — — — 30,000 0.01%
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and BEERTHREZRRG - HERORE
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and $#ESEZRAR (%)
Debentures (Continued)

(1) Long positions in shares (Continued) (1) RB@OZHRE &)

Notes: BaE

a. M. Chu Mang Yee held 868,632,346 shares of the Company through a ~ABEELFBATAEAMAEERGRAA
Sounda Properties Limited, a company wholly-owned by him, and HKSCC REAFRGEHE(REAN)BERAFDFELARF
Nominees Limited. 868,632,346% A1) °

b.  Mr. Au Wai Kin held 34,500,000 shares of the Company through a b~ BUEETAEZBEEEHA RIEFINAFHARAF

company wholly-owned and controlled by him. 34,500,000/% /%5 °

(2) Long positions in share options (2 RERE2FE
The Company’s share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted ARRZBREAB(ZAE DN BT _F+—
on 4th November, 2002 and no share options were cancelled or P EESRA - A A AR ARRE - R
lapsed during the year. The following table discloses movements i o TREBRFARBZBIRL 2 BE 2 2815
of the share options granted under the Scheme during the year: M

Number of share options

K88
Exercised
Exercise price Beginning Granted during during
Date of grant per share Exercise period of year the year the year  End of year
=1
BHAH TR TS 3] FREH FRfTfE &
Mr. Wu Jiesi 15th September 2005 HK$8.20 15th September 2005 to 2,036,000 - 2,036,000 -
RERLL ZETRFAATRA 82087 14th September 2010
ZEERENATHA

E_E-ZFENA+IA

19th January 2007 HK$20.75 19th January 2007 to — 7,964,000 — 7,964,000
“ZTHE-F+AE 207587 18th January 2012

“2E+E-A+NH

Z-%--“%-ATN\H

M. Steven Shafran 11th August 2005 HK$6.20 11th August 2005 to 3,000,000 - 3,000,000 -
HEEEEE “EZRENAT-A 6207 10th August 2010

“EERENA+—H

Z2-Z-ZE\AtH

Mr. Zhao Hai 26th November 2007 HK$25.20  26th April 2008 to - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
BEEE “ETHE+—FZFE 252087 22nd October 2012

“EEN\EMA-F5H

e s s =

5,036,000 8,964,000 5,036,000 8,964,000

Notes: Bf3E

1. The closing price of the shares immediately before the date on which 1. Z#7,964,0001 B AR R T2 5 B 48 A4 0 2IRTAR
7,964,000 share options were granted to Mr. Wu Jiesi was HK$19.2. Dz WHER19.28TT -

2. The closing price of the shares immediately before the date of exercise by 2. ZHEF$EB 5 41T1$2,036,00015 ¥ IR4E H HRRT IR (%
Mr. Wu Jiesi of 2,036,000 share options was HK$25.1. ZWATE AR5 TT o
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (Continued)

(2) Long positions in share options (Continued)

3. The closing prices of the shares immediately before the dates of exercise by

Mr. Steven Shafran of 3,000,000 share options were HK$19 and HK$22.85.

The closing price of the shares immediately before the date on which
1,000,000 share options were granted to Mr. Zhao Hai was HK$23.7.

With respect to the 1,000,000 share options granted to Mr. Zhao Hai:

(a)

20% of the share options shall be exercisable at the expiration of five
months after 26th November 2007 (the “Date of Grant”); and

(b)

20% of the share options shall be exercisable on each of the first,
second and third anniversary of the Date of Grant; and

()

the balance of the share options shall be exercisable on the fourth
anniversary of the Date of Grant.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31st December 2007, none of the
Directors, chief executives of the Company and their respective
associates had any personal, family, corporate or other interests or
short positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) which would have to be notified to the Company
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of
the SFO (including interests or short positions which they are taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or which were
required , pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to be entered in the
register referred to therein, or which were required, pursuant to the
Model Code, to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange.

Apart from the foregoing, at no time during the year was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors or any of their spouses or children under 18 years
of age to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in
or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate, and no
Directors or chief executives or their respective spouses or children
under 18 years of age had been granted any right to subscribe for
equity or debt securities of the Company nor exercised any such right.

The Company used Binomial Option Pricing Model to determine the
fair value of the options granted as at the date of grant.
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ESRITRAINES - HERORE
SHWB 2R RXR (%)

(2) REREZFAE)

3. ERE RS E) 4R A 7716 3,000,00017 B AL AE B HARTAR 1D 2
B A1978 T %22.857 T ©
4. Z$£1,000,00017) B AR HEME X T8 55 A4 A BRRTAR 19
B A23.787T °
5. HAE TS EAER1,000,00017 BEAKAE
@ 20%MEREBR-_ZE+F+—A-+ B (&%
HEE ) % AE A EmEE A1 TE
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Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures (Continued)

The Binominal Option Pricing Model was developed to estimate the
fair value of American style options. It is one of the commonly used
models to estimate the fair value of an option which can be exercised
before the expiry of the option period. The value of an option varies
with different variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change
in the variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation of the
fair value of an option.

Substantial Shareholders

Other than interests disclosed in the section headed “Directors’ and
chief executives’ interests and short positions in shares, underlying
shares and debentures” above, as at 31st December 2007, according
to the register of interests kept by the Company under section 336
of the SFO, the following entity had interests or short positions in the
shares of the Company which fall to be disclosed to the Company
under Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

Name of shareholders

BRE&EMH

Capacity and nature of interests
S EREGDLEE

Beneficial owner

BEmDBEAA

Sounda Properties Limited
MEEXRBERAQA
Sloane Robinson LLP Investment manager

BREKEA

Save as disclosed above, the directors are not aware of any other
persons who, as at 31st December 2007, had interests or short
positions in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company or any associated corporations (within the meaning of Part
XV of the SFO) which would fall to be disclosed to the Company under
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

cEBMREEBERAT - T T
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ESRTERAINERS - HERORE
WA RBRRE (@)

—EA MBS ETEE RN ATE RS
— RS B - DA A SR IREIR BT
TEMERENDTE - BREOEESRTE T BB
B2 W E TR EE - (ER SRR ORI
2 - AEYWBRAFEZ FEEREAYE -

FERR

B EXTEERITHBHERRG - BERGO REHEES 2
ERmRAR | —BMER 2 ERIN R LF+ A
=+—H BARRIREES M EIRAIFE3IB6IHETE 2
BFEMziss THEBRAARRNDPEEREZLSR
HAE I BIZEXV R EE2 R E83 D ER/AIA AR B #E 75 2 s ook

A

=

Approximate
percentage of

Number of issued
shares
2ETRHEE

shares outstanding
HNEEBITRMBESILL

868,632,346 59.00%

73,768,000 5.01%
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FBRRER B ER

RIE E AR RISt AAR BIRO B ZPTFIREEN T

Information on Share Option Scheme

The following table is a summary of the Scheme disclosed in
accordance with the Listing Rules:

Purpose of the Scheme

Zat & B HY

Participants of the Scheme

%At Bl

B
i

Total number of shares available
for issue under the Scheme and
percentage of issued share capital
as at 16th April, 2008

BIRZT B BEITROBEENR T
ZNFOA+TANAHEBTRAETD
|5d

Maximum entitlement of the
Scheme

it RSB

The period within which the shares
must be taken up under an option

Ry B B A R 1O AR

96  Hopson Development Holdings Limited

As recognition of the contribution of the participants by granting options to them
as incentives or rewards.
M2EERTEREARGRS2ER - WALLHSB I DERS2E N -

Any executive, employee, director (including non-executive director and
independent non-executive director), consultant, adviser and/or agent of the
Company or any of its subsidiaries.
RARSEEAMEARNTHRAE - EE
F) EREMEBERINREA -

EX(REERATEERBIUIFNTE

100,200,000 shares unless shareholders’ approval has been obtained pursuant to
the terms of the Scheme (approximately 6.81% of issued share capital).

BIET R EBH AT EME AR S AR S AL - & B 4 100,200,000 % (4915 B 31T IR A K
6.81%) °

The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon the exercise of each
participant under share options already granted or to be granted to each
participant (including both exercised and outstanding share options) in the
12-month period up to and including the date of grant shall not exceed 1%

of the issued share capital as at the date of grant. Any grant of further options
above the limit shall be subject to certain requirements as stipulated in the rules
of the Scheme.
BEREZEETEERTIHR T 2EREERES G ERE 2 RNEEE (1
EATERERITEZERE) AETFZAENTEALHB(REETER) - TEE
BREHBEPEEITRA1% AR T EMBELRENEREETZAERAAET
BAEETHREMBRR -

Commencing on the date of grant of an option and expiring at 5:00 p.m. on
the earlier of the business day preceding the fifth anniversary thereof and the
business day preceding the tenth anniversary of the day on which the Scheme
was adopted.

BERERHERREEZREAHNTEFNA —EE XA ERNZTEHED
THRFHNA—ELER (UAREERE) TFARKERER -
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Information on Share Option Scheme BREENER @

6. The minimum period for which an
option must be held before it can
be exercised
BRTERAREBRENSEHR

7. The amount payable on application
or acceptance of the option and the
period within which payments or
calls must or may be made or loans
for such purpose must be paid
B & o 1 A i AR RE A0 JE 5 2 B DA R S
ARSI AN R B B PR sl (8 R B B AR
B R HR

8. The basis of determining the

exercise price
EBETEBEHNEE

9. The remaining life of the Scheme

AT BRI R B R

AHEARSEAR

Completion of half year's full-time services with the Company or a subsidiary.

RARAE— KB AR K FF2BRY -

Nil

The exercise price is determined by the board of Directors and shall at least be
the highest of:
TEEHEFSET ZEEARUTHESE

a. the closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s
daily quotations sheet on the date of offer of the relevant options;

REBERBEEZAARAFABRNNEIMERRERNKTE :

b. the average closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for the five business days immediately

preceding the date of offer of the relevant options; and
REEREEAEREEBZIAEEEAAATAROAEIMEERERD
FHWHE - &

c.  the nominal value of the Company’s shares.
ARAFRMHEE -

The scheme was adopted on 4th November, 2002 and will expire at 5:00 p.m. on

the business day immediately preceding the tenth anniversary thereof.
FER-ETE_F+-AERRSA EEERTEFIN —EEEA TFRERERLE -
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Foreign Exchange Fluctuations

The Group earns revenue and incurs costs and expenses mainly
in Renminbi and is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from
the exposure of Renminbi against United States dollars and Hong
Kong dollars. However, the Group experienced no significant foreign
exchange movement and the Directors do not anticipate any significant
foreign exchange loss as a result of changes in exchange rate
between United States dollars, Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi in the
foreseeable future.

Management Contract

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company was
entered into or existed during the year.

Employees

As at 31st December, 2007, the Group, excluding its associate
and jointly controlled entity, employed a total of 7,721 (as at 31st
December, 2006: 5,083) staff, the great majority of which were
deployed in mainland China. Employees’ costs (including Directors’
emoluments) amounted to HK$381 million (2006: HK$240 million) for
the year ended 31st December, 2007.

The fundamental policy of the Group’s remuneration and incentive
scheme is to link total compensation of Executive Directors, senior
management and employees with the achievement of the Group’s
annual and long-term corporate goals and objectives. Remuneration
package is performance-based and takes into account business
performance, market practice and competitive market conditions in
order to attract, motivate and retain talent. The remuneration package
of Executive Directors and senior management comprises salaries,
bonuses, discretionary bonus and other benefits-in-kind.

Non-executive Directors are compensated with the aim to fairly
represent their efforts and time dedicated to the Board and various
committee meetings. The recommended remuneration package of the
independent Non-executive Directors comprises annual director’s fee
and fee for representation on Board committees. Mr. Steven Shafran,
a Non-executive Director, was remunerated with share options granted
under the Scheme.
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Employees (Continued)

The remuneration of all the Directors during the financial year,
excluding Directors’ interests in share options of the Company which
are detailed in the paragraph titled “Long positions in share options”
above, is set out in Note 29 to the accounts.

Particulars of the Directors’ and senior management’s emoluments
disclosed pursuant to Section 161 of the Companies Ordinance
and Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are set out in Note 29 to the
accounts.

Purchase, Redemption and Sale of the
Company'’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31st December 2007.

Corporate Governance

A report on the principal corporate governance practices adopted by
the Company is set out on pages 101 to 110 of the annual report.

Sufficiency of Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors, the Directors confirm that the
Company has maintained during the year under review the amount of
public float as required under the Listing Rules.

AxNREEERARN -2 F
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Events after the Balance Sheet Date

(a)

On 29th January 2008, the Group respectively entered into a land
transfer contract and an agreement for reimbursement of land
development with Beijing State Land Resources Bureau (”Beijing
Land Bureau”) and Beijing Zhujiang Real Estate Development
Company, a related company of the Group, for the transfer of
the land use right in respect of a piece of land situated in Ma Ju
Qiao, Tong Zhou District, Beijing with a site area of approximately
129,070 square metres. The total consideration of the transaction
is approximately HK$750,559,000 (equivalent to approximately
RMB698,020,000).

On 2nd April 2008, the Group entered into an agreement for
reimbursement for land development with Beijing Tu Di Zheng
Li Chu Bei Zhong Xin, Tong Zhou District Branch (”Beijing Land
Centre”) for the reimbursement of the costs incurred by Beijing
Land Centre in carrying out the first class development on a
piece of land situated in Qiao Zhuang Village, Yong Shun Town,
Tong Zhou District, Beijing with a site area of approximately
115,000 square metres. The Group will enter into a land transfer
contract with Beijing Land Bureau on or around 25th April 2008
for the transfer of the land use right in respect of the aforesaid
piece of land. The total consideration of the transaction is
approximately HK$1,870,967,742 (equivalent to approximately
RMB1,740,000.000).

Auditor

The accounts have been audited by Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers. A
resolution for the re-appointment of Messrs. PricewaterhouseCoopers
as the Company’s auditor for the ensuing year is to be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the board of Directors,

CHU MANG YEE
Chairman

Hong Kong, 16th April, 2008
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Corporate Governance Report

The Company strives to attain high standards of corporate governance.
The Board believes that effective corporate governance will continue to
improve transparency, risk controls and ultimately enhance shareholders’
value.

The Company has complied with the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices (the “Code”) as contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”) during year 2007, except that the
non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for specific
terms with the exception of Mr. Steven Shafran who is appointed for
a term of three years, and the Chairman of the Board did not attend
the annual general meeting for year 2007 due to other business
commitment.

COMPLIANCE WITH MODEL CODE

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing
Rules (the “Model Code”) as the code of conduct regarding directors’
securities transactions. All directors have confirmed, following specific
enquiry by the Company, that they fully complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code throughout year 2007.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board currently comprises seven executive and four non-executive
directors of whom three are independent, whose biographical details
are set out in the Directors’ Profile section on pages 65 to 68 which
demonstrate a balance of core competence having regard to the
business of the Group. Pursuant to the Company’s Bye-laws, all
directors are subject to retirement by rotation and their re-election
is subject to a vote of shareholders at the annual general meeting.
The Board believes that the independent non-executive directors,
with diversified backgrounds and industry skills, shall offer experience,
independent judgment and advice on issues relating to strategy,
performance, conflict of interest and the overall management of the
Company such that the interests of all shareholders are considered and
safeguarded.
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The Board is responsible to the shareholders for leadership and control
of the Group and is collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Group and its business by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. It oversees the Group's strategic development, and determines
the objectives, strategies and policies of the Group. The Board also
monitors and controls operating and financial performance in pursuit
of the Group’s strategic objectives. The Board members have access to
timely information in relation to the Group’s business and make further
enguires when necessary. The Board has also agreed that directors may
seek independent professional advice on issues related to the Group’s
business at the Group’s expenses.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationships with each other. There is no such
relationship as between the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer.
The Company has arranged appropriate insurance cover in respect of
legal actions against its directors.

All independent non-executive directors have offered sufficient time
and efforts to serve the business affairs of the Company and possess
appropriate academic and professional qualifications and related
management experience and have contributed to the Board with their
professional opinion.

The Company has three independent non-executive directors, at
least one of whom has appropriate financial management expertise,
in compliance with the Listing Rules. Each independent non-
executive director gives the Company an annual confirmation of
his independence, and the Board considers these directors to be
independent under the guidelines set out in rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules.

Four Board committees, namely the Remuneration Committee, the
Audit Committee, the Option Shares Committee and the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee have been
established to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. The
Board has delegated the execution and daily operations of the Group’s
business to management. However, clear directions are given to
management as to the matters that must be approved by the Board
before decisions are made on behalf of the Group.
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BOARD MEETINGS

The full Board met 7 times during year 2007 under review at which
the directors considered and approved significant matters including,
among other things, interim and financial results of the Group,
statutory financial reports, change in Board members, issuance of
convertible bonds, acquisition of land and investments. Mr. Wong Shing
Kay, Oliver recorded full attendance in respect of such Board meetings
while Mr. Tam Lai Ling and Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David attended six
Board meetings, Mr. Chen Chang Ying, Ms. Xiao Yan Xia and Mr. Yuen
Pak Yiu, Philip attended five Board meetings, Mr. Au Wai Kin and Mr.
Steven Shafran attended four Board meetings, Mr. Xiang Bin attended
three Board meetings, Mr. Chu Mang Yee, Mr. Wu lJiesi, Mr. Zhao Hai
and Mr. Xue Hu attended one Board meeting.

Notes:

1. Mr. Tam Lai Ling resigned on 1st December 2007 and six full Board
meetings were held prior to his resignation.

2. Mr. Zhao Hai and Mr. Xue Hu were both appointed as executive directors
on 23rd October 2007. One full Board meeting was held between 24th
October 2007 and 31st December 2007.

Twenty-four additional Board meetings were held during year 2007 for
the purposes of approving some operational matters such as approval
of the submission of tenders for the land use rights of certain sites in
the PR.C. and the provision of guarantees by the Company in respect
of bank loans granted to the Company’s subsidiaries. Such meetings
were attended by certain executive directors, namely Mr. Chu Mang
Yee (19)*, Mr. Wu lJiesi (18)*, Mr. Tam Lai Ling (22)*, Mr. Chen Chang
Ying (22)*, Mr. Au Wai Kin (20) and Ms. Xiao Yan Xia (23)*.

* denotes the number of meetings attended by the director.

Between Board meetings, the senior management of the Company
provides the directors with information on a timely basis regarding
the activities and developments in the businesses of the Group and
meets with the non-executive directors (including the independent
non-executive directors) to seek their views on the business and
operational matters of the Group.

The company secretary keeps detailed minutes of each meeting which
are available for inspection by all directors.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

There are currently four non-executive directors, of whom three
are independent. The non-executive directors are not appointed for
a specific term with the exception of Mr. Steven Shafran who is
appointed for a term of three years. This constitutes a deviation from
Code provision A.4.1 with respect to the appointment of non-executive
directors for a specific term subject to re-election. However, all directors
are subject to retirement by rotation and re-election by shareholders
at the annual general meeting at least once every three years in
accordance with the Bye-laws of the Company. In the opinion of the
Board, this meets the objective of the Code.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman of the Company is Mr. Chu Mang Yee. The Chief
Executive Officer of the Company was Mr. Wu Jiesi throughout year
2007. Mr. Wu Jiesi resigned from the Board on 17th January 2008 and
was succeeded by Mr. Chen Chang Ying as the Chief Executive Officer
on the same date. The role of the Chairman is segregated from that of
the Chief Executive Officer.

The Chairman is responsible for managing and providing leadership to
the Board in terms of formulating overall strategies, business directions
and policies of the Company. The Chairman is also responsible for
overseeing effective functions of the Board, application of good
corporate governance practices and procedures, and encourages the
directors to make a full and active contribution to the affairs of the
Board. With the support of the executive directors and the company
secretary, the Chairman seeks to ensure that all directors are properly
briefed on issues arising at Board meetings and receive complete and
reliable information in a timely manner.

The Chief Executive Officer is directly responsible for the day-to-day
management of the business of the Company, co-ordinating overall
business operations and maintaining the operational performance of
the Company. With the assistance of the Chief Financial Officer, he
ensures that the funding requirements of the business are met and
closely monitors the operating and financial results against plans and
budgets, taking remedial action when necessary and advising the Board
of any significant developments and issues.
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Remuneration Committee, which comprises all three independent
non-executive directors, meets at least once a year. The Remuneration
Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in achieving its
objective of attracting and retaining directors and senior management
of the highest caliber and experience needed to develop the Group’s
business successfully. The Remuneration Committee is also responsible
for the development of a fair and transparent procedure in determining
the remuneration policies for the directors and senior management
of the Company and for determining their remuneration packages.
The Remuneration Committee is chaired by Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip
and has specific written terms of reference which deal clearly with its
authority and responsibilities and are posted on the Company’s website.
The principal functions of the Remuneration Committee include:

o To formulate remuneration policy for approval by the Board;

o To establish guidelines for the recruitment of the Chief Executive
Officer and senior management;

o To recommend to the Board the policy and structure for the
remuneration of Directors (including non-executive directors and
the Chief Executive Officer) and senior management;

° To determine the remuneration of executive directors and senior
management, including benefits in kind and compensation
payments;

o To review and approve the compensation arrangements in
connection with any loss or termination of their office or
appointment, or dismissal or removal for misconduct to executive
directors and senior management;

o To determine the criteria for assessing employee performance;

o To consider the annual performance bonus for executive
directors, senior management, and the general staff and make
recommendation to the Board.

One meeting was held by the Remuneration Committee during 2007
to make recommendation to the Board of the remuneration of the
non-executive directors and to approve certain proposed changes to the
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No director is involved in deciding his/her own remuneration.
Remuneration of the independent non-executive directors in respect of
the year ended 31st December 2007 was approved by the shareholders
of the Company at the 2007 annual general meeting.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Group does not have a Nomination Committee. New directors,
being individuals who are suitably qualified and expected to make a
positive contribution to the performance of the Board having regard
to the balance of skills and experience appropriate to the Company’s
business, are identified by existing directors and submitted to the
Board for approval. A director appointed by the Board is subject to re-
election by shareholders at the first annual general meeting after this
appointment.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

During the year, the fees paid to the Company’s auditor for audit
and audit related services amounted to HK$4,980,000 (2006:
HK$3,450,000) and nil (2006: nil) was paid for non-audit services.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises the three independent non-executive
directors. It was chaired by Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip. The Board is of
the opinion that the members of the Audit Committee have sufficient
accounting and financial management expertise or experience to
discharge their duties. However, the Audit Committee is authorised
to obtain outside legal or other independent professional advice and
to secure the attendance of outsiders with relevant experience and
expertise if it considers necessary. The Audit Committee has written
terms of reference which is posted on the Company’s website. The
principal functions of the Audit Committee include:

o To make recommendations on the appointment, reappointment
and removal of external auditor and to consider the terms of
such appointments.

o To develop and implement policies on the engagement of
external auditor for non-audit services.

o To monitor the integrity of the financial statements, annual
and interim reports and the auditor's report to ensure that the
information presents a true and balanced assessment of the
Group's financial position.
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o To ensure the management has fulfilled its duty to maintain an
effective internal control system.

o To review internal audit programme and to ensure that it is
allocated with adequate resources and is effective.

o To review the external auditor’s management letter and
any questions raised by the auditor to management, and
management’s response.

In year 2007, the Audit Committee reviewed the results of an
assessment of the Group’s internal control systems, business
management and preventions against fraud and other irregularities
by the external auditors. With respect to the results of the Company
for the year ended 31st December 2007, the Audit Committee
reviewed with senior management and the auditor of the Company,
their respective audit findings, the accounting principles and practices
adopted by the Group and internal control, risk management and
financial reporting matters. This review by the Audit Committee
included an appraisal of the integrity of the financial statements of the
Company and the annual report and accounts of the Company. The
Audit Committee also reviewed the external auditor’s remuneration.
There was no disagreement between the Board and the Audit
Committee on the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
external auditor.

During year 2007, there were two Audit Committee meetings, which
were both attended by all its members.

The Audit Committee reports its work, findings and recommendations
to the Board after each meeting.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

In addition to the Remuneration Committee and Audit Committee, two
other Board Committees have been established to assist the Board in
the execution of its duties.

(1) Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions
Committee
The Connected Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee
was established on 4th October 2005 and is presently comprised
of the three independent non-executive directors, and chaired by
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Philip. The primary function of the Connected
Transactions/Related Party Transactions Committee is to review all
connected transactions and related party transactions to ensure
that they are conducted on normal commercial terms and in
the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group and to
recommend to the Board corrective measures in such transactions
if needed.

(2) Option Shares Committee

The Option Shares Committee was established on 4th November

2005 and is comprised of two executive directors. Its primary

function is to deal with the allotment and issue of shares of the

Company upon the exercise of options granted or to be granted

under the Company’s share option scheme adopted on 4th

November 2002.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND INTERNAL CONTROLS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear and balanced
assessment of the Group's performance, position and prospects. It is
also responsible for preparing accounts that give a true and fair view
of the Group’s financial position on a going-concern basis and other
price-sensitive announcements and financial disclosures. Management
provides the Board with the relevant information it needs to discharge
these responsibilities.

In preparing the accounts for the year ended 31st December 2007,
the directors have selected appropriate accounting policies and applied
them consistently, and have made judgements and estimates that are
prudent and reasonable.

The Group has announced its annual and interim results in a timely
manner within the limits of four months and three months respectively
after the end of the relevant financial periods, as laid down in the
Listing Rules.
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The Board has overall responsibility for maintaining sound and effective
internal controls to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’
interests. The directors confirm that the Group, through its Internal
Control Department, performs regular checks on office procedures,
practices and systems to safeguard assets from inappropriate use,
maintain proper accounts and ensure compliance with regulations.
The regular reviews also cover all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions
of the Group. The Internal Control Department reports directly to the
Group Supervisory Committee which in turn reports independently
to the Board. The Internal Control Department is independent of all
management functions of the Group and has direct and independent
access to the Board. Summaries of major audit findings and control
weaknesses, if any, are reviewed by the Audit Committee.

In year 2007, no suspected frauds and irregularities, internal control
deficiencies or suspected infringement of laws, rules and regulations
have come to the attention of the Audit Committee to cause it to
believe that the system of internal controls is inadequate. The Board
is satisfied with the adequacy of the system of internal control of the
Company.

Circulars or guidance notes were issued to directors where appropriate
to ensure that they are aware of their continuing obligations as
directors and corporate governance matters.

CORPORATE COMMUNICATION AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

The Company continues to promote and enhance investor relations and
communications with its investors. Different communication channels
have been maintained with the media, analysts and fund managers
through meetings, senior management’s participation in investor
forums, conferences and roadshows. Designated senior management
maintains regular dialogue with institutional investors and analysts to
keep them abreast of the Company’s developments.

The Company provides detailed press releases and reports to its
shareholders on the Group’s business and financial positions with
timely annual report and interim report, to ensure that they are
effectively informed of the Group’s status and developments. General
presentations are made immediately after the announcement of
financial results. The website of the Group is also updated regularly
to keep investors and the general public informed of the latest
development of the Group.
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The Company’s annual general meetings allow the directors to meet
and communicate with shareholders, providing a forum for the
shareholders’ views to be communicated to the Board. All directors and
senior management make an effort to attend. External auditors are
also available at the annual general meetings to address shareholders’
queries. Separate resolutions are proposed for each issue considered
at the annual general meetings. The annual general meeting circulars
are distributed to all shareholders at least 21 days prior to the annual
general meetings, setting out details of each proposed resolution,
voting procedures (including procedures for demanding and conducting
a poll) and other relevant information. The procedures for demanding
and conducting a poll are explained by the chairman presiding at
the annual general meetings at the beginning of the meetings. The
respective proxies received for and against each resolution are reported
to the meetings.
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Report of the Independent Auditor

PRICEWATERHOUSE(COPERS

B AZBEN RS

BOIRKES M EHA

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Hopson
Development Holdings Limited (the “Company”) set out on pages
113 to 225, which comprise the balance sheets of the Company and
the Group as at 31st December 2007, and the consolidated income
statement, the consolidated cash flow statement and the consolidated
statement of changes in equity for the year then ended, and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation and
the true and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. This
responsibility includes designing, implementing and maintaining internal
control relevant to the preparation and the true and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error; selecting and applying appropriate accounting
policies; and making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the
circumstances.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated
financial statements based on our audit and to report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of the
Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Those standards require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from material
misstatement.
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Report of the Independent Auditor

BN AZBEN RS

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about
the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation
and true and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances,
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the entity’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the
appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by the directors, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

OPINION

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as
at 31st December 2007 and of the Group’s profit and cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards and have been properly prepared in accordance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 16th April 2008
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Balance Sheets
BEAE

As at 31st December 2007
REZFEELFF+=—A=+—H

Consolidated Company
=E AL

Note
FdaE
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land costs =+ AR R 6 639,205 500,367 - -
Properties and equipment ¥ % & & 7 2,063,811 1,267,460 - -
Investment properties REWE 8 2,736,835 2,503,845 - —
Properties under RIERBREZ
development for long- EROYE
term investment 9 135,157 227,765 - -
Intangible assets B AE 12 111,819 106,349 - -
Investments in subsidiaries RIB AR Z%E 13 - - 11,903,907 5,305,814
Investments in associates ~ R L QT ZIHE 14 39,206 - - -
Investment in a jointly B — ] 2E 2
controlled entity ERsRE 15 676,460 1,033,245 - =
Available-for-sale A ERKEE
financial asset 17 463,158 291,834 - -
Deposit paid e - 554,579 - -
Deferred tax assets BEERBEEE 24 107,878 42,357 - -
Other non-current asset HiERBEE - 919,584 - =
6,973,529 7,447,385 11,903,907 5,305,814
Current assets mEBEE
Land costs TR A 6 16,151,494 7,135,951 - =
Prepayments for U B + ) 78 5 3X08
acquisition of land 18 12,027,112 634,080 - =
Properties under AtHeEy
development HEmY R
for sale 10 5,183,349 4,146,742 - -
Completed properties AEHEEEZE
for sale KR E 11 2,180,924 1,953,586 - -
Accounts receivable AE A 19 138,743 111,142 - =
Other receivables H 4t e W 2R 19 682,815 9,000 - -
Prepayments, deposits BNFE - Ze2R
and other current assets  HiR#EE 18 2,293,656 1,678,347 - -
Due from an associate JE U — I B & 1 Rl 3R0E 40 22,344 = - =
Due from related A NG ]
companies 40 17,390 18,531 - —
Pledged/charged bank BER/ATRIT
deposits B 20 277,031 157,317 - -
Cash and cash equivalents 4 kHLEEY 20 1,985,055 2,412,479 28,494 516,802
40,959,913 18,257,175 28,494 516,802
Total assets HEE 47,933,442 25,704,560 11,932,401 5,822,616
I I I I
EQUITY %
Capital and reserves ANRBEEEAEN
attributable to the B R 4
Company’s equity
holders
Share capital A& 2% 25 147,237 128,510 147,237 128,510
Reserves e 26 17,717,146 7,709,155 7,310,700 2,991,104
17,864,383 7,837,665 7,457,937 3,119,614
Minority interests DEREE S 2,213,927 390,250 - =
Total equity RO 20,078,310 8,227,915 7,457,937 3,119,614

EEAREEAERRIA —FTE L FFR 113



Balance Sheets
EEAER

As at 31st December 2007
REZELELF+=—A=+—H

Consolidated Company
=E YA

2006 2006
ZEETR ZEETR
Note HK$'000 HK$'000
bz FAT FHT
LIABILITIES afE
Non-current liabilities ErEAaE
Land cost payable JE 5t + 3 AR 2R 21 175,959 - - -
Borrowings (RS 23 9,718,998 6,076,963 4,427,188 2,651,550
Deferred tax liabilities ELEHIBEE 24 6,013,099 1,119,814 - -
Other non-current liability E#JERE & & - 581,250 - =
15,908,056 7,778,027 4,427,188 2,651,550
Current liabilities REBAaE
Accounts payable FE 1+ BR 3K 22 953,128 563,378 - -
Land cost payable JE {5 £ #h AR AR 21 605,289 1,070,928 - -
Borrowings BE 23 2,898,895 1,345,042 - -
Deferred revenue EEUA 4,981,769 4,167,431 - -
Accruals and other JE & FE K
payable Hib R RE 1,763,446 989,702 39,372 36,105
Due to an associate FE — BB & DA
Z 3B 40 5,624 5,343 - =
Due to related companies FEEE QT2 7B 40 137,836 103,398 - -
Due to a jointly controlled & —Ff§ %R
entity 5B R 2 B 40 231,253 1,037,287 - 971
Current tax liabilities NEAFHIEE & 369,836 416,109 7,904 14,376
11,947,076 9,698,618 47,276 51,452
Total liabilities BERaE 27,855,132 17,476,645 4,474,464 2,703,002
Total equity and BRkBERE
liabilities 47,933,442 25,704,560 11,932,401 5,822,616
I I I I
Net current assets/ REBEE,/ (&aff)
(liabilities) FE 29,012,837 8,558,557 (18,782) 465,350
I I I I
Total assets less current ZEZEFRTHAE
liabilities 35,986,366 16,005,942 11,885,125 5,771,164
I I

CHU MANG YEE CHEN CHANG YING

K&K R R 42
Director Director
E g

The notes on pages 120 to 225 are an integral part of these financial 21208 £ %2258 2 M AL B B mzT HEH — =0
statements. % o
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Consolidated Income Statement

Note
B

Revenues pich=k 5
Cost of sales PR A 28
Gross profit E
Other gains H fth i %5 27
Selling and marketing costs SHE RS HE R A 28
General and administrative expenses — MR RITHER 28
Operating profit a5 2hm A
Finance income B 75 A 30
Finance costs B 165 B 2N 30
Share of profit less loss of associates PGB N A T R 18 14
Share of profit of and other gains S HREEHER

relating to jointly controlled entities il PN & 15
Profit before taxation B B¢ A1 4 A
Taxation BIE 31
Profit for the year F &R A
Attributable to: FE1h
Equity holders of the Company ANRREFRA A 32
Minority interests DERRE R
Earnings per share for profit attributable % £ 7y 74x 24 &) % #

to the equity holders of the B A EIEREF

Company during the year HAEZERAR

(in HK$ per share) (AERBTE)

— basic — &K 3

— diluted — B 33
Dividends % B 34

The notes on pages 120 to 225 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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=0 N\ 7/

ZN
Arm TEm

For the Year Ended 31st December 2007

RE-FELF+-A=+—ALFE

2006
S A

HK$'000

FAT

11,130,643 6,920,294
(6,669,998) (4,509,340)
4,460,645 2,410,954
1,483,447 505,531
(281,082) (228,618)
(500,402) (296,600)
5,162,608 2,391,267
50,394 26,814
(136,916) (84,808)
(599) (80)
101,964 128,343
5,177,451 2,461,536
(1,629,245) (837,358)
3,548,206 1,624,178
I I
3,517,312 1,553,752
30,894 70,426
3,548,206 1,624,178
I I
2.54 1.27
I I
2.49 1.26
I I
616,922 480,980

F10EEF220H ZMERU T BRRE P — A6
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Consoildated Cash Flow Statement

= A A E i‘%
reRenE
For the year ended 31st December 2007
BE—FEEt+F T -_A=1T—HILFE

2006
ZTTREF
Note HK$'000
B FHET

Cash flows from operating activities K& EF&HZHE&TE
Cash generated from operations REEEZRS 35@) 815,688 1,662,440
Interest received B A8 50,394 26,814
Hong Kong profits tax refunded/(paid) £i& (Ef) F#& M BEH 9,612 (4,941)
Mainland China enterprise income B AR B R R £ F TS Y

tax paid (660,696) (518,492)
Mainland China land appreciation BT B K B + 3B E Y

tax paid (86,786) (92,027)
Net cash generated from operating RETEHEEZRGFE

activities 128,212 1,073,794
Cash flows from investing activities #ZEF#HzH&T 2
Additions of properties and equipment A ¥ % & 5% (562,091) (90,343)
Proceeds from disposal of properties HEMERRENESTE

and equipment - 700
Proceeds from disposal of equity HER—RBH B A F %A

interest in a subsidiary B2 FR5HE - 47
Additions of land costs AL A - (37,759)
Additions of properties under BAFERRIKE

development for long-term investment >~ 2 & % (27,859) (6,912)
Additions of available-for-sale BATHEENBEE

financial asset - (291,834)
Additions of deposit paid BADNERS (504,615) (532,726)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W & 1 8 A 7 (903,497) (66,283)
Acquisition of an associate Y s — B & A (39,821) =
Increase in other receivables H A FE g 2R T 5 (654,185) =

Advanced payment for acquisition
of equity interests
Advanced payment for acquisition
of land for long-term investment
Decrease/(increase) in amounts due
from related companies
(Increase)/decrease in pledged/charged
bank deposits

Net cash used in investing activities

Yo B Bk A HE 25 2 TR SRR

Wi+ E R IR E 2 TR 5RIR

FEW B E A R RIER A ()

BEM R RITER ()R

2

REESMA RS FE

(1,148,526) (1,576,498)

(250,226)
61,804 (16,518)
(107,809) 96,967

(4,136,825) (2,520,735)
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Consoildated Cash Flow Statement
FEEERER

For the year ended 31st December 2007

H2—EE+F+-A=+—HIFE

2006
—ETREF
Note HK$'000
(s THT
Cash flows from financing activities FZEEFHZHE&TE
New short-term bank loans I HAR T B K 500,702 568,220
Repayments of short-term bank loans — [Ei@EHETER (332,764) (1,322,888)
New long-term bank loans i EHRTER 4,939,311 3,397,920
Repayment of long-term bank loans BERBIETER (2,520,145) (2,047,478)
Repayments to directors EEEERR - (14,719)
Advances from related companies BE N T B - 30,930
Repayments to related companies BEBEATBR - (192,228)
Repayment to an associate B8 — & QA R E (21,726) (215)
Advances from a jointly controlled entity — f& k& 4% | & 82 2 5% 219,690 860,002
Repayment to holding company EEERARBR - (20,129)
Interest paid B F 8 (674,503) (482,528)
Proceeds from issue of shares BITRMD TS RIA 35,295 1,048,300
Share issue expenses B3RS (20) (16,743)
Issue of convertible bonds BT AR B 1,790,801 -
Capital contributions from minority ME QR DB RS
interest of subsidiaries ey - 6,382
Dividends paid to Company’s equity EETARRABRERE A
holders 95 (494,433) (427,454)
Dividends paid to minority interest of EETHBRARDE
subsidiaries R ER HE 25 2 AR B - (3,900)
Net cash generated from financing METHELEZHESFH
activities 3,442,208 1,383,472
Net decrease in cash and cash RERBEEEYL
equivalents WL BEE (566,405) (63,469)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning £#M#4& KBELZEY
of the year 2,412,479 2,353,280
Exchange gain on cash and cash RAehReTBY 2 ELRa
equivalents 138,981 122,668
Cash and cash equivalents at end FREERREEED
of the year 1,985,055 2,412,479

The notes on pages 120 to 225 are an integral part of these financial %120 = 52258 2 M fE R Ut B Rk A —
statements. 3 o
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

—H— N7
j[ s A @Ji‘%

For the year ended 31st December 2007
BE—FEEt+F T -_A=1T—HILFE

/\\/ \

Attributable to equity
holders of the Company

ARRABREHEANEMR
Share Minority
capital Reserves interests Total
B A& HE LEEFEEXR #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET FET FET
Balance at 1st January 2006 R-_ZTZETXF—HA—A
2R 121,360 5,342,348 301,567 5,765,275
Currency translation differences HETE N, =58 - 214,482 11,581 226,063
Profit for the year FEEHEF - 1,553,752 70,426 1,624,178
Total recognised income for the &HZE-ZZT X4
year ended 31st December +TZA=+—BLFE
2006 BRI A 4E5E = 1,768,234 82,007 1,850,241
Proceeds from issue of share, net 2 17R%{p 2 Fr 15 k18
of share issue expenses (MBETHAX)
— Placements — A% 6,000 973,262 - 979,262
— Employee share options — EEBRETE
scheme 1,150 51,145 - 52,295
Share-based payment (Share LARE 19 B B H 2 (B 1
options granted) (B ERRE) - 1,620 - 1,620
Capital contribution by minority ¥ B2 & > &&=
interests of subsidiaries A - - 6,382 6,382
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B8 — R BT B 2 A - - 4,194 4,194
Dividends paid AR S = (427,454) (3,900) (431,354)
7,150 598,573 6,676 612,399
Balance at 31st December 2006 H-—ZTZEXE+=A
=t+—RZ&HR 128,510 7,709,155 390,250 8,227,915
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
GARREER

For the year ended 37st December 2007
BE-EE+F+A=1+—HIFE

Attributable to equity

holders of the Company

ARNABRESE ANEMN
Share Minority
capital Reserves interests Total
B & e SBREER & &t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAET FET FET FET
Balance at 1st January 2007 RZZEZLF—-HA—H
2R 128,510 7,709,155 390,250 8,227,915
Fair value gain on AL ENBEEL
available-for-sale NTEENER
financial asset - 151,965 - 151,965
Acquisition of subsidiaries, BB 2 R (kR IER)
net of tax - 2,180,096 - 2,180,096
Realised upon disposal HERELEMER
of properties held for sales #I5 - (513,811) - (513,811)
Deferred tax A = 183,026 - 183,026
Currency translation differences & & § =5 - 696,153 66,836 762,989
Net income recognised HEERRERREMN
directly in equity =R ON - 2,697,429 66,836 2,764,265
Profit for the year EEHF - 53173112 30,894 3,548,206
Total recognised income for the #HZE-ZT+4
year ended 31st December TZA=+—HLLtFE
2007 BRI A B2E - 6,214,741 97,730 6,312,471
Proceeds from issue of share, BITRM Z TS FE
net of share issue expenses (B ETHEL)
— Share consideration (Note 25) — &K & (Fff:F25) 18,223 3,981,777 - 4,000,000
— Employee share options — EEBREE
scheme 504 34,771 - 35,275
Share-based payment VAR AR B 5L 2 (B A4
(Share options granted) GEEPA 1)) = 43,401 - 43,401
Issue of convertible bonds BT ARES = 227,734 = 227,734
Acquisition of subsidiaries Wi B B B S = = 177,988 177,988
Contribution from minority LEREHE
shareholders - - 1,547,959 1,547,959
Dividends paid B e = (494,433) = (494,433)
18,727 3,793,250 1,725,947 5,537,924
Balance at 31st December 2007 R-ZZTt&E+—- A
=t—Bz#&# 147,237 17,717,146 2,213,927 20,078,310
I I

The notes on pages 120 to 225 are an integral part of these financial

statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR MR

General information

Hopson Development Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and
its subsidiaries (together “the Group”) is mainly engaged in
the development of residential properties in Mainland China.
The Group is also involved in some ancillary property related
businesses, including property investment, property management
and hotel operations.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon House,
2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company is listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

These consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board of Directors on 16th April 2008.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to the two years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Company have
been prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except as disclosed in the accounting policies
below.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgement in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements, are disclosed in Note 4.

In 2007, the Group adopted the following new standard,
amendment and interpretations of HKFRSs, which include
all Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
applicable Interpretations (“Ints”), which are effective for
the accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January
2007 and relevant to the Group's operations.

120  Hopson Development Holdings Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
AR MR

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

HKAS 1 (Amendment) Presentation of Financial Statements:
Capital Disclosures

HK(IFRIC)-Int 8 Scope of HKFRS 2

HK(IFRIC)-Int 9 Reassessment of Embedded
Derivatives

HK(FRIC)-Int 10 Interim Reporting and Impairment

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

The adoption of these new standard, amendment and
interpretations did not have any significant impact on the Group’s
accounting policies or results and financial position.

The Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
has issued certain new/revised standards, amendments and
interpretations which are relevant to the Group and are effective
for accounting periods beginning on or after 1st January 2008.

HKAS 1 (Revised) Presentation of Financial Statements

HKAS 23 (Revised) Borrowing Costs

HKAS 27 (Revised) Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements
Share-based Payment Vesting
Conditions and Cancellations
Business Combination

HKFRS 2 (Amendment)

HKFRS 3 (Revised)

HKFRS 8
HK(FRIC)-Int 11

Operating Segments
HKFRS 2 — Group and Treasury Share
Transactions

The Group has not early adopted the above standards,
amendments and interpretations in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31st December 2007. Management
is in the process of making an assessment of the impact of these
standards, amendments and interpretations but is not yet in a
position to state whether they would have a significant impact
on the Group's results and financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A

sre SRR M

2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and all of its subsidiaries made

up to

(a)

31st December.

Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are all entities over which the Group
has the power to govern the financial and operating
policies generally accompanying a shareholding of
more than one half of the voting rights. The existence
and effect of potential voting rights that are currently
exercisable or convertible are considered when
assessing whether the Group controls another entity.

Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The purchase method of accounting is used to
account for the acquisition of subsidiaries by the
Group. The cost of an acquisition is measured as
the fair value of the assets given, equity instruments
issued and liabilities incurred or assumed at the date
of exchange, plus costs directly attributable to the
acquisition. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date, irrespective of the extent
of any minority interest. The excess of the cost of
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share
of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as
goodwill. If the cost of acquisition is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired,
the difference is recognised directly in the income
statement (see Note 2.8).

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between Group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated but
considered an impairment indicator of an impairment
of the asset transferred. Accounting policies of
subsidiaries have been changed where necessary to
ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(a)

(b)

(9]

Subsidiaries (Continued)

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments
in subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Transactions with minority interests

The Group applies a policy of treating transactions
with minority interests as transactions with parties
external to the Group. Disposals to minority interests
results in gains and losses for the Group that are
recorded in the income statement. Purchases from
minority interests result in goodwill, being the
difference between any consideration paid and the
relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net
assets of the subsidiary.

Associates

Associates are all entities over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investments in associates
are accounted for by using the equity method of
accounting and are initially recognised at cost. The
Group’s investment in associates includes goodwill (net
of any accumulated impairment loss) identified on
acquisition (see Note 2.8).

The Group’'s share of its associates’ post-
acquisition profits or losses is recognised in the
income statement, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in reserves is recognised in reserves. The
cumulative post-acquisition movements are adjusted
against the carrying amount of the investment. When
the Group’s share of losses in an associate equals
or exceeds its interest in the associate, including
any other unsecured receivables, the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the
associate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.2 Consolidation (continued)

(9]

(d)

Associates (Continued)

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its associates are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the associates. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of associates have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s balance sheet, the investments in
associated companies are stated at cost less provision
for impairment losses. The results of associated
companies are accounted for by the Company on the
basis of dividend received and receivable.

Joint ventures

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture where
the Group and other parties undertake an economic
activity which is subject to joint control and none
of the participating parties has unilateral control
over the economic activity. Investment in jointly
controlled entity is accounted for under the equity
method of accounting, whereby the investment is
initially recorded at cost and is adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the post-acquisition
results, distributions received, other necessary
alterations in the Group’s proportionate interest
in jointly controlled entity arising from changes in
equity of jointly controlled entity that have not been
included in the income statement of the jointly
controlled entity, the excess of cost of investment
over the Group’s share of the aggregate fair value
of the identifiable net assets acquired at the date of
acquisition is tested annually for impairment, as well
as when there is indication of impairment, and carried
at cost less accumulated impairment losses. The
Group's share of post-acquisition results after taxation
of jointly controlled entities is included in the income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 2. FEEHBFBME»)
(Continued)

2.2

2.3

24

Consolidation (continued) 2.2

(d) Joint ventures (Continued)
A joint venture which does not involve the
establishment of a separate entity but involves the
joint control and ownership by the Group and other
parties of assets contributed to, or acquired for the
purpose of, the joint venture is accounted for as a
jointly controlled asset. The Group’s share of jointly
controlled assets and any liabilities incurred jointly
with other joint venture partners are recognised and
classified according to the nature of the relevant
items. Income from the sale or use of the Group’s
share of the output of jointly controlled assets is
recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to
the Group, whilst the Group’s share of expenses in
respect of jointly controlled assets is recognised as
incurred.

Segment reporting 2.3
A geographical segment is engaged in providing products

or services within a particular economic environment that

are subject to risks and returns that are different from those

of segments operating in other economic environments.

A business segment is a group of assets and operations

engaged in providing products or services that are subject

to risks and returns that are different from those of other

business segments.

Foreign currency translation 24
(@) Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each

of the Group’s entities are measured in Chinese

Renminbi, which is the currency of the primary

economic environment in which the Company and

its subsidiaries operate (the “functional currency”).

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong

dollars, which is the presentation currency.

(b) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement of
such transactions and from the translation at year-
end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in
the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.4 Foreign currency translation

(c)

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are
translated into the presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

(iii)  all resulting exchange differences are recognised

as a separate component of equity.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of the net investment in
foreign operations and of borrowings are taken to
shareholders’ equity. When a foreign operation is sold,
exchange differences that were recorded in equity are
recognised in the income statement as part of the
gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at
the closing date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR MR

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 2. FE@HBEEEw
(Continued)
2.5 Properties and equipment 2.5 YMEEH

Properties and equipment other than construction in
progress are stated at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Historical
cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are expensed in the income statement
during the financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of properties and equipment is calculated
using the straight-line method to allocate cost to their
residual values over their estimated useful lives, as follows:

Hotel property (superstructure) 28 to 50 years

Buildings 50 years
Furniture and office equipment 5 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.9).

Construction in progress is investments in buildings on
which construction work has not been completed and
which, upon completion, management intends to hold
for long-term. These properties are carried at cost which
includes construction expenditures, borrowing costs directly
attributable to construction of such properties and other
direct costs less any impairment losses. On completion,
the properties are transferred to the appropriate categories
of properties and equipment at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. No depreciation is provided for
construction in progress until they are completed and put
into commercial use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing

proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the
income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR MR

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 2. FEGHEEHE»)
(Continued)

2.6 HEYE

2.6 Investment properties

Property that is held for long-term rental yields or for
capital appreciation or both, and that is not occupied by
the Group, is classified as investment property.

Investment property comprises land held under operating
leases and buildings held under finance leases. Land held
under operating leases are classified and accounted for
as investment property when the rest of the definition
of investment property is met. The operating lease is
accounted for as if it were a finance lease.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost,
including related transaction costs.

After initial recognition, investment property is carried at fair
value. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted,
if necessary, for any difference in the nature, location or
condition of the specific asset. If this information is not
available, the Group uses alternative valuation methods
such as recent prices on less active markets or discounted
cash flow projections. These valuations are performed in
accordance with the guidance issued by the International
Valuation Standards Committee. These valuations are
performed annually by external valuers. Changes in fair
values are recognised in the income statement as part of
other gains.

The fair value of investment property reflects, among other
things, rental income from current leases and assumptions
about rental income from future leases in the light of
current market conditions. The fair value also reflects, on
a similar basis, any cash outflows that could be expected
in respect of the property. Some of those outflows are
recognised as a liability, including finance lease liabilities in
respect of land classified as investment property; others,
including contingent rent payments, are not recognised in
the financial statements.

Subsequent expenditure is charged to the asset's carrying
amount only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group
and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repairs and maintenance costs are expensed in the income
statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.6

2.7

Investment properties (Continued)

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it
is reclassified as properties and equipment, and its fair
value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for
accounting purposes. Property that is being constructed or
developed for future use as investment property is classified
as properties under development for long-term investment
and stated at cost less any accumulated impairment losses
until construction or development is complete, at which
time it is reclassified and subsequently accounted for as
investment property.

If an item of properties and equipment becomes an
investment property because its use has changed, any
difference resulting between the carrying amount and the
fair value of this item at the date of transfer is recognised
in equity as a revaluation of properties and equipment
under HKAS 16. However, if a fair value gain reverses a
previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the
income statement.

Investment property held for sale without redevelopment is
classified as non-current asset held for sale, under HKFRS 5.

Properties under development and
completed properties for sale

Properties under development for sale are included in
current assets at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Properties under development for long-term investment
included in non-current assets are stated at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Completed properties for
sale are included in current assets at the lower of cost and
net realisable value.

The costs of properties under development and completed
properties for sale consist of construction expenditures and
borrowing costs directly attributable to construction of such
properties and other direct costs. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business as determined by management with reference to
the prevailing market conditions, less further costs expected
to be incurred to completion and selling and marketing
costs.

No depreciation is provided on properties under
development and completed properties for sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.8 Intangible assets

(a)

(b)

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an
acquisition over the fair value of the Group’s share of
the net identifiable assets of the acquired subsidiary/
associate/jointly controlled entity at the date of
acquisition. Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is
included in intangible assets. Goodwill on acquisitions
of associates and jointly controlled entities is included
in investments in associates and investment in a
jointly controlled entity respectively.

Separately recognised goodwill is tested annually
for impairment, as well as when there is indication
of impairment, and carried at cost less accumulated
impairment losses. Impairment losses on goodwill are
not reversed.

Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include
the carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity
sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the
purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is made
to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the
business combination in which the goodwill arose.

Negative goodwiill

Negative goodwill represents the excess of the
Group's share of the fair value of the identifiable net
assets acquired over the cost of acquisition and is
recognised in the income statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR MR

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 2. FE@HBEREE»)

(Continued)

2.9 Impairment of assets 29 EERE
Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject HEERA AT AEDAERE  WHREF
to amortisation, which are at least tested annually for EITREANRREERFHEIIENEBEEETT
impairment and are reviewed for impairment whenever AU B BR (B P AR R B DRE o REESHAIIR 2
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the EEASERFHENIENBEERERENA
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Assets that W B iRaT B SRE o REEEREEREE
are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment HHE AW E SR FEHR o AIKRES R
whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate BEZATERHEENTEFEABEZERS
that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An & o REMERER - BEMIZAEERRRE
impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which the MEZRIEKF (ReEEEN) EPEE -

asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-
generating units).

2.10 Available-for-sale financial assets 2107 HEMBEE
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives included A EMISEERIITHEIER @ RIEFERE
in non-current assets unless management intends to dispose FEIRNEE R T ZEANLERMIRE
of the investment within 12 months of the balance sheet BRI HHEMBEEST AERBEENR -
date.
Available-for-sale financial assets are initially recognised at At EM B EERTIRAFESMZHEA
fair value plus transaction costs. At each balance sheet R NEEEHENASAHEENBE
date the available-for-sale financial assets are re-measured, E RRESEIN  FRAFEZEHEER
with any changes in fair value being recognised directly in RRAPRER - MREESEBRIEENBRR T E
equity, except for impairment losses which are recognised R BRIHERZEEER - 2 EERRAR
directly in the income statement. When these assets iR Rt iles MEB At AR o

are derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously
recognised directly in equity is included in the income

statement.

2.11 Accounts and other receivables 2.11 BT BR TN B H i FES SR IE
Accounts and other receivables are non-derivative financial JEM BRI S H b R IR RIENTE S REE
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not BEEKAIEENHEE NS ERTS ]
quoted in an active market. They are recognised initially 18 o |ELFIFYI SR A T ERER - mMERAIER
at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised RERMNFAREBIEN RN ERETE
cost using the effective interest method, less provision for i BEREBB AN E S TR EURRR
impairment. A provision for impairment of accounts and RB SR EF A ZIEARIE - Blle S RUER
other receivables is established when there is objective Ko Hoth FEUCRIEVE R B B - BB v B R
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all BEREARMGHARRRERERB LM 2E
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. B WIRERFIRANE o B SR ERR
The amount of the provision is the difference between the RRER

asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate.
The amount of the provision is recognised in the income
statement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR

2. Summary of significant accounting policies
(Continued)

2.12Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks and other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturities of three months or less.

2.13Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Where any Group company purchases the Company’s equity
share capital, the consideration paid, including any directly
attributable incremental costs (net of income taxes), is
deducted from equity attributable to the Company’'s equity
holders until the shares are cancelled.

2.14Borrowings
Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Transaction costs are incremental
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, issue
or disposal of a financial asset or financial liability, including
fees and commissions paid to agents, advisers, brokers
and dealers, levies by regulatory agencies and securities
exchanges, and transfer taxes and duties. Borrowings
are subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the income statement
over the period of the borrowings using the effective
interest method.

Convertible bonds that can be converted to equity share
capital at the option of the holders, where the number
of shares that would be issued on conversion and the
value of the consideration that would be received do not
vary, are accounted for as compound financial instruments
which contain both a liability component and an equity
component.

At initial recognition, the liability component of the
convertible bonds is determined using a market interest rate
for an equivalent non-convertible bond. The remainder of
the proceeds is allocated to the conversion option as equity
component. Transaction costs that relate to the issue of a
compound financial instrument are allocated to the liability
and equity components in proportion to the allocation of
proceeds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR MR

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 2. FE@HBEREE»)
(Continued)

2.14 Borrowings (Continued) 2.148E %)

The liability component is subsequently carried at amortised
cost, calculated using the effective interest method,
until extinguished on conversion or maturity. The equity
component is recognised in equity, net of any tax effects.

When the bond is converted, the relevant equity component
and the carrying amount of the liability component at the
time of conversion are transferred to share capital and
share premium for the shares issued. When the bond is
redeemed, the relevant equity component is transferred to
retained earnings.

2.15Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any
qualifying assets are capitalised during the period of time
that is required to complete and prepare the assets for its
intended use.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

2.16 Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
in the consolidated financial statements. However, if the
deferred income tax arises from initial recognition of an
asset or liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss, it is not
accounted for. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates and laws that have been enacted or substantially
enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to
apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised
or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary differences
arising on investments in subsidiaries, associates and jointly
controlled entities, except where the timing of the reversal
of the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and
it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse
in the foreseeable future.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2.

Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.17 Employee benefits

(a)

(b)

Pension obligations

Group companies operate defined contribution plans
only. The Group pays contributions to publicly or
privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory or contractual basis. The Group has no
further payment obligations once the contributions
have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due and are
reduced by contributions forfeited by those employees
who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully in the
contributions. Prepaid contributions are recognised
as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee
services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as expenses. The total amount
to be expensed over the vesting period is determined
by reference to the fair value of the options granted,
excluding the impact of any non-market vesting
conditions (for example, profitability and sales growth
targets). Non-market vesting conditions are included
in assumptions about the number of options that
are expected to become exercisable. At each balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the
number of options that are expected to become
exercisable.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal
value) and share premium when the options are
exercised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
A SRR MR

2. Summary of significant accounting policies 2. FEEHBRRE»)
(Continued)
2.18 Provisions 2.18%#%

Provisions are recognised when: the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events; it
is more likely than not that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation; and the amount has been
reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

2.19Revenue recognition

Revenue comprises the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sale of properties and services.
Revenue is recognised as follows:

(@) Sale of properties

Revenue from sale of properties is recognised upon
completion of sale agreement, which refers to
the time when the risks and rewards of the sale
transaction are transferred to the buyers. Deposits
and instalments received on properties sold prior to
completion of the respective sale agreements are
included as deferred revenue under current liabilities.

Rental income
Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the relevant leases.

(b)

(c) Property management fees, property design
fees and marketing consultancy fees
Property management fees, property design fees and
marketing consultancy fees are recognised when the
services are rendered.

(d) Hotel operations

Revenue from hotel operations is recognised upon

provision of services.

(e) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion
basis using the effective interest method.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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2. Summary of significant accounting policies

(Continued)

2.19Revenue recognition (Continued)

(f) Government grants (Continued)
A government grant is recognised when there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with
the conditions attaching with it and that the grant
will be received.

Grants relating to income are deferred and recognised
in the income statement over the period necessary
to match them with the costs they are intended
to compensate. Grants relating to the purchase of
properties and equipment are included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income and are credited to the
income statement on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Amounts received for which the earning process has not
been completed are accounted for as deferred revenue.

2.20 Operating leases (as the lessee)

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are expensed in the income statement on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

The up-front prepayments made for the land use rights are
expensed in the income statement on a straight-line basis
over the period of the lease or where there is impairment,
the impairment is expensed in the income statement.

2.21Insurance contracts

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date the liabilities
under its insurance contracts using current estimates of
future cash flows. Changes in carrying amount of these
insurance liabilities are recognised in the income statement.

The Group regards its financial guarantee contracts in
respect of mortgage facilities provided to certain property
purchasers and guarantees provided to its joint ventures
and non-wholly owned subsidiaries as insurance contracts.

2.22 Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is
recognised as a liability in the Group’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the
Company’s shareholders.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

ire SRR

3. Financial risk management 3 HHBRERBRER
3.1 Financial risk factors 3.1 B EREZE

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
foreign exchange risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and cash
flow and fair value interest-rate risk. The Group's overall
risk management policy focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effect on the Group’s financial performance. The Group
regularly monitors its exposure and currently considers not
necessary to hedge any of these financial risks.

(a) Foreign exchange risk
Foreign exchange risks as defined by HKFRS 7 arise
on account of monetary assets and liabilities being
denominated in a currency that is not the functional
currency; differences resulting from the translation
of financial statements into the Group's presentation
currency are not taken into consideration.

Majority of the subsidiaries of the Group operates
in Mainland China with most of the transactions
denominated in Renminbi. The Group is exposed to
foreign exchange risk arising from the exposure of
Renminbi against US dollars and Hong Kong dollars.
It has not hedged its foreign exchange rate risk.

In addition, the conversion of Renminbi into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of
the foreign exchange control promulgated by the
Mainland China government.

At 31st December 2007, if Renminbi had weakened/
strengthened by 1% against US dollars with all
other variables held constant, post-tax profit for
the year would have been HK$26 million (2006:
HK$24 million) lower/higher, mainly as a result of
foreign exchange losses/gains on translation of USD-
denominated senior notes and bank deposits.

At 31st December 2007, if Renminbi had weakened/
strengthened by 1% against HK dollars with all other
variables held constant, post-tax profit for the year
would have been HK$3 million (2006: HK$3 million)
higher/lower, mainly as a result of foreign exchange
gains/losses on translation of HK dollars denominated
bank deposits.
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3. Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable
to deposits with banks and credit exposures to
customers. The Group has credit policies in place and
exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The Group manages its deposits with banks and
financial institutions by monitoring credit ratings. The
utilisation of credit limits is regularly monitored. At
31st December 2007, deposits with banks amounted
to HK$2,260 million (2006: HK$2,569 million) were
made to international/national financial institutions
with sound credit ratings.

In respect of credit exposures to customers, the Group
normally receives deposits or progress payments from
sales of residential properties to individual customers
prior to the completion of transactions. In the event
of default by customers, Group companies undertake
legal proceedings to recover the property. The
Group's other receivables are related to first class land
development projects with fixed guaranteed returns
from local government when the land sites are
arranged for open tender. Amounts due from joint
ventures are generally supported by the underlying
assets.

The Group has arranged bank financing for certain
purchasers of property units and provided guarantees
to secure obligations of such purchasers for
repayments. If a purchaser defaults on the payment
of its mortgage during the term of the guarantee,
the bank holding the mortgage may demand the
Group to repay the outstanding amount under
the loan and any accrued interest thereon. Under
such circumstances, the Group is able to retain the
customer’s deposit and sell the property to recover
any amounts paid by the Group to the bank. In this
regard, the directors of the Company consider that
the Group’s credit risk is significantly reduced.

The maximum exposure to credit risk is represented
by the carrying amount of each financial asset (other
than available-for-sale financial asset) in the balance
sheet after deducting any impairment allowance. The
Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from accounts
receivable and other receivables is set out in Note
19. The Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from
bank deposits is set out in Note 20.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(9]

ire SRR

3 BBEREREw
3.1 MFEREZ®)

Liquidity risk © RHEEEK
Due to the capital intensive nature of the Group’s ERNAEEXBEREREE 2L -
business, the Group ensures that it maintains REERRAGE R 2R RERAHE
sufficient cash and credit lines to meet its liquidity B ENERSHESME °
requirements.
The table below analyses the Group’s financial TRETAREEZHEEE - RRAH
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on FEAER - BEREERESHNIEA
the remaining period at the balance sheet to the ZRIRBRETOMN - KNPABREZS
contractual maturity date. The amounts disclosed in EREAERUNIBSRE - HRITE
the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. BN RER °
Less than 1 Between 1 Between 2 Over
year and 2 years and 5 years 5 years
16K 1524 2E54 HBB5E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FET FET FHT
Group FEE
At 31st December 2007 R-ZZ+F+-_A=1+—H
Borrowings HE 3,685,867 4,176,832 6,994,919 204,161
Accounts and other payables & BEz & E b fE (S 708 2,716,574 - - =
Land cost payable e 3K A 605,289 175,959 - -
At 31st December 2006 R E+-_A=+—H
Borrowings BT 1,865,971 2,668,209 1,929,752 2,932,891
Accounts and other payables & B8Rz & E b fEf 708 1,553,080 = = =
Land cost payable JE A~ 4 3B AR 1,070,928 - - -
Company YN
At 31st December 2007 R_ZEZ+FE+-A=1+—H
Borrowings EHE 221,813 221,813 5,309,853 -
Accounts and other payables & BEz & E b e 708 39,372 = = =
At 31st December 2006 RZZZRF+ZA=+—H
Borrowings BE 220,391 220,391 661,172 2,932,891
Accounts and other payables /st BR 3 K2 B fth FE A~ R0IE 36,105 - - =
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3.

Financial risk management (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(d) Cash flow and fair value interest-rate risk
The Group's interest-rate risk arises from interest-
bearing bank deposits and borrowings. Bank deposits
and borrowings issued at variable rates expose the
Group to cash flow interest-rate risk. Borrowings
issued at fixed rates expose the Group to fair value
interest-rate risk. The Group has not hedged its cash

flow and fair value interest-rate risk.

At 31st December 2007, if interest rates had been
increased/decreased by 1% and all other variables
were held constant, the finance costs, net of amount
capitalised in the properties under development and
finance income, would increase/decrease the Group's
profit by approximately HK$24 million (2006: HK$26

million).

3.2 Capital risk management

The Group’'s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide returns for equity owners and
benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal

capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the
Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to equity

owners, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing
ratio. The gearing ratio is calculated as net debt divided
by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings
(including current and non-current borrowings, as shown
in the consolidated balance sheet) less pledged/charged
bank deposits and cash and cash equivalents. Total capital
represents total equity as shown in the consolidated balance

sheet.
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3.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Financial risk management (continued)

3.2 Capital risk management (continued)

The gearing ratios at 31st December 2007 and 2006 were
as follows:

e MR

3 HBERERw

3.2 ESEREE#
R-BZLER-_ZTTF+_A=+—AHZ
BEREELLRNT ¢

2006

ZEEREF

HK$'000

FHET

Total borrowing (e 12,617,893 7,422,005
Less: Pledged/charged bank deposits o B R IRITER R

and cash and cash equivalents e REEEEY

(Note 20) (F5E£20) (2,262,086) (2,569,796)

Net debt BEFE 10,355,807 4,852,209

Total equity S Ea 20,078,310 8,227,915

Gearing ratio BARE EL =R 52% 59%

3.3 Fair value estimation

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded
in an active market is determined by using valuation
techniques. The Group uses a variety of methods and
makes assumptions that are based on market conditions
existing at each balance sheet date.

The nominal value less estimated credit adjustments of
accounts receivable, other receivables, accounts payable,
balances with related parties and land cost payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of
financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current
market interest rate that is available to the Group for
similar financial instruments.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable

under the circumstances.

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and

assumptions

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning
the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by
definition, seldom equal the related actual results. The
estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilities within the next financial year are

discussed below.

(@) Estimated impairment of properties and

equipment, leasehold land and land use
rights, properties under development for
long-term investment and intangible assets
Properties and equipment and leasehold land and
land use rights are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable. Properties
under development for long-term investment and
intangible assets are reviewed for impairment at each
balance sheet date or whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount
may not be recoverable. The recoverable amounts of
properties and equipment, leasehold land and land
use rights, properties under development for long-
term investment and intangible assets have been
determined based on value-in-use calculations, taking
into account latest market information and past
experience. These calculation and valuations require
the use of judgements and estimates.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)
(b) Estimated write-downs of properties under

()

development for sale and completed
properties for sale

The Group writes down properties under development
for sale and completed properties for sale to
net realisable value based on assessment of the
realisability of properties under development for sale
and completed properties for sale, taking into account
costs to completion based on past experience and
net sales value based on prevailing market conditions.
If there is an increase in cost to completion or a
decrease in net sales value, the net realisable value
will decrease and this might result in write-downs of
properties under development for sale and completed
properties of sale to net realisable value. Write-
downs are recorded where events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the balances may not be
realised. The identification of write-downs requires
the use of judgement and estimates. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimate,
such difference will impact carrying value and write-
downs of properties under development for sale and
completed properties for sale in the periods in which
such estimate is changed.

Estimate of fair value of investment
properties

The best evidence of fair value is current prices in an
active market for similar lease and other contracts.
In the absence of such information, the Group
determines the amount within a range of reasonable
fair value estimates. In making its judgement, the
Group considers information from a variety of sources
including:

(i) current prices in an active market for properties
of different nature, condition or location (or
subject to different lease or other contracts),
adjusted to reflect those differences, by
reference to independent valuations; and
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4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)
() Estimate of fair value of investment

properties (Continued)

(i)  recent prices of similar properties in less active
markets, with adjustments to reflect any
changes in economic conditions since the date
of the transactions that occurred at those prices.

(d) Current taxation and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to taxation in Mainland China
and Hong Kong. Judgement is required in determining
the amount of the provision for taxation and the
timing of payment of the related taxation. There
are many transactions and calculations for which
the ultimate tax determination is uncertain during
the ordinary course of business. Where the final
tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences
will impact the income tax and deferred tax provisions
in the periods in which such determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences or tax losses can be utilised.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition
of deferred taxation assets and taxation in the periods
in which such estimate is changed.

The Group is subject to land appreciation taxes
in Mainland China. However, the implementation
and settlement of these taxes varies among various
tax jurisdictions in cities of Mainland China, and
the Group has not finalised its land appreciation
taxes calculation and payments with any local tax
authorities in Mainland China. Accordingly, significant
judgement is required in determining the amount
of the land appreciation and its related taxes. The
Group recognised these land appreciation taxes
based on management’s best estimates according
to the understanding of the tax rules. The final tax
outcome could be different from the amounts that
were initially recorded, and these differences will
impact the taxation and tax provisions in the periods
in which such taxes have been finalised with local tax
authorities.
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4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

(Continued)

4.1 Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions (Continued)
(e) Depreciation and amortisation

(f)

The Group’s net book value of properties and
equipment as at 31st December 2007 was
approximately HK$2,063,811,000. The Group
depreciates the hotel property, building, furniture and
office equipment and motor vehicles on a straight line
basis over the estimated useful life of 28 to 50 years,
50 years, 5 years and 3 to 5 years, respectively, and
after taking into account of their estimated residual
value, using the straight-line method, at the rate of
2% to 33% per annum, commencing from the date
the asset is placed into productive use. The estimated
useful lives and dates that the Group places the
properties and equipment into productive use reflects
the directors’ estimate of the periods that the Group
intends to derive future economic benefits from the
use of the Group’s assets.

Acquisition of subsidiaries and joint
ventures

The initial accounting on the acquisition of
subsidiaries and joint ventures involves identifying
and determining the fair values to be assigned to the
identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
of the acquired entity. The fair values of investment
properties and development properties held for
sale are determined by reference to market prices
or present value of expected net cash flows from
the assets. Any changes in the assumptions used
and estimates made in determining the fair values,
and management’s ability to measure reliably the
contingent liabilities of the acquired entity will impact
the carrying amount of these assets and liabilities.
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4. Critical accounting estimates and judgements 4. EE@HEERHE o
(Continued)

4.2 Critical judgements in applying the entity’s 42 RER AR BUREKEY

accounting policies

Distinction between investment properties and
owner-occupied properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an
investment property. In making its judgement, the Group
considers whether the property generates cash flows
largely independently of the other assets held by an entity.
Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are
attributable not only to property but also to other assets
used in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services or for administrative purposes. If these portions can
be sold separately (or leased out separately under a finance
lease), the Group accounts for the portions separately.
If the portions cannot be sold separately, the property is
accounted for investment property only if an insignificant
portion is held for use in the production or supply of goods
or services or for administrative purposes. Judgement is
applied in determining whether ancillary services are so
significant that a property does not qualify as investment
property. The Group considers each property separately in
making its judgement.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

=JAN VK:I:
iR BRI EE
Segment information 5. HEER
Primary reporting format — geographical FERBEX -HHEDIE
segments
The Group operates in five main geographical areas for the REEP I EEZ RS A TR -
following businesses:
Guangdong — hotel operation, property development, ERA — JEEEE - MERE - MERE
province property investment and property RpEER
management
Beijing - hotel operation, property development, 3= — BEEE  MERE  MERER
property investment and property MEEIR
management
Shanghai - property development and property s — DEBERRMERE
investment
Tianjin - hotel operation, property development and K — BEEE  MEBRRMERE
property investment
Others —  property design and consultancy services Hity —  YERGHRERERS
The segment results for the year ended 31st December 2007 are HE_ZTHF+ - A=+—RIFEZBREEN
as follows: TS @
Guangdong
province Beijing  Shanghai Tianjin Others Unallocated Group
EEE = Lig X2 Hip ROE 3 4]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FiER FiEx FiEx FiEx TEx S TEx
Total gross segment DEEEGR 5999839 3,607,248 900,636 627,703 9,529 - 11,144,955
revenues I z&
Inter-segment revenues  AER EUL S (2,329) (1,616) - (838) (9,529) - (14,312)
Revenues g 5,997,510 3,605,632 900,636 626,865 - - 11,130,643
Operating profit/{loss) ESHR(B5ie) 3,573,179 1,095,594 420,967 24,172 (283) 48,979 5,162,608
Share of profit less loss of 4 {EHE& A7)
associates w1 17 (716) - - - - (599)
Share of profit of and S REH|EEE
other gains relating to 2 % F R E A
jointly controlled entities Yz 18,316 83,648 - - - - 101,964
Finance income Eipv L ON 50,394
Finance costs BARER AR (136,916)
Profit before taxation R AT 5,177,451
Taxation G| (1,629,245)
Profit for the year FERF 3,548,206
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5. Segment information (continued) 5 SEER @
Primary reporting format — geographical TERFEX - WELSE &)
segments (Continued)
The segment results for the year ended 31st December 2006 are HE_ZZRF+-A=+-RIFEZEEREN
as follows: T -
Guangdong
province Beijing  Shanghai Tianjin Others Unallocated Group
ERA = Lif xi# Hip KOE &M

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TR TR TR TAL

Total gross segment PEEBR
revenues g 3,385,271 2,174,922 665,551 699,523 34,726 - 6,959,993
Inter-segment revenues 1254 48 Ui 2 (2,805) (1,439) - (729) (34,726) - (39,699)
Revenues g 3,382,466 2,173,483 665,551 698,794 - - 6,920,294
I I I I I I I
Operating profit/(loss) BERF/ (B8) 1,302,201 598,993 298,488 122,931 (627) 69,281 2,391,267
Share of loss of an PME—FEE
associate NEAZER (80) = = = = = (80)
Share of profit and other 15— REHEE
gains relating to a B B EA
jointly controlled entity Yz 128,343 - - - - - 128,343
Finance income BF U A 26,814
Finance costs BT A (84,808)
Profit before taxation B E AR 2,461,536
Taxation B (837,358)
Profit for the year FERF 1,624,178
I
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Segment information (continued) 5 SEER @

Primary reporting format — geographical FERBEX -HMEDE @)
segments (Continued)

The segment assets and liabilities at 31st December 2007 and REZZTEF+-A=+—HBoHBEERERE AR
depreciation, amortisation and capital expenditure for the year HEZRIFEZRE BHEREAFEIAT ¢

then ended are as follows:

Guangdong
province Beijing Shanghai Tianjin Others  Unallocated Group
ERE b Lig xi# i KR FEE

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET THET THET TET

Assets BE 21,375239 13,850,226 8,080,173 3,721,335 82,925 107,878 47,217,776
Investments in associates ~ REEE R F 2 RE 120 39,086 - - - - 39,206
Investment in a jointly R-HARZHEE

controlled entity 21 - 676,460 - - - - 676,460
Total assets BEBE 21,375,359 14,565,772 8,080,173 3,721,335 82,925 107,878 47,933,442

Total liabilities BEAE 8,840,512 5,259,441 2,250,079 435,900 4,686,265 6,382,935 27,855,132

Depreciation bl 9782 13,488 726 19,512 333 - 43,841

Amortisation B 14,022 8,650 20,074 2,875 8,647 - 54,268

Capital expenditure ERRER 368,966 5,585 34,424 524,701 388 - 934,064
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5. Segment information (continved) 5 SEER @)
Primary reporting format — geographical TERFEX - WELSE &)
segments (Continued)
The segment assets and liabilities at 31st December 2006 and REZBZRF+A=+—HABEERERE UK
depreciation, amortisation and capital expenditure for the year HEZBILFEZNE  BHEREARIZOT
then ended are as follows:
Guangdong
province Beijing Shanghai Tianjin Others  Unallocated Group
EXRE b4 i xi# i RO F£RE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL THL TR THL THL T
Assets BE 10,984,044 5,309,926 5,008,436 2,692,590 633,962 42,357 24,671,315
Investment in an R —REEEE A A
associate ZIRE - - - - - - -
Investment in a A — [ 2 R
jointly controlled BERIKRE
entity 1,033,245 - - - - - 1,033,245
Total assets HEmE 12017289 5309926 5008436 2692590 633962 42357 25,704,560
I I I I I I I
Total liabilities BEEE 5,445,842 4,703,451 1,789,642 1,056,846 2,897,031 1,583,833 17,476,645
I I I I I I I
Depreciation e 6,009 13,117 468 2,241 282 - 22,117
I I I I I I I
Amortisation b 3| 50,918 1,753 18,076 1,719 7,231 - 79,697
I I I I I I I
Capital expenditure & 7B % 51,053 6,321 1,038 330,167 726 - 389,305
I I I I

Segment assets consist primarily of all of the Group’s operating

assets and exclude tax assets.

Segment liabilities consist primarily of all of the Group’s operating

liabilities and exclude tax liabilities.

Capital expenditure comprises additions to properties and
equipment (Note 7), investment properties (Note 8) and properties
under development for long-term investment (Note 9), and their
related land costs (Note 6), including additions resulting from

acquisitions through business combinations (Note 39).
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DEREH (a)

RERFRN - KBHE
RSB A T A BER DR -

Segment information (continued) 5.

Secondary reporting format — business segments
The Group is organised into four main business segments as

follows:

Property development —  property development in residential YRR = FERELIER 2 MERRE
and commercial projects

Property investment — holding of offices, shops and LIE 202 — B A RS A A R
carparks for investment A= - ERREEE
potential and rental income

Property management — management of residential and e =g = TRy
commercial properties

Hotel operations — hotel operation in Guangzhou, STE A — BN At R R SEELE

Beijing and Tianjin

2006
—EERF
HK$'000
FH T
Revenues W25
Property development Y EIXRE 10,722,391 6,612,915
Property investment MERE 57,548 54,243
Property management Y B 235,191 173,337
Hotel operations BIEEE 115,513 79,799
11,130,643 6,920,294
Total assets REE
Property development YEER 41,902,425 20,288,247
Property investment YK E 3,253,354 3,139,431
Property management LES =B 110,677 121,398
Hotel operations G EE 1,843,442 1,079,882
Unallocated ROMER 107,878 42,357
47,217,776 24,671,315
Investments in associates REERRZIRE 39,206 -
Investment in a jointly controlled entity R—EARZEGHERZERE 676,460 1,033,245
47,933,442 25,704,560
Capital expenditure BEARMZ
Property development W EER 596,779 319,522
Property investment MERE 56,446 43,835
Property management mEER 1,941 1,980
Hotel operations HJE & E 278,898 23,968
934,064 389,305
Analysis of revenues by category: REEES BN -
Sales of properties Sl 2 10,700,387 6,601,678
Rental income from investment properties & ¥ % > F & KA 57,548 54,243
Property management fees LES = 235,191 173,337
Hotel operating income B TE &I A 115,513 79,799
Others HAth 22,004 11,237
11,130,643 6,920,294
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6.

Land costs

The Group’s interests in land costs represent prepaid operating
lease payments and their net book amount is analysed as follows:

6. LA

AEER LKA 2 TR G A
ZEREDFEAMAT

Consolidated

Beginning of the year

Additions

Acquisition of subsidiaries (i)

Disposals

Transfer to investment properties
Transfer from/(to) other non-current asset
Amortisation

4
i

W B2 A0

e

BEZRANE

BEE (2)RERDAE
B3

GEE

Exchange difference M E R
End of the year FR
Analysed as: DT
Non-current FERE
— in relation to properties under - BIERBREZEES
development for long-term investment L/ES
— in relation to properties and equipment R/ EV &
Current mE
— in relation to properties under — AMEHEZERPYME
development for sale
— in relation to completed properties — AIHEZEERME
for sale
Note:
(i) Amount in 2007 includes land costs of GZQREL revalued upon (i)

completion of acquisition of further interest in GZQREL (see Notes
15, 26 and 27) amounting to approximately HK$6,921 million

classified as current assets.

EFR - KE

BE

2006

—TERF

HK$'000

FHT

7,636,318 5,557,964
388,028 1,928,038
9,315,827 1,388,383
(1,918,905) (684,012)
(7,149) (802)
803,748 (768,277)
(45,621) (72,466)
618,453 287,490
16,790,699 7,636,318
381,162 371,470
258,043 128,897
639,205 500,367
15,097,754 6,794,974
1,053,740 340,977
16,151,494 7,135,951
16,790,699 7,636,318

T ERERERABEEERT
2 R IREREE 2 B TN (2B

#£15 +26%27) #16,921,000,000% 7T ©
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Land costs (Continued)

The amount of the amortisation expenses recognised in the
income statement is as follows:

ire MR

6. TIHIERAS (2

RIRER PR BHEFAS T

Consolidated

Cost of sales B AR
General and administrative expenses — R EITHRAX

The amount of the amortisation expenses related to properties
under development has been capitalised as development costs
included in properties under development, completed properties
for sale and properties and equipment.

o
2006
ZETEREF
HK$'000
FHT
2,092 8,035
2,148 1,142
4,240 9,177

BRERTMEZHFER X BRECEMAER RN
FEABRPYE  THEEZEERYERDERR
i o

Consolidated

o

2006
—EERF
HK$'000
FHE T

In Mainland China, held on: RAEBEARE - RUTAHREEA
Land use rights of over 50 years S04 LA b 2+ Hb {5 FA 4 11,509,508 6,019,842

Land use rights of between 10 and N F10FE50F 2 + Hb 5 F 4
50 years 5,278,007 1,613,238

In Hong Kong held on: REE  BUATHERAEE

Leases of over 50 years S0 LA EZ A 3,184 3,238
16,790,699 7,636,318

As at 31st December 2007, net book amount of approximately
HK$1,846,895,000 (2006: HK$1,116,347,000) of the Group’s land
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note
23). As at 31st December 2006, net book amount of approximately
HK$82,562,000 of the Group’s land were pledged as collateral for
bank borrowings of a jointly controlled entity.

As at 31st December 2007, approximately 239,000 square metre
of land with a carrying amount of HK$640 million (2006: Nil)
was restricted due to a pending litigation during the year.

RZFZELF+-A=+—0 FEREEREFEYD
1,846,895,000/8 7T (=TT /N4 & 1,116,347,00074
7U) Z DI B AR EAR R 2 SRIT R B 2 B4 on (P o
23) RZBEXREFE+TA=+—H  FEEREF
1E#782,562,00078 7T 2 L3 2L IR — R AL RIS &
BZRITIER 2B -

R-ZZTZEF+-—A=+—H ' %239,000F 5Kz
i (BREEA640B BB T (T RF : £)) R
FRFFRFAMSZERS
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7. Properties and equipment 7. ¥MIERRH

Consolidated

Ra
Furniture
Construction in Hotel and office
progress property Buildings equipment  Motor vehicles Total
RAR
EEIR BENEF BF BOERE HE Fk
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx FER THT TER TAT T
Year ended 31st December HE-ZEXE+=A
2006 =t-BLEE
Opening net book amount BYREEE 594,824 218,061 77,730 40,204 8,094 938,913
Additions (including HE(BRERML
capitalisation of land use EREEH)
rights amortisation) 250,707 - 51,994 16,670 1,813 321,184
Acquisition of subsidiaries B R B A A - - - 48 270 318
Depreciation e = (8,368) (133) (10,645) (2,971) (22,117)
Disposals e - (8,193) (378) (10,505) (305) (19,381)
Exchange difference ERER 28,247 8,190 8,953 1,746 1,407 48,543
Closing net book amount HRRERE 873,778 209,690 138,166 37,518 8,308 1,267,460
I I I I I I
At 31st December 2006 R-BEAE
+=A=+-8
Cost B 873,778 222,518 138,901 67,684 23,521 1,326,402
Accumulated depreciation 2HTE - (12,828) (735) (30,166) (15,213) (58,942)
Net book amount REEE 873,778 209,690 138,166 37,518 8,308 1,267,460
I I I I I I
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7. Properties and equipment (Continued) 7. MERHE®

Consolidated

)
Furniture
Construction Hotel and office Motor
in progress properties Buildings equipment vehicles Total
2393
REIR i /ES B BAERE AE £
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET TER TET TET TER
Year ended 31st December HZ-ZTt£+=A8
2007 Zt-ALEE
Opening net book amount HREFE 873,778 209,690 138,166 37,518 8,308 1,267,460
Additions (including g (BEEAR L
capitalisation of land use ERREE)
rights amortisation) 529,153 - - 15,745 17,193 562,091
Acquisition of subsidiaries Yok 8 2 A - 154,315 32,124 4,504 - 190,943
Depreciation nE - (20,280) (5,889) (10,944) (6,728) (43,841)
Disposals HE - - - (2,924) (359) (3,283)
Transfer B (707,876) 521,937 28,826 157,113 - -
Exchange difference EXZR 41,285 33,456 8,720 6,278 702 90,441
Closing net book amount HSEERE 736,340 899,118 201,947 207,290 19,116 2,063,811
I I I I I I
At 31st December 2007 R-ZBLE
+=A=+-8
Cost KA 736,340 933,435 208,765 248,790 39,704 2,167,034
Accumulated depreciation LHME - (34,317) (6,818) (41,500) (20,588) (103,223)
Net book amount RHEFE 736,340 899,118 201,947 207,290 19,116 2,063,811
I I
Hotel properties with a net book amount of approximately RZZERALF+_A=Z=+—BEEFEYD
HK$161,291,000 (2006: HK$209,690,000) as at 31st December 161,291,000 7t (= Z754F © 209,690,000/ 7T )
2007 were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities ZBEMEEERERRBRTEE 2 EA D (M
(Note 23). 23) °
Buildings with a net book amount of approximately MRZZZRF+= A=+ —BEREFEL41,229,000
HK$41,229,000 as at 31st December 2006 was pledged as BT EFEERMERARRRTEE 2 ER R (M
collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note 23). 23) °
Construction in progress mainly represents hotel properties, which ERETIEFERRIFAZBEYE - RIEEETLE
will be held for the long-term. All construction in progress is AR BIARRE  AREARER TN =%
located in Mainland China on land held under land use rights 7S AR E w2 i AR R 2 3
expiring from 2042 through 2046.
Depreciation expenses have been included in general and TERXETABRRAZ —REITHER -

administrative expenses in the income statement.
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8. Investment properties 8. WEWE

Consolidated

Fo=y
2006
—EEXREF
HK$'000
FET
Beginning of the year F4 2,503,845 2,583,313
Transfer from properties under HEABRRPYER T MR
development and land costs 143,525 19,975
Disposals He (431,644) (460,607)
Surplus on revaluation EHAR 386,732 261,414
Exchange difference fEH =58 134,377 99,750
2,736,835 2,503,845
All investment properties are located in Mainland China on land FIBREDFEAM R BERERGPNBEBER _Z=+
held under land use rights expiring from 2037 through 2045. Fz TR FHEEmSO D ERRERE 2 i -
They were stated at fair values with reference to valuations FIBERENHXELEGERBUGEMBERITNC
performed on an open market value basis by DTZ Debenham TELF T A=+ —HEAHAMSEREELETZ
Tie Leung Limited, independent qualified valuers, as at 31st H1E - LATESIER -
December 2007.
As at 31st December 2007, approximately HK$1,111,178,000 RZEELEF+_A=Z=+—HB ' AEEBH
(2006: HK$1,323,751,000) of the Group’s investment properties 1,111,178,0007& 70 ( =T Z 754 : 1,323,751,000 %
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note T0) Z REYFE B EAIEREBRITEE 2 i m (K
23). As at 31st December 2006, approximately HK$237,449,000 H23) c RZZEZERF+ZA=+—H ' A5EY
of the Group's investment properties were pledged as collateral 237,449,00078 7T 2 12 & W) 3 B AR 1E — R S R 12 5
for bank borrowings of a jointly controlled entity. ERRTER2ERR® -
The Group leases out certain investment properties under AEERBELEERHEETREME - VHEDR
operating leases, for an initial period of one to twenty years, with —Z+F - ERRERENMEERNGTELD - 518
an option to renew on renegotiated terms. None of the leases EMmaERAES -

includes contingent rentals.
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9. Properties under development for long-term 9. HERHIREZHRTWE

investment
Consolidated
wE
2006
ZTTREF
HK$'000
FHIT
Beginning of the year =) 227,765 234,411
Additions (including capitalisation of it (BREERLEHE R
interest and land amortisation) 4 S ) 34,463 3,466
Transfer to investment properties HRTREYE (136,376) (19,173)
Exchange difference E 3 = 58 9,305 9,061
End of the year FR 135,157 227,765
All properties under development for long-term investment are FIAFERIPRE 2 B RPMEHLNHBEIARE - I
located in Mainland China on land held under land use rights URBBER =+ FE TN AFHEERN T
expiring from 2037 through 2045. ERER R i -
As at 31st December 2006, approximately HK$10,688,000 of the RZZETZRF+_A=+—H ' X&EE%)10,688,000
Group’s properties under development for long-term investment BT FERIIRE 2 BRFPMECERIERERR
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note TEE 2B m (f5E23) ©
23).
10. Properties under development for sale 10. AIHHEZERPYE
Consolidated
RE
2006
—ETXREF
HK$'000
FHT
Beginning of the year F 4] 4,146,742 4,320,803
Additions (including capitalisation of i (BEERNEFE R
interest and land amortisation) + ) 2,103,450 2,614,226
Acquisition of subsidiaries Iz B B BB A B 1,216,166 508,269
Transfer to completed properties for sale RSN HEE Y BERDE (2,897,791) (3,335,672)
Transfer from/(to) other non-current asset BEEe/(R)HEMETHEE 375,548 (133,275)
Exchange difference E 5 =% 239,234 172,391
End of the year F 4R 5,183,349 4,146,742
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10. Properties under development for sale

11.

(Continued)

All properties under development for sale are located in Mainland
China and are located on land held under land use rights expiring
from 2037 through 2077.

As at 31st December 2007, approximately HK$1,014,035,000
(2006: HK$150,291,000) of the Group’s properties under
development for sale were pledged as collateral for the Group’s
banking facilities (Note 23).

Completed properties for sale

All completed properties for sale are located in Mainland China
and are located on land held under land use rights expiring from
2037 through 2077.

As at 31st December 2007, approximately HK$229,259,000 (2006:
HK$627,637,000) of the Group's completed properties for sale
were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (Note
23). As at 31st December 2006, approximately HK$10,926,000
of the Group's completed properties for sale were pledged as
collateral for bank borrowings of a jointly controlled entity.

12. Intangible assets

10. AIEHEZZERPYE o)

1.

12.

FRA R & 2 R WIS BIRRE » AR
RER-_Z=tFE-_T - FHRFERN T HER
(3 S TP

R—ZEELtFE+_A=+—H A&£EH
1,014,035,000/8 7T (ZZZ/ 4 : 150,291,000/ 7T)
Z A E ZEEAP Y ECIIBEASBERITER Y
A (P7E23) ©

At HEZBERIE

2EAIHHEZ B R ERD LR BIARE KRR
BR-Z=tFE-_THHFHRERz T ERE
FAEZ LT -

R—_ZEZ+LHFE+-_A=Z+—HB ' AEEY
229,259,000/ 7T (ZZTZ/NF : 627,637,00077T) 2
AHEEZBERYED BIFERAEBRITEE 2K
A (s23) s RZEEXFE+=_A=+—H" K
£ 84910,926,0007 T 2 F] & 2 B AR MED IR
HE—REERIEH EBIRITER 2 MM -

BEEE

Consolidated

Year ended 31st December 2006
Opening net book amount
Exchange difference

Closing net book amount

Year ended 31st December 2007
Opening net book amount
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 39)
Impairment charge
Exchange difference

Closing net book amount
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"Ee
Goodwill
GE:
HK$'000
T
BE-_ZEENE+-_A=1+—HBIEE
HA Y AR A 102,142
i =% 4,207
B BR @ FE 106,349
BE—_TT+E+_-_A=1+—HIFE
HYER®FE 106,349
U ig— MM B2 (MFEE39) 2,039
VERIER=S (2,039)
i & =% 5,470
BARBR @ FE 111,819
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12. Intangible assets (Continued) 12. BEEE w)
Impairment tests for goodwill & Z R ERR
Goodwill is allocated to the Group’s cash-generating units FESREERBEED BRAZ A EERSELEN
("CGUs") identified according to geographical segment. A ([REELEBMU]) - BEHEZ D HBHEZFIMT
segment level summary of the goodwill allocation is presented
below:

2006
—EEXREF
HK$'000
FET
Guangdong province BEA 86,715 82,499
Beijing 1 25,104 23,850
111,819 106,349
The recoverable amount of a CGU is determined based on REEEEN 2 AIRE B IREFERBEEH - %
value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash flow AEFAEARBREREH R MBREESHRE
projections based on financial budgets approved by management TF R 2R TR TERETT o
covering a ten-year period.
Key assumptions used for value-in-use calculations: ERBEAREZETERR
Guangdong
province Beijing
BERE =
Gross margin ESy[E 51.8% 59.4%
Discount rate I & 12.4% 12.4%
Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past EREERBEBERRNEETISERE 2 THAERTE
performance and its expectations for the market development. HERE o FIERA 2 MR R W ARG RBIE - I REAE
The discount rates used are pre-tax and reflect specific risks B 02 TR R

relating to the relevant segments.
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13. Investments in subsidiaries 13 RMIBARIZRE
Company
N
2006
A S
HK$'000
FH&ET
Unlisted shares, at cost JELETRRG - K AE 74,900 74,900
Due from subsidiaries FE UL T B A B 2k 18 11,829,007 5,230,914
11,903,907 5,305,814
Amount of HK$2,397,312,000 (2006: HK$2,355,410,000) ©%62,397,312,0007 7T (ZZF/5FF : 2,355,410,000
is unsecured, bears interest at 8% to 8.9% per annum and BT EEER B (SFSEESIE) RANR-E
repayable by 2010. The remaining balance of HK$9,431,695,000 —ZF s 2 AIEE - #4%8/59,431,695,000/8 7T (=F
(2006: HK$2,875,504,000) is unsecured, non-interest bearing and TN ¢ 2,875,504,000770) FEURKI B A R 5B A
without pre-determined repayment terms. HIR - BRI EIE R o
Details of the principal subsidiaries as at 31st December 2007 are REZBZLF+ A=+ —BZEEWBRRFER
set out in Note 41. RMIEE41 -
None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any time REBEE_ZT+F+_A=1T—HIEFERNEMK
during the year ended 31st December 2007. B - SHERREESEMEETEEER -
14. Investments in associates 14 REBEARIZRE
Consolidated
mE
2006
—EEXREF
HK$'000
FHIT
Beginning of the year FE5) - 80
Addition 3 1% 39,821 -
Share of profit less loss of associates FE 15 BE & N Bk ARG S 18 (599) (80)
Exchange difference [ 3, =5 (16) =
End of the year F 4R 39,206 -
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14 REZEARZEE @

REENIF ETHENT 2RI

14. Investments in associates (Continued)

The Group's interest in associates, which are unlisted, is as

follows:
Particulars of Place of
Name issued shares held incorporation Assets Liabilities Revenues Profit/(loss)  Interest held
28 FMEEBBTROFE SRRIEH -3 af ' ONE:-¥ V()] Pz
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 %
THET FET THER FET
2006 ZBEAE
Guangdong Huasheng Registered capital of ~ Mainland China 4,584 4,704 689 (202) 39.6%
Cultural Development RMB5,000,000
Company Limited
EREEHRNLER AMEAARS R AR
BRAT 5,000,000 7
2007 “BEtE
Guangdong Huasheng Registered capital of ~ Mainland China 5,072 4,952 842 240 39.6%
Cultural Development RMB5,000,000
Company Limited
EREEHRNLER AMEAARS R AR
BRAT 5,000,000 7
Beijing BHL Logistics Limited Registered capital of ~ Mainland China 42,864 11,201 - (717) 25.0%
US$20,000,000
ERRENREFERDA ERILEN R AR
20,000,000 7T

Investments in associates at 31st December 2007 include goodwill

of HK$7,423,000 (2006: nil).

RIZBZLFT-A=+—H REZERRZRER

12 7,423,0008 7T (ZTTREF 1 ) ©

e REHEARRAA

TETLFEFH
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ire SRR MEE

15. Investment in a jointly controlled entity

Consolidated

15 R—EXREFERZKRE

me
Share of
net assets Goodwiill Advance Total
PHBEE mE B et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET
At 1st January 2006 R-ZTEARFE—A—A 814,008 53,624 - 867,632
Share of post-acquisition 515 U #5148 2 4&
results 128,343 - - 128,343
Exchange difference BE 3 = %8 35,126 2,144 - 37,270
At 31st December 2006 R T T N4
+=—A=+—H 977,477 55,768 - 1,033,245
I I I I
At 1st January 2007 R-_ZEZE+F—H—H
Additions NE
Dividend received B AR B
Consolidated on Bk A — R BT B A R B
becoming a subsidiary FE
Share of post-acquisition 51 U B 18 % 45
results
Excess of acquirer’s interest Ug B A %25 =71
over cost of acquisition U B A A
Exchange difference MEH =5
At 31st December 2007 R-ZEE+F
+-A=+—8
I

Advance to a jointly controlled entity is unsecured, interest-free
and has no fixed repayment terms. The advance is considered
equity in nature.

As at 31st December 2006, investment in a jointly controlled
entity represented the Group’s investment in a contractual joint
venture, Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodao Real Estate Limited
("GZQREL"). GZQREL is established in Mainland China with an
operating period of 20 years up to January 2018 to develop
properties located in Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, Mainland
China.

Prior to the acquisition as described below, the Group was
required to contribute 99.5% of the capital of GZQREL and was
entitled to 44.4% of the voting power in GZQREL. The Group
was entitled to share 69.5% of the profit of GZQREL but had
to assume 99.5% of any losses of GZQREL, and was entitled to
a distribution of 69.5% of GZQRELs assets upon expiry of the
operating period.

162

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

A—RARZEHER 2 BT REER - 28 REREE
B - B2 EERIR AR

RZZBERFT-A=+—H R—HXEEHER
ZREDEAEERENKIEHEHEBRAF
(M8 <& (BER—HEHNAELRE) - BERN
RBIARRERR . - EEHE—T— N\F— AL - AH20
F - HEZESAFMBN T EAREEREEMN 2D
£

R BERT - AREBEEES G E299.5%
BERBR N ERBEEHAILI%IEZRE - NEE TN
BREDEGE269.5%m F) - HAREGEHERZ
99.5% + LA KRB RS L B R im € 5 BL 5 #069.5%
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15. Investment in a jointly controlled entity

(Continued)

On 7th September 2007, the Group completed the acquisition
of Guangzhou Nonggongshang Construction and Development
Company Limited (“GNCDCL") for a total consideration of
HK$52,020,620 (equivalent to approximately RMB50,460,000).
GNCDCL is a 67% shareholder of Guangzhou Sanlian Huagiao
Estate Company Limited (“Sanlian”), whereas Sanlian is a 30%
shareholder of GZQREL. Upon completion of acquisition of
GNCDCL, the Group owns an effective profit sharing interest of
99.5% in GZQREL and is entitled to 88.9% of the voting power
in GZQREL. GZQREL became a subsidiary of the Group since
then.

As at 31st December 2007, investment in a jointly
controlled entity represents the Group’s investment in Beijing
Dongfangwenhua International Properties Company Limited (“BJ
Dongfangwenhua”), a company with a property development
project (“Project Cultural”) in Beijing, Mainland China.

The Group completed the acquisition of the 60.98% equity
interest in BJ Dongfangwenhua on 31st August 2007, for a
total consideration and capital contribution of HK$820,190,000
(equivalent to approximately RMB795,584,000). Upon completion
of this acquisition, the Group is responsible for contributing
95.8% of the capital of BJ Dongfangwenhua and is entitled to
57.14% of the voting power in BJ Dongfangwenhua. Besides, the
Group is entitled to 100% of the profit arising from the office
building and 45% of the profit arising from the hotels in Project
Cultural. Excess of the Group’s share of the net identifiable assets
over the cost of acquisition of approximately HK$84,164,000 has
been recognised in the income statement during the year.

AHEARSEAR

1
oy

ire SRR

15 R—REEREHEEZRE @

RZZZLFNALH FEEZERWBEMNTE
ITHEEEZAZEAR(TRIFAR] BREB
52,020,620/ T (A8 4 AR #50,460,0007T) © &
IAARIARBEN=HEEEEARAR (=K
67% R IR - — BRI A BEB0%ERE 2 Ik
o SEAILTEIRETS - ANEEHBBEZ99.5% A%
mA DD A ERA GE88.9% 1= - BiZH
REHRANERZHBAF

REZBBLF+-A=+—H0 R—HHEEHER
ZRETEAREENERR S X EBREXERAA
(MEREANE ) 2HRE - AR NERERT
ER—EMEERER ((MLHEE ) 2RF] -

R-ZBZLENA=+—8  AEEZERKEILER
FNE260.98% AR RERERNIERES
820,190,000/ 7T (#5574 49 A R #£795,584,0007T) °
IEIERRETER R - AREBEESEILRE S XEZ
95.8%E AT R BRI RR 5 XEEST.14% %
SR N REETBESEIERE R ERE
B 2100%:m 5 &R 8 ALIE BB IE 2 45% 5%
F o FR - EERAEES(hAIHHEEFEBBRI
BEAK AR 4984,164,0007 7T 2 B R IBER R P RER °
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15. Investment in a jointly controlled entity 15 R—ELEEFERZKRE @
(Continued)
The following amounts represent the Group’s share of the assets LT &BAREEN T = A=T—HMa G ERE
and liabilities as at 31st December, and the Group’s share of sales BEREAE  AERFE  UERAEEREHEE—TT
and results of the jointly controlled entities for the year ended +FF+Z A=+ HIEFEMO G ERIEGEE 2 85
31st December 2007: ERENREE
2006
—ETREF
HK$'000
FHIT
Assets: BE:
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,454 146,157
Current assets REEE 946,282 2,064,390
947,736 2,210,547
Liabilities: =R
Non-current liabilities ERBAG (350,199) (769,301)
Current liabilities mEAE (493,072) (463,769)
(843,271) (1,233,070)
Net assets EEFE 104,465 977,477
Revenues W 5 161,535 605,613
Cost of sales and expenses S E RN N B X (110,885) (326,344)
Profit before taxation R B A7 3 7 50,650 279,269
Taxation | (32,850) (150,926)
Excess of acquirer’s interest at fair value W B 5 #E 25 A AR E R AR B
over costs okl 84,164 -
Profit for the year AN Z g A 101,964 128,343
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16. Investments in jointly controlled assets

Certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into a jointly controlled
assets arrangement with Guangzhou Zhuguang Real Estate
Development Company Limited, an independent third party,
under which each of the Group companies and Guangzhou
Zhuguang Real Estate Development Company Limited contributed
land and other assets for the development of properties located
in Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, mainland China. During
the year ended 31st December 2007, the Group’s participating
interest in these jointly controlled assets was 95.5% (2006:
95.5%). The Group’s share of the net profit of the jointly
controlled assets for the year amounted to HK$280,423,000
(2006: HK$184,801,000) and the net assets of the jointly
controlled assets as at 31st December 2007 amounted to
HK$1,082,620,000 (2006: HK$718,503,000).

17. Available-for-sale financial asset

e BRI

16 RLREFEEZRE

AEEETHBARE—EBLE=HFEMEKLEH
ERZRERAR Y —BAREHEELH - Bt
REBET AR REMNGKEEMERBEERARSH
FREEAIA R B KRR A BN 2 MR 0 R HoAtb
BE REE_TTHF+-A=1+—HLEFERN
AEEEAZEHERIERIEES.5% (=TT RF
95.5%) 2 S ks o NEEFEEILERIZHIEAE
457 5280,423,0007%8 T (= Z T /<4 ¢ 184,801,000
BIL)MAEER-_TT+F+-A=1+—HEEH
[R5 8 B S E 2R 19 /51,082,620,00078 7T ( —TZ /N
£ : 718,503,000/87T) °

17 FAEHEMBEE

Beginning of year F4)

Addition $ig

Fair value gains recognised in equity R PR Z AT ERE
(Note 26) (PfFE26)

Exchange difference EHER

End of year FH

There were no disposals or impairment provisions on available-
for-sale financial asset in 2007 or 2006.

Available-for-sale financial asset includes the following:

2006

ZETEREF

HK$'000

FHT

291,834 -
- 291,834
151,965 -
19,359 -
463,158 291,834

R-ZBZBLFR BT NFUEHREATHHENBE
BRI E MR E R E R -

AHHEMBEEREATSE

2006
ZETREF

HK$'000
TET

Unlisted investments in Mainland China PR AREIE ETIRE
The available-for-sale financial asset is denominated in Chinese
Renminbi. The fair value of the unlisted equity securities in
Mainland China is determined using the price/earnings multiple
method taking into account the risks and nature of the
underlying business.

463,158

291,834

AEHERBEETIUARBIIE - PRIAEI LT
BAFEH 2 A FETERATRF AL RAABER
[\ Ko M T EERE
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18. Prepayments for acquisition of land and 18. WEE L MFRT MIA RFAMT IR ~ #%
prepayments, deposits and other current T REMTEEE
assets
Consolidated Company
RE A F

2006 2006

2T RF —TTRF

HK$'000 HK$'000

THET THETT

Prepayments for acquisition Y & £

of land (i) FB A R IE () 12,027,112 634,080 - =
I I I I
Prepayments, deposits and FEff I8 « &4 &
other current assets Hibhme & E
Deposits for acquisition g 3N i gl (1)
of equity interests (ii) 1,159,390 1,172,415 - —
Guarantee deposit ERZS 52,632 50,000 - -
Prepaid construction
expenditures BT RS RE 25,336 22,454 - -
Land deposits TR E 517,895 - - -
Prepaid sales taxes A HER 231,068 223,789 - =
Utility and other deposits 2 F 58 15 & H i 12 & 110,187 49,137 - -
Others HAh 197,148 160,552 - =
2,293,656 1,678,347 - =
I
As at 31st December 2007, deposits and other current assets are REZZZTEFT-A=1+—H  BEZeREMRE

neither past due nor impaired. ECBHISURE °
Notes: Bt &E -
(i  Prepayments for acquisition of land represents advances made for () WU 2 FER RIBE SRR AL A B K RE 2

(i)

the acquisition of land use rights in Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou,
Tianjin, Dalian and Shanxi, Mainland China. Formal land use right
certificates have not yet been obtained as at 31st December 2007.

Prepayments for acquisition of land include an amount of
approximately HK$7,500 million for the land situated in the
Chaoyang district of Beijing in connection with the Group's
acquisition of 80% equity interest in Believe Best Investments
Limited which, through its wholly owned subsidiary, possesses the
right to develop the Jing Run Project on the land (see also Note
40(e)).

Of the prepayments for the acquisition of land, approximately
HK$250 million represents the guaranteed deposit for the
demolition of the greenfield of Jing Run Project (see also Note
40(f)).

This represents advances made to independent third parties for the
acquisition of majority interests in certain Mainland China entities
whose principal activities are property holding and development.
The acquisitions are not yet completed as at 31st December 2007.

(i

THEREMmAELRT - EEm - BN - X
BT REHRILETBA TERFIEL 2 2
e RZBZLF+A=+—H  HAREE
Bz T FRHEE -

B 30 2 B B IR L R A5 @ A i
B8 497,500,000,00078 7 » s i 8 Jh B AR
W EEREABR AR Z80%EEE/ ' M
ZARIEBENBAR HAEZHEAEEL H
B2 BEF| (JR2 BRKI5E40(0)) °

PRGBS 3t 2 TN EREF - 49250 B BT
EHEFBREERB 2RIEH(Lb 2 BRIZS
(IN2BBHEE40()) ©

BEThER BB E THRAEEE (KX EXH
RYMERARFE) 22 BBRE R 78
VYE=ZFEHZBER - R-_ZETLF+ A
=+—A KRR -
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19. Accounts receivable and other receivables

(a) Accounts receivable

Consideration in respect of properties sold is generally
payable by the buyers at the time of completion of the
sale and purchase agreements. Rentals in respect of leased
properties and property management fees are generally
payable in advance by the tenants on a monthly basis.

The ageing analysis of accounts receivable is as follows:

e BRI

. FEURER A B H fh FEUR FXIE
(@) FEWERFX (&)

EHEMEZRE—RENRBEEHZTKE R
MEAXN - HEMEZHERYEERE—
RARBEFEAERN -

FEMRBR T BRER AT T

Consolidated

0 to 3 months 0Z31EA
3 to 6 months 3%6{EA
6 to 9 months 6Z91E A
9 to 12 months 9E 1218 A
Over 12 months BiE1218 A

Carrying values of accounts receivables denominated in
RMB approximate their fair values.

As at 31st December 2007, approximately 16% (2006:
24%) of the accounts receivable was due from one (2006:
two) customer. Other than this, there is no concentration of
credit risk with respect to accounts receivable as the Group
has a large number of customers.

RE
2006
ZETRF
HK$'000
FHIT
95,244 39,059
3,106 7,840
- 3,780
1,737 850
38,656 59,613
138,743 111,142

FEU AR ARENE (AARBEHE) EEAFEN
=

R-ZBTLE+-A=+—8 ' BUEXTLH
B16%(ZTTRE © 24%) H—% (ZEZ
NEMR)BPER RIS - BRARE
EERERZ BRI EEESP 2RR -

EEAREEAERRIA —FTE L FFR
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19. Accounts receivable and other receivables 19. FEURBRFN R H b FEUL FRIE (42)

(Continued)
(a) Accounts receivable (Continued) () FEUWLERFK (#)
As at 31st December 2007, accounts receivable of RZZETLEF+_A=+—8" BERER
HK$43,499,000 (2006: HK$72,083,000) were past due but 43,499,000/ 70 (= Z & /<4 : 72,083,000 %
not impaired. These relate to a number of independent 7) EEEEARR(E o thFEFRIRE S LT N
customers for whom there is no recent history of default. ERRACHBCBUEFPER - ZERBERZ
The ageing analysis of these accounts receivable is as BREeDITIAT
follows:
Consolidated
RE
2006
ZETEREF
HK$'000
FHET
0 to 3 months 0Z3f@A - -
3 to 6 months 3Z61EA 3,106 7,840
6 to 9 months 6Z91E A - 3,780
9 to 12 months 9= 121@ A 1,737 850
Over 12 months iBiE 1218 A 38,656 59,613
43,499 72,083
(b) Other receivables (b) HiEWFKIE
Other receivables are related to the Group’s participation E fth fE Y IE B AR SR B 2 B ep B K P B (R EE B E B3R
in first class land development projects in Mainland China 2T —ARFEBBE AR - (EARAEEEL D
with fixed guaranteed returns as a percentage of the funds Bg o
made by the Group.
The carrying values of other receivables denominated in AARBEEHEZ H b UG IE 2 BRI (B B E A E4E

RMB approximate their fair values. =)
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e MR

20. Pledged/charged bank deposits and cash and 20. Bk TR ITEREREERR

cash equivalents

EEEY

Consolidated Company

RE

D H

2006 2006

ZEZ T = EZ TS
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET

Cash at bank and on hand 77 & FEIR & 2,234,594 2,093,137 1,269 40,799
Short-term bank deposits 42 EA$R 1777 5X 27,492 476,659 27,225 476,003
2,262,086 2,569,796 28,494 516,802

I

The effective interest rate on the over-night bank deposits was
3.65% (2006: 3.50%) per annum.

As at 31st December 2007, the Group’s cash at bank of
approximately HK$167,979,000 (2006: HK$131,420,000)
was charged by certain banks in respect of the processing of
mortgage facilities granted by the banks to buyers of the Group’s
properties.

As at 31st December 2007, cash at bank of approximately
HK$98,473,000 was restricted due to pending litigations.

The carrying amounts of pledged/charged bank deposits and cash
and cash equivalents are denominated in the following currencies:

RERBITERZERFENEA365E(ZTTNF .
3.50&) °

RZZTT+F+-A=+—0 ZEERTRELD
167,979,000/87C (ZZZ /4 : 131,420,000/ 7T) E
WETHRTIER - UWERTEEGHERNASEYES
RETIRIBEESE -

R-ZZ+F+-—A=+—H ' 498,473,000/ T2
SRITIR S TVRFRFAMZ IR

BT HRBRTERER e RA S SEY < REE
TIATEREIE

Consolidated Company
e

AL

2006 2006
e —ETX
HK$'000 HK$'000

TET THET

Chinese Renminbi AR 2,174,223 1,972,081 - -
Us dollar x7T 37,586 99,727 27,293 90,819
Hong Kong dollar BT 50,277 497,938 1,201 425,983
Other currencies Hih g - 50 - =
2,262,086 2,569,796 28,494 516,802

I I I I
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21.

22.

Land cost payable

21.

Land premium payable L HES
Land compensation payable JE < 4 b 47 1B 5Kk

Less: Amount due within one year included 3 :

in current liabilities BEZ®H

The carrying values of land cost payable denominated in RMB
approximate their fair values.

Accounts payable

The ageing analysis of accounts payable (including amounts due
to related companies of trading nature) is as follows:

22.

SFARBEEAN—FA

P&+ 1 R A
Consolidated
=a

2006

—EERF

HK$'000

FAET

221,660 390,041
559,588 680,887
781,248 1,070,928
(605,289) (1,070,928)
175,959 -

AANRBETEZ B LR A AR (B 22 H A FEAR
S5

FEfTERX

BEER 2 IR AT (B TR A TR 5
M2 BRR) T

Consolidated

0 to 3 months 0ZE3{@A

As at 31st December 2007, approximately HK$70,686,000 (2006:
HK$344,617,000) of accounts payable was due to subsidiaries of
minority shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the Company in
respect of property construction fees.

The carrying values of accounts payable denominated in RMB
approximate their fair values.

mE
2006
—EEXREF
HK$'000
FHIT
953,128 563,378

R-BELF+—A=+—R  RYEREBEMNA
AETHEBARDBRRZMERRZEROR
70,686,000/8 7T (ZF /N4 ¢ 344,617,000/87T) ©

e

NARKERIE 2 BN RREESEE A FERSE -
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23. Borrowings 23. 8§
Consolidated Company
Fod=) YN

2006 2006
“TEAF —EEAF
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT

Non-current FETRED
Bank borrowings RITEE 5,291,810 3,425,413 - =
Senior notes EEERE 2,674,717 2,651,550 2,674,717 2,651,550
Convertible bonds ] #a R (& %5 1,752,471 - 1,752,471 -
9,718,998 6,076,963 4,427,188 2,651,550
Current mE
Bank borrowings RITEE 2,898,895 1,345,042 - =
Total borrowings BmiEs 12,617,893 7,422,005 4,427,188 2,651,550
I

RZTEZTRE+— A ARRAETREEE
350,000,000 2 7T ( 4948 & $42,730,000,0007% 7T ) 2
8125 B - BRIEXA2,733,182,0007 T ©
BEZBALFERIBN(ZE—=F+—A8) r LAE
B2 1% % 2 E{E350,000,0003% 7T © ANA A AR
BR-_ZENE+— AN BB IRIEE B R
ZEEE (MEEER B SRR ZFE) BRI 25
LD BRI

In November 2005, the Company issued 8.125% senior notes
with an aggregate nominal value of US$350,000,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$2,730,000,000), for a total consideration
of approximately HK$2,733,182,000. The senior notes mature in
seven years (November 2012) and are repayable at their nominal
value of US$350,000,000. The Company will be entitled at its
option to redeem all or a portion of the senior notes on and
after 9th November 2009 at the redemption prices specified in
the offering circular, plus accrued and unpaid interest to the
redemption date.
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23. Borrowings (Continued) 23. EEw

The senior notes recognised in the balance sheet are calculated
as follows:

REEBBEXRTHBZEBEREENT

Nominal value H{A

Premium component i R=iEv)

Issue costs BEATRC A

Fair value at the date of issuance RETHBHZATE
Amortisation of premium i (B 5
Amortisation of issue costs TR AN 55
Exchange difference ME W, 7= 5

Carrying amount at 31st December

As at 31st December 2007, the senior notes are jointly and
severally guaranteed by certain subsidiaries and are secured
by the capital stock of the subsidiaries. The net assets of
these subsidiaries were approximately HK$523,272,000 (2006:
HK$167,815,000) as at 31st December 2007.

On 2nd February 2007, the Company completed the issue of
RMB1,830,400,000 aggregate principal amount of USD settled
Zero Coupon Convertible Bonds. The bonds mature in three years
(January 2010) from the issue date at 104.59% of the nominal
value or can be converted into ordinary shares of the Company
on or after 14th March 2007 at a conversion price of HK$30.08
per share at a fixed exchange rate of RMB0.9958 to HK$1.

The fair value of the liability component was calculated using a
market interest rate for an equivalent non-convertible bond at the
time of issue, and is recorded as non-current borrowings on the
amortised cost basis, until extinguished on conversion or maturity
of the bonds. The residual amount, representing the value of the
equity conversion option, is included in shareholders’ equity (Note
26).

R+ A=+—BZKHEE

2006

—ETRF

HK$'000

TET

2,730,000 2,730,000
3,182 3,182
(73,965) (73,965)
2,659,217 2,659,217
(782) (303)
19,490 10,136
(3,208) (17,500)
2,674,717 2,651,550

R—ZET+HE+-_A=+—HB BEZEHRETH
B AR R R AEBIR L IER - 30 AKT B A R 2 IR AN
VR - RZBTHE+-A=+—1 ' ZZEWEA
Al BEFELN A523,272,0008 T (ZTTNF
167,815,000/ 7T )

TTHF AR AAREREBETUELLE
BARRES - NeiEE L ARM,830,400,000
ZEBFHBTAREH =F (=22 —ZF—A)
BIZHEEZ10459%F 8 kAR —ZTLF=4
+1 A 8 2 5 1R 5% 30.0878 7T 2 I AR (B E Ak AR D
AIEEAR - HEFERAARE0.9958 T 17T

A

SIS
o o ||

BERSN 2 A HETVIRBLUI SR ESR TR
ZTIBH R - WRE R A REE ARSI AIERE
fBE  BEERFEFEESRKIBAIL - 415 (AE
ik Y ) st AR (H5E26) -
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23. Borrowings (Continued) 23. EEw

The convertible bonds recognised in the balance sheet are REEBEXRPERNATRRESTEOT
calculated as follows:

Net proceeds from of convertible bonds R-_TET+LF-_F-—BETZ
issued on 2nd February 2007 AR E S 7 TS B R4 1,790,801
Equity component (Note 26) Rz B (M EE 26) (227,734)

Liability component on initial recognition

on 2nd February 2007 R-ZZEZELF-_A_HYGRERFZAETH 1,563,067
Interest expense (Note 30) B (M3 30) 104,390
Exchange difference MEH =5 85,014
Liability component at 31st December 2007 R—ZE+F+_A=+—BZaE%H 1,752,471

I
The maturity analysis of the borrowings is as follows: BEZEEA T
Bank borrowings Senior notes Convertible bonds Total
RITEE BERE RS st

2006 2006 2006 2006
ZRERE —BRRF —EBRAF —EBRRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FAT FAT TRT TRT

Within one year —4 & 2,898,895 1,345,042 - - - - 2,898,895 1,345,042
Between one and —#ZEMER

two years 3,589,885 2,232,017 - - - - 3,589,885 2,232,017
Between two and WEZEHER

five years 1,546,136 1,193,396 2,674,717 - 1,752,471 - 5,973,324 1,193,396

Wholly repayable 4 py & g :8

within five years 8,034,916 4,770,455 2,674,717 - 1,752,471 - 12,462,104 4,770,455
Over five years BARE 155,789 - - 2,651,550 - - 155,789 2,651,550
8,190,705 4,770,455 2,674,717 2,651,550 1,752,471 - 12,617,893 7,422,005

——— E—— ——— E— ——— E— ——— ——
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23. Borrowings (Continued) 23. EEw
The carrying amounts of the borrowings are denominated in the BEREEA TIEEREMREEBE 2 ERAEN
following currencies with the respective effective interest rates: T
2007 2006
—E2ELE ZETREF
Effective
HK$'000 interest rate
FHET B R A=
Chinese Renminbi AR
- Bank borrowings —R{TEE 8,190,705 6.9% 4,770,455 6.3%
— Convertible bonds — AR ES 1,752,471 7.0% - -
US dollar ETT
— Senior notes —BEER 2,674,717 8.6% 2,651,550 8.6%
12,617,893 7,422,005
I
The carrying amounts and the fair values of the borrowings are BEZEEERATENT !
as follows:
Carrying amounts Fair values
BREE AF{E
2006 2006
—ETREF ZTTREF
HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET
Bank borrowings RITEBE 8,190,705 4,770,455 8,170,308 4,787,416
Senior notes BhERE 2,674,717 2,651,550 2,723,615 2,703,158
Convertible bonds Al 3 AR & 5 1,752,471 - 1,750,063 -
12,617,893 7,422,005 12,643,986 7,490,574
I
The fair values are based on cash flows discounted using rates NHEDHAREAREETOEENXR6.6[EE862
based on the Group's average borrowings rate of 6.6% to 8.6% (ZZ2TRF  63EE86E) B ZHE(RTHEE
(2006: 6.3% to 8.6%), depending on the currency denomination ERER) At E N ERSIRER] -

of the borrowings.
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23. Borrowings (Continued)

As at 31st December 2007, the Group's banking facilities were
secured by:

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(vi)

(vii)

the Group’s land costs of approximately HK$1,846,895,000
(2006: HK$1,116,347,000);

the Group’s hotel property of approximately
HK$161,291,000 (2006: HK$209,690,000);

the Group’s building of nil (2006: HK$41,229,000);

the Group’s investment properties with an aggregate
carrying amount of approximately HK$1,111,178,000 (2006:
HK$1,323,751,000);

the Group’s properties under development for long-term
investment of nil (2006: HK$10,688,000);

the Group’s properties under development for sale of
approximately HK$1,014,035,000 (2006: HK$150,291,000);
and

the Group’s completed properties for sale of approximately
HK$229,259,000 (2006: HK$627,637,000).

ire SRR

23. &8

R-IZE

tEFTZA=T—B  AEEZRTEET

AT FIERRER

0

(i

(iil)

(iv)

(Vi)

(vii)

#91,846,895,000 & 7L( = T T N F
1,116,347,000787T) 2 NS E L oA

#9161,291,000 % mw( = T T K &
209,690,000/87T) 2 A BBEYIZ

HNEBT(ZZTZTN
REEEF

SE 41,229,000 7T ) 2

HRBRTEEAY1,111,178,000/8 7T (Z BT /N4 ¢
1,323,751,00087T) 2 NEERE W

HTHEIT(ZZTT/NF 10,688,000/ 7T) 2
AEERBERRPIRE ZEEDYE

#91,014,035,000 & JT( = T T XN &
150,291 ooo/%n)ZZlK%lTﬁiﬁ%Z%’*Eqﬂ
WE &k

#9229,259,000 & JT( = T T X F
627,637,000;‘%7%)2$;E@T Hjﬁza 2359
W o

T F L F F R
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24. Deferred income tax 24. IBIEFR1SH:
EEFRIBEERBERAERTHBEEENAGES
TR BRI SS REEF SR AR — BT - 5

A BRI o HESEBIIT

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset when
there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when the deferred income
taxes relate to the same tax authority. The offset amounts are as
follows:

Consolidated

wa
2006
—ZTRF
HK$'000
FExT
Deferred tax assets: BREFIEEE !

— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — R+ @A %Y E
after more than twelve months ZEERIBEEE 101,218 31,032

— Deferred tax assets to be recovered — R+ @A Ak E
within twelve months ZIEERIBEE 6,660 11,325
107,878 42,357

Deferred tax liabilities: RERIEAE !

— Deferred tax liabilities to be realised — BN+ EABKEIR
after more than twelve months ZEERIEAGE (5,606,672) (808,339)

— Deferred tax liabilities to be realised — BN+ @A RNEIR
within twelve months ZIEEIEAE (406,427) (311,475)
(6,013,099) (1,119,814)
(5,905,221) (1,077,457)

The gross movements on deferred taxation are as follows: RIERIBARZ BT

Assets/(liabilities) 2006
BE(afk) ZETEREF
HK$'000
T
Beginning of the year FE ) (1,077,457) (718,268)
Acquisition of subsidiaries W BE T B A 7 (3,871,555) (31,606)
Recognised in the income statement NIEEEER (960,202) (291,825)
Credited directly to equity (Note 26) BRI S (M FE26) 183,026 =
Exchange difference FEN =5 (179,033) (35,758)
End of the year F R (5,905,221) (1,077,457)
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24. Deferred income tax (continued) 24.

The movements in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities,
without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances

within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

Deferred tax liabilities

EAEB IS E

At 1st January 2006
Recognised in the income
statement

Acquisition of subsidiaries
Exchange difference

At 31st December 2006

Recognised in the income
statement

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Credited directly to equity
(Note 26)

Exchange difference

At 31st December 2007

Deferred tax assets
EEBIEEE

At 1st January 2006
Recognised in the income
statement

Exchange difference

At 31st December 2006
Recognised in the income

statement
Exchange difference

At 31st December 2007

AHEARSEAR

ire SRR

IRERSEH @

BIERRE E MORIER IR B B B8 (W EZ EHR
AIERERAZ I T

Timing
difference in
Revaluation reporting
surplus revenue Total
[ ONEE 1
EREK 2 E #at
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
THET FET FET
RZZEZRF—-—A—H (616,367) (153,863) (770,230)
68,986 (349,357) (280,371)
Lo B Bt /B8 & &) (31,606) - (31,606)
E N =58 (24,309) (13,298) (37,607)
RZZZERF+A
=+—H (603,296) (516,518) (1,119,814)
R8s R TER
197,983 (1,219,855) (1,021,872)
Lo i Bf B 2 F) (3,530,767) (340,788) (3,871,555)
BRI
(P 7£26) 183,026 - 183,026
MEH =5 (114,633) (68,251) (182,884)
R-ZZZLF+-A
=+—H (3,867,687) (2,145,412) (6,013,099)
Tax losses
BEEE
HK$'000
FET
RZZEERF—H—H 51,962
R8s R ER
(11,454)
ME 3, = 58 1,849
RZBZERE+A
=+—H 42,357
R8s &R MR
61,670
X2 3.851
R-ZZZLF+-A
=+—H 107,878

EEXEE xS

1
oy
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24. Deferred income tax (Continued) 24, IREFRBH 2
Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax loss carried forwards to R AE R TR B E Ty B FE AR A B0 7S A 2 T 3 38 AR ORI AR
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefit through Bm A ER Mt A o BIEEBERR - R
the future taxable profits is probable. As at 31st December 2007, ZTLEF+ZA=T—H AEBELEHBIED
the Group did not recognise deferred tax assets of approximately 348,138,000 7 (=TT /N4 | 224,727,000 7T)
HK$66,301,000 (2006: HK$46,896,000) in respect of tax TERIE L 71 38 & EE4966,301,000/8 7T ( Z T T /N4 ¢
losses amounting to approximately HK$348,318,000 (2006: 46,896,000/87T) « WEBEEEEN _TTN\EE
HK$224,727,000) which are expiring from 2008 through 2012. —E——ERER -
25. Share capital 25. B
Number of Ordinary
shares shares
B#H&EAE ZER
‘000 HK$'000
T A% FHT
At 1st January 2006 R=ZFEEF—H—H 1,213,600 121,360
Issue of shares BTN
— placements — e p% 60,000 6,000
— employee share options scheme —EEBRKRESZ 11,500 1,150
At 31st December 2006 R-ZFTERF+-_A=+—H 1,285,100 128,510
Issue of shares BT
— Share consideration —BHRE 182,232 18,223
— employee share options scheme —EEERKRETZ 5,036 504
At 31st December 2007 RN—_ZEEt+tFE+-_A=+—H 1,472,368 147,237
The total authorised number of ordinary shares is 2,000,000,000 ETE TR 2 488042,000,000,0008% (ZFZT/RF ¢
shares (2006: 2,000,000,000 shares), with a par value of HK$0.1 2,000,000,000/% ) FAXEEO. 178 L (ZTZ/14F -
per share (2006: HK$0.1 per share). All issued shares are fully AR0.1787T) IfA - FTBEE EITIRHD B SUBRRK
paid.
In August 2007, the Company issued 182,232,346 shares at RZZBZLFN\A - ARRIAER21.958 T 2 B1%
HK$21.95 per share, totalling HK$4,000 million as part of the #£17182,232, 346k A5 - & #£3Z4,0008 8 E T © 1
consideration for the acquisition of 80% interest in Believe Best RWEREEREERARIBO%ER 2 B RE(R
Investments Limited (see Note 40(e)). Hi5E40()) °
During the year ended 31st December 2007, the Company issued REE_ZTZ+F+ _A=+—HILFERN  ARFA]
5,036,000 shares for a cash consideration of HK$35,295,000 ME B B IR 1T 5 85 775,036,000 AR AR {7 H HR IR,
upon exercise of employee share options. © R (E35,295,000# 7T °
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25. Share capital (continued)

Share options

The Company has an employee share options scheme, under
which it may grant options to employees (including executive
directors of the Company) to subscribe for shares in the
Company, subject to a limit that the total number of shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options
granted and yet to be exercised under the share options schemes
of the Company shall not exceed 30% of the shares in issue
from time to time. The exercise price will be determined by the
Company’s board of directors and shall at least be the highest of (i)
the closing price of the Company’s shares on the date of grant of
the options, (i) the average closing price of the Company’s shares
for the five trading days immediately preceding the date of grant
of the options, and (iii) the nominal value of the Company’s
shares of HK$0.1 each. This employee share options scheme will
remain in force for a period of 10 years up to 2012.

Movements in the number of share options outstanding and their
related weighted average exercise prices are as follows:

e MR

25. AR

FERR

ARFE—HEBERETS - Bt ARF AR
B(BEARRNTES) REBREUAZBARF
Befn - HERR AR RIEAAEST S - PRAERHERTRE
BB IHE T AT TR B TR D 488 NS BIBA R
AT BITRINM3Z0% © (TEESHARTEES
BE - BT ORTI=E2&B%E  (ARE KD
REERER B 82 Wi (8 - (R EEBAERE A
HATAIER 5 B AR BB 2 FEHRTE - Ri)AR
B EE(SR0.1ETT) - NMEEBREBINE
BT FEHRESRER -

RITEIBEARIERE N EARRA IR T a1 TR B 2 #Fan
T

2007 2006
—EBELF —ETREF
Average
exercise
price in HK$
per share Options
1T{EfE =i
HK$ ‘000
BT T15
At 1st January W—HA—H 5,036 5.3 16,536
Granted [SF: 4] 20.75 7,964 = =
25.2 1,000 - -
Exercised B17{F 6.2 (3,000) 4.3 (6,000)
8.2 (2,036) 4.3 (4,000)
- - 6.2 (1,500)
At 31st December Rt+-_A=+—8H 21.24 8,964 7.0 5,036

As at 31st December 2007, 7,964,000 (2006: 5,036,000)
outstanding share options were exercisable.

KRBT LF+-A=+—H#H7,964,00000 (=F
TN ¢ 5,036,00017) AITTEMIARTTE 2 BEAAE
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25. AR @)

BERHE ()
MR AT SR AR A > A B R AT BB AN T -

25. Share capital (continued)
Share options (Continued)

Share options outstanding have the following expiry dates and
exercise prices:

Share options

B B R
Exercise

price HK$
per share 2006
BRITEECER) ZTERF
HK$'000
FAT
10th August 2010 —E—-ZTFNA+AH 6.2 - 3,000
14th September 2010 —Z—TFHA+WA 8.2 - 2,036
18th January 2012 —Z——%—A+NH 20.75 7.964 =
24th October 2012 —ET——F+A=-+mA 252 1,000 =
8,964 5,036

Options exercised during the year ended 31st December 2007
resulted in 5,036,000 (2006: 11,500,000) shares being issued
at HK$6.2 and HK$8.2 respectively (2006: HK$4.3 and HK$6.2
respectively). The related weighted average share price at the time
of exercise were HK$19.4, HK$23.2 and HK$25.6 respectively
(2006: HK$14.9, HK$15.0 and HK$15.3 respectively) per share.
The related transaction costs amounting to HK$20,000 (2006:
HK$5,000) have been netted off with the proceeds received.

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the
year ended 31st December 2007 as determined using Binomial
Lattice Model was approximately HK$5.39 per option or in
aggregate HK$48,356,000. HK$43,401,000 was charged to the
income statement as employment cost for the year ended 31st
December 2007. The significant inputs to the model was share
price of HK$20.75 and HK$25.2 at the grant date, exercise
price shown above, standard deviation of expected share price
returns of 30.6%, contractual life of options of 5 years, expected
dividend paid out rate of 2.73%, and annual risk-free rates of
4% and 2.68%. The volatility measured at the standard deviation
of expected share price returns is based on the analysis of the
equity option in the convertible bonds issued by the Company
during the current accounting period.

REBE-_TT+F+-A=1+—RI-FEETEZHE
ARAEE B5,036,000/% A% (=T Z /<4 & 11,500,000
BR) AFRR6. 28T k8 28T (Z T NF © 438
K6.2787T) 2 (BI&EET « 1T{EE R 2 ABRE hniE A%
BN R BEFR19.4ETT - 2328 T 2568 (=F
TRE D 14987 15.08 L R15.387L) - BEAR
S A4420,0007 7T (ZFFNF - 5,00087T)
ERFTURER 2 SRIEA 0 ©

REBEE-_ZT+E+-_A=+—ALFERHZER
T2 FH A FEL = XIS G E BB R IER
WE#)5.397 T+ & £ /548,356,000/% 7T © 43,401,000
BTEEHE-_ZStF+-_A=1t—"HILFEZE
R NEAEENASZ I - #ZIER 2 F 2R A
BRHE B 2D EH820.75/8 7T 2528 7T « £ XXAT
RZATE(E - TAHIRERRIZEE30.6%  BRIES
HHARR AL F - TEHARR BUREER2.73% KRR EFIE
4%22.68% ° VATEERRR (B Bl AT AE = 51 8 2 8 & A
ARBIRAG IR BT TR EHFAZ REEE
DT BERE -
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26. Reserves 26. f##E

Consolidated

RE
Currency
Share Statutory  translation Retained
premium reserves  difference earnings Total
%
B E EE ERERE RE & F st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHT FHET FHET
Balance at 1st January RZZTERF
2006 —RA—HZz#&% 1,622,021 154,014 66,092 3,500,221 5,342,348
Transfer to reserves (i) T () - 7,103 - (7,103) -
Currency translation EHEE i,
differences =5 - - 214,482 = 214,482
Profit for the year F T = - - 1,553,752 1,553,752
Dividend relating to 2005 BR-_ZTREZRS — - — (295,143) (295,143)
Dividend relating to 2006 BR-_ZTREZRE - - - (132,311) (132,311)
Employee share options E BBk iE
scheme iz
— value of services provided —(EERKEEBE 1,620 - - - 1,620
Issue of shares TR
— placement — BERR 990,000 - - - 990,000
— employee share options —EERRE
scheme aTE 51,150 - - - 51,150
Share issue expenses R ETES (16,743) - - - (16,743)
Balance at 31st December RZZEERF+ZA
2006 =t+t—Hz#&% 2,648,048 161,117 280,574 4,619,416 7,709,155
I I I I I
Representing — KER-
2006 Final dividend BR-ZTTREF
proposed REIRR B 348,669
Others Hh 4,270,747
4,619,416
I
Analysed by — )it
Company and subsidiaries ZNETS NG| 4,165,523
Jointly controlled entity HR T 455,781
Associate AN (1,888)
4,619,416
I
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26. Reserves (Continued)

26. &=

Currency
Share Statutory translation Retained
premium reserves difference earnings Total
B
R 43 5 B HERE EREH RERF @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHL FHT FHT
Balance at 1st January 2007 ¥ —ZZT 4
—A—Bz&#% 2,648,048 161,117 280,574 4,619,416 7,709,155
Issue of convertible bonds  Z47AT A R 8 % - - - - 227,734
Currency translation R 3,
differences £4 - - 696,153 - 696,153
Profit for the year EERF = = - 3,517,312 3,517,312
Dividend relating to 2006 BR-ZZAEZKE = = = (348,669) (348,669)
Dividend relating to 2007 BR-ZT+E£ZREA = = = (145,764) (145,764)
Employee share options EEREBE
scheme BE _
— value of services —EBR%
provided BE 43,401 - - - 43,401
Issue of shares BT
— Share consideration - RIHKE
(Note 25) (H&E25) 3,981,777 = = = 3,981,777
— employee share —EEER
options scheme R 34,791 - - - 34,791
Share issue expenses RRP BT X (20) = = = (20)
Fair value gain on AHHERBEEZ
available-for-sale NFERES (HEE17)
financial asset (Note 17) - - - - 151,965
Acquisition of a subsidiary, U8 — RSB B2 & (K
net of tax (i) BE) i) = = = = 2,180,096
Realised upon disposal of &= EYE
properties held for sale (i) % i) - - - - (513,811)
Deferred tax (Note 24) R IE (M E24) - - - - 183,026
Balance at 31st December W—-ZZT+ 4%+ —A
2007 =t+—Hz#&#H 6,707,997 161,117 976,727 7,642,295 17,717,146
I I I I I I I
Representing — RE—
2007 Final dividend BE-TTtF
proposed RER S 471,158
Others Hih 7,171,137
7,642,295
I
Analysed by — A —
Company and AR A R
subsidiaries G| 7,561,134
Jointly controlled entity HREEG EE 83,648
Associates A UNG (2,487)
7,642,295
I
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26. Reserves (Continued)

26. ##E @

Company
PN
Convertible Currency
Share bonds  translation Retained
premium reserve difference earnings Total
EIE: g
B0 35 (B BEHFEE EXZH REEF Mgt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET THEIT FHET FHET FHET
Balance at 1st January R-ZTBERE
2006 —A—B2&%#% 1,622,021 - - 323,704 1,945,725
Profit for the year FERFI = - - 492,376 492,376
Currency translation difference S E X £ - - (45,570) - (45,570)
Issue of shares BT
— placements — e % 990,000 - - - 990,000
— employee share options —EEBERE
scheme 2 51,150 - - - 51,150
Share issue expenses BOBEITRS (16,743) = = = (16,743)
Employee share options scheme (& & i & 4 =1 21
— value of services provided - EERBEE 1,620 - - - 1,620
Payment of dividends YARE - - - (427,454) (427,454)
Balance at 31st December R-ZBEREF
2006 +-RA=+—Hz#&#% 2,648,048 - (45,570) 388,626 2,991,104
I I I I I
Representing — K& -
2006 Final dividend BE-_ZTENE
proposed RERR 2 348,669
Others Hih 39,957
388,626
I
Balance at 1st January R-_ZEZT+F
2007 —RB—Bz&#% 2,648,048 - (45,570) 388,626 2,991,104
Profit for the year FEEHF - - - 580,813 580,813
Currency translation difference S E ¥ =48 - - (54,467) - (54,467)
Issue of convertible bonds BT MRES - 227,734 - - 227,734
Issue of shares BIRM
— Share consideration -BRHRE
(Note 25) (F3E25) 3,981,777 - - - 3,981,777
— employee share options —EEBRETE
scheme 34,791 - - - 34,791
Share issue expenses R ETRAX (20) - - - (20)
Employee share options scheme (& & i ik # =1 21
— value of services provided -EERBEE 43,401 - - - 43,401
Payment of dividends T RE - - - (494,433) (494,433)
Balance at 31st December RZET+E
2007 +tZRA=+—Hz&#% 6,707,997 227,734 (100,037) 475,006 7,310,700
I I I I I
Representing — R&-
2007 Final dividend proposed BE-_ZZ+E
REREE 471,158
Others Hit 3,848
475,006
I
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26. Reserves (Continued)

Note:

@

(i)

As stipulated by regulations in Mainland China, the Company’s
subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are
required to appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after
offsetting prior year losses) to the statutory reserves and enterprise
expansion fund, at rates determined by their respective boards of
directors. The statutory reserves can be utilised to offset prior year
losses or be utilised for the issuance of bonus shares, whilst the
enterprise expansion fund can be utilised for the development of
business operations. During the year ended 31st December 2007,
the boards of directors of the Company’s subsidiaries in Mainland
China appropriated an aggregate amount of approximately nil (2006:
HK$7,103,000) to the statutory reserves and determined not to
make any appropriation to the enterprise expansion fund.

Upon completion of the acquisition of GNCDCL as described in
Note 15, GZQREL became a subsidiary of the Group and the fair
value gain in respect of the 69.5% interest in GZQREL previously
held by the Group of approximately HK$2,180,096,000 net of tax
has been accounted for as an asset revaluation reserve directly in
equity on acquisition. Upon subsequent delivery of the properties
developed by GZQREL, the related portion of the asset revaluation
reserve is released to the income statement..

26. &=

B

()

(i

IREBA B RRERARRTRE - AR AR BIARER
N RKEE 7 WEARIZARERTIRER (K
HBTFEERRE) FRL BN EETEHE
RE¥EBRES  HEIHEEESSET ©
VETE RS AT R VEIR SR F S A58 sk R 1EEE AT
AR - MEERRESATREZRES -1
HE-_TT+F+-_A=1t—HIFE AR
Al PBREMB AR 2 EFTGHEBROTE
TE(ZZT /N4 ¢ 7,103,000/8 7T ) B5XEREHE
RAETEBAELERRES °

R FER U EE & T A R (M sE15FTa) % -
BEXAAEEM2WBEAR  RAKEL
Rl 35 B 2 18 #69.5% M 2 2 N F E M = 4
2,180,096,0007 7T (B MR BII8) B 5 A
BEMERE EABRIMNHEMBARERDN
MR - BESMFE A BI0BRARE
E\Eoo
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27. Other gains 27. Hiyx s

2006
e A S
HK$’000
FET

Excess of acquirer’s interest over cost W2 B A TR 2 e P LK A AR
of acquisition (i) 2 FRIAG) 1,052,965 199,803
Fair value gains on investment properties HEYE T ANFEEKZE 386,732 261,414
Government grants (ii) B 8 B (i) 43,750 44,314
1,483,447 505,531

Notes: st :

(i)  This amount includes the excess of the Group’s interest at fair [0) ZEBOEAEERSUAFEFEESLE
value over cost of acquisition of GNCDCL and the additional 30% THEARZWERAZ BHEREE-—ZT+
interest in GZQREL of approximately HK$847,726,000 during the FE+—A=+—HILFEE  EEEEEINE30%
year ended 31st December 2007 (see Note 15). T #7847,726,00078 T °

(i) This represents grants received from government bureaus in (ii) I 53R B AR B KB ER T HE R 2 B o

Mainland China.
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28. EMHEE s ZHAX

FXBIBEERA - HERTSHEERA - AR —K&

28. Expenses by nature

Expenses included in cost of sales, selling and marketing costs

and general and administrative expenses are analysed as follows:

RITHER ST

2006
—EEREF
HK$'000
FET
Advertising costs BERX 191,386 159,280
Amortisation of land costs o b B A 2 8 4,240 9,177
Auditor’s remuneration 1% B B & 4,980 3,450
Cost of completed properties sold HEDERYE ZRA 6,424,467 4,300,969
Depreciation of properties and equipment ¥ % % i35 #& #7 & 43,841 22,117
Direct operating expenses arising INTHEAREMEEEZ
from investment properties that BEEEERX
— generated rental income —EXRLWA 2,369 1,699
— did not generate rental income —WEELEESKA 3,098 3,491
Employees’ benefits costs (including BEERIKA(BEREES
Directors’ emoluments) (Note 29) B <) (B 5E29) 381,361 240,390
Loss on sale of properties and equipment HEWME R REEIE 3,283 18,681
Net exchange gain (included in general ME 5 U 5 5 58
and administrative expenses) (FFA—MRRITHER) (162,760) (111,373)
Operating lease rental in respect MEZKLEERS
of premises 22,690 12,467
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29. BERFIAA (BEEEME)

29. Employees’ benefits costs (including
Directors’ emoluments)

2006

ZETRF

HK$'000

FHIT

Salaries and allowances e MEa 229,880 154,577

Sales commission and bonus HEMe MIEA 73,327 58,207
Share-based payments LARR 9 /3 BBt 2 B A

(Share options granted) (B R E) 43,401 1,620

Pension costs RIKE KA

— Defined contribution plans — A EHFEE 34,753 25,842

— Provision for long-service payment —RERB S EE - 144

381,361 240,390

(a) Pensions — defined contribution plans (@) BAE-FAEMFNE
The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees REFEEEBEREELTH2E—1HA— B

to join the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF
Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme managed by an
independent trustee. Under the MPF scheme, each of the
Group (the employer) and its employees make monthly
contributions to the scheme at 5% of the employees’
earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund
legislation. The monthly contributions of each of the
employer and employees are subject to a cap of HK$1,000
and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans
for its employees in mainland China. The Group's employees
make monthly contributions to the plans at approximately
8% of the relevant income (comprising salaries, allowances
and bonus), while the Group contributes 12% to 22% of
such income and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions beyond the contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

During the year ended 31st December 2007, the aggregate
amount of the employer contributions made by the
Group amounted to approximately HK$34,753,000 (2006:
HK$25,842,000).

MASFEABE Z EREMHAKETE - Blas AT
e8I (RESE D) - BERESHE - K
£EH(BX) FEEESBARAHEATESE
BIETRE & B iR %ZE B A Z5% R & 8I1E
BAHK - BEREEAMEZEARRERE
1,000 7T %2 M1,0008 7T IA % 2 308
BEREME -

BB B AR ZERRE - AEBAENGTEH
RiEZ REEE —EHRBERERZRNGTE -
AEEREESAREHEBBA(BEHE  E
B MAEAT) H98% HIRTBIfEH 43K - AL EAlR
ZEFWAR%E22%ME H R o B G LMK
Sh - R EE M H EHRRARES M FHEME ©
BREDERFE BB RNMER 2 24
BIRE »

BE-_ZTT+F+-_A=+—HILFEH
B AEBEELZEIHIABENS
34,753,00078 7T ( = T Z /X4 © 25,842,00078
7E) ©
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29. Employees’ benefits costs (including 29. BERFIHA(BHREEME) @)
Directors’ emoluments) (continued)
(b) Directors’ emoluments b) E=ME
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st HE_ZZ+F+-_R=1T—RHILFE  &F
December 2007 is set out below: EZMeEHINOT ¢

Name of Director

EEnE
Executive directors HTES
Mr. Au Wai Kin BmERELE - 240 - 12 252
Mr. Chen Chang Ying BREBLE - 1,504 - 36 1,540
Mr. Chu Mang Yee KRERELE - - - - -
Mr. Tam Lai Ling (ii) Bk A (i) - 4,619 - 11 4,630
Mr. Wu Jiesi (jii) B R B 5T A i) - 9,866 43,000 12 52,878
Mr. Xiang Bin B OWEE - 2,000 - 12 2,012
Ms. Xiao Yan Xia BEELL - 1,158 - 56 1,214
Mr. Xue Hu (i) B OREE®) - 876 - 42 918
Mr. Zhao Hai (i) HOBEA) - 979 401 - 1,380
- 21,242 43,401 181 64,824
I I I I I
Non-executive director ~ E#TESE
Mr. Shafran Steven HERk B Sk 4 - - - - -
I I I I I
Independent BYFHTES
non-executive
directors
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David ~ ZEZE %4 160 - - . 160
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oilver & && 5% & 160 - - - 160
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Phillip  Britigs & 160 - - - 160
480 - - - 480
I I I I I
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29. BERFBA(BREEHE) »

29. Employees’ benefits costs (including

Directors’ emoluments) (continued)

(b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) b) E=fE =)
The remuneration of each director for the year ended 31st HE_ZZXFTA=1+—HIFE  &F
December 2006 is set out below: EZMEEHHNNAT ¢
Employer's
Salaries Share- contribution
and based to pension
Name of Director Fees allowance payments scheme Total
EEHE
Hek AR 2 A ReatEl
EEd e EEE ERZERN A Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET FET TET THET
Executive directors HITES
Mr. Au Wai Kin BMERLE - 240 - 12 252
Mr. Chen Chang Ying BRESELE - 1,899 - - 1,899
Mr. Chu Mang Yee KBEREE - - - - -
Mr. Tam Lai Ling (ii) BB E LA i) - 4,520 - 12 4,532
Mr. Wu Jiesi (jii) W e (1) - 7,510 - 12 7,522
Mr. Xiang Bin B dEk4t - 2,000 - 12 2,012
Ms. Xiao Yan Xia ERExL - 2,512 - 94 2,606
- 18,681 - 142 18,823
I I I I I
Non-executive FHTES
directors
Mr. Hu Yongmin B L - - - - -
Ms. Chen Xiaohong BRI 2 £ = - - - -
Mr. Shafran Steven M B A - - 1,620 - 1,620
- - 1,620 - 1,620
I I I I I
Independent BYHTES
non-executive
directors
Mr. Lee Tsung Hei, David ~ ZEE%£4 150 = - - 150
Mr. Wong Shing Kay, Oilver &#&# %4 150 - - - 150
Mr. Yuen Pak Yiu, Phillip  Briti@s% 4 150 - - - 150
450 - - - 450
I I I I I
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29. Employees’ benefits costs (including 29. BERFINA (BREEME) @
Directors’ emoluments) (continued)
(b) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (b) E=M< @
Note: FieE
0} Mr. Xue Hu and Mr. Zhao Hai were appointed as executive (i) BEREEREEEEN_TT+F+A
directors of the Company on 23rd October 2007. T =RAEZERNATITES -
(i) Mr. Tam Lai Ling resigned on 1st December 2007. iy FBEELER-_ZTLF+_A—H#E
£
@iy~ Mr. Wu Jiesi resigned on 17th January 2008. iy HREBEER-TZZN\F—A+LAH
£
During the year, Mr. Chu Mang Yee waived emoluments of FA - RARMKSENEE240,00078 T 2 Bil€ (=
HK$240,000 (2006: HK$240,000). TZ A 1 240,00077T) ©
(c) Five highest paid individuals 0 hEamaEiHAT
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in REEAEEREGESFALTBE=2(ZZ
the Group for the year include three (2006: five) directors ZRE:BR)ES REZMEER XA
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis presented 22 AR - BN RENTHSRE (=
above. The emoluments paid and payable to the remaining TTRF - E)ERMALZBSNT

two (2006: nil) individuals are as follows:

2006

—TERF

HK$'000

T

Salaries and allowances e MR 4,756 -
Employer’s contribution to BEHRAKETEZ

pension scheme 2k 24 _

4,780 =

The emoluments fell within the following band: Bil& A T4 R -
2006
—TERF

HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 L&
2,500,000% 7T 2 -
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30. Finance income and costs 30. ABWNE B A
2006
TR
HK$'000
FHET
Interest expense: FMERX :
— on bank loans wholly repayable — AR EFANBH
within five years EENIRITER 449,743 261,991
— on bank loans not wholly repayable —TNERAFRNEHRESR
within five years HRITER 1,399 —
— on senior notes wholly repayable —ERAFANBEE
within five year BNEARE 232,007 220,537
— on convertible bonds wholly repayable —BRAFREBEEE
within five year B A A E S 104,390 -
Total borrowing costs incurred BT I 2 B8 B AR 787,539 482,528
Less: Amount capitalised as part of the cost W BEEERTYMEZ
of properties under development ER1D A AN 7 38 (650,623) (397,720)
136,916 84,808
Interest income from bank SRR B WA (50,394) (26,814)
Net finance costs T B 75 B AR 86,522 57,994
The average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalised for the REBEZE_ZZ+F+_A=+—HULEFE BRE
year ended 31st December 2007 was approximately 7.2% (2006: TOBERRNTHENELNRT 2% (ZFTRE
6.9%) per annum. 6.9%) °
31. Taxation 31 #HIE
(a) Hong Kong profits tax (@) FEREH
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of BANGRIHBZ =TT LF+_A=1+—
17.5% (2006: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profit BZ At ERB R FIZ17 5% ( =TT RF -
for the year ended 31st December 2007. 17.5%) BB B o
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=
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upvE eI

31. Taxation (continued)

(b) Other income tax

(9]

The Company is exempted from taxation in Bermuda until
March 2016. Subsidiaries in the British Virgin Islands are
incorporated under the International Business Companies
Acts of the British Virgin Islands and, accordingly, are
exempted from British Virgin Islands income taxes.

Subsidiaries established and operated in Mainland China are
subject to Mainland China enterprise income tax at the rate
of 33% (2006: 33%) for the year ended 31st December
2007.

Mainland China land appreciation tax
Mainland China land appreciation tax is levied at
progressive rate ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales of
properties less deductible expenditures including costs of
land and development and construction expenditures.

31. #IE )

(b)

©

Hfth Fr 15t
AATEREBHETRENEEE —F—AF
=R ERBRLBERI B AR TIR
BRBELHSARAEARD AR - &
it - HEse BB LRSS -

BHEZZLF+-A=+—HIEFE &2
B AP B KB AR ST R AR B P 8B 1) B 4233 %
(ZZTRGF : 33%) 2B RGP B RER 2
PRSHL °

o B K R St {E A

REARE LIS ERR L E - B SR
EFEREMRAAES (2 nER
X R + R BHEBIE30% Z60% U «

Taxation consists of: MIABLE

Current tax NEABIIA
Hong Kong profits tax HEENEH
Mainland China enterprise income tax AR ARRESEER
Mainland China land appreciation tax AR K B (A

Deferred tax IR AE 5 18
Hong Kong profits tax EENEH
Mainland China enterprise income tax B KBEDEREH
Mainland China land appreciation tax B K R - i S E R
Effect of tax rate change MEEH I HE

2006

—EERREF

HK$'000

FHT
(805) (7,282)
572,602 454,722
97,246 98,093
669,043 545,533
- 7,650
478,380 78,901
605,095 205,274
(123,273) -
960,202 291,825
1,629,245 837,358
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31. Taxation (Continued) 31. BilE@)
Share of the jointly controlled entities’ taxation for the year HE_ZTZ+F+_A=+—RHIEFESIEHRE
ended 31st December 2007 of approximately HK$32,850,000 P B 88 B T 40 832,850,000 T (Z BTN F ¢
(2006: HK$150,926,000) is included in the income statement as 150,926,000/8 7T ) * W E R BSK AFIVED 1h 2R
share of profits of and other gains relating to jointly controlled 8 58 2 A e EL e as o
entities.
On 16th March 2007, the National People’s Congress approved RZBZHLF=A+"E 2EARRKKKRGEH]
the Corporate Income Tax Law of the People’s Republic of China HEPEARKMBCEMBRE(HEEMSH
(the “new CIT Law"). The new CIT Law reduces the corporate 5] c I EMBHAIEBRANTEZ EMBHHE
income tax rate for domestic enterprises from 33% to 25% with H33% M 225% H—TT/\F—A—HRBEH -
effect from 1st January 2008. As a result of the new CIT Law, AR EMETECER  REE_ZT+F+=
the carrying value of deferred tax liabilities has been reduced by R=E+—BLEHE ELEHEEBEZREES RS
HK$123,273,000 for the year ended 31st December 2007. 123,273,000 7T °
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31. Taxation (continued) 31. *ﬂlﬁ(%)

ANEE 2 BB AT R N B IR & 62 B i 1B s
MBERAE 2 BReBAMER - FBEWAT

The tax on the Group’s profit before tax differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the weighted average
tax rate applicable to profits of the consolidated companies as
follows:

2006
=ENAE
HK$'000
FHET
Profit before tax & B4 AT 55 5,177,451 2,461,536
Less: Share of profit less loss of associates & : 9554 2 7% KR &8 599 80
Less: Share of profit of and other W B EREFIEE
gains relating to jointly i ) B Ho At 5=
controlled entities (101,964) (128,343)
5,076,086 2,333,273
Tax calculated at domestic tax rates BREE 2% F#EBER
applicable to profits in the respective MEFE BB
countries 1,680,718 764,073
Income not subject to tax THFRB A (420,237) (166,473)
Expenses not deductible for tax TR 7 2 H 1,629 16,838
Land appreciation tax deductible AR ERTTEMEH
for calculation of income tax purposes Az T B ER (231,774) (100,111)
Utilisation of previously unrecognised BRBERERARIBEIE
tax losses (17,223) (705)
Deferred tax asset not recognized AABRZEERBEE 37,064 20,369
Effect of tax rate change HRgg s wE (123,273) -
926,904 533,991
Land appreciation tax + i (E 702,341 303,367
1,629,245 837,358

The weighted average applicable tax rate was 33% (2006: 33%).

IEFHEFE R A33%(ZFTZ/RF 1 33%) ©
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32. Profit attributable to equity holders of the
Company

The profit attributable to equity holders of the Company is dealt
with in the financial statements of the Company to the extent of
HK$580,813,000 (2006: HK$492,376,000).

33. Earnings per share

Basic

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit

attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

32.

33.

e MR

TR IRERE ARSI T

ARAFIIRKESS B AFE(E 5 7580,813,0004 70 (ZFZF
7N4F © 492,376,000/ 70 ) AR RIBA 5k A R Bk o

BREF

BN
SREREF TAREAD TR AR TR
FEREBTEBRZIETIBEL -

2006
—ETRF
HK$'000
FHExT

Profit attributable to equity holders
of the Company

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
in issue (‘000)
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share)

BB HBRZ ME
FIHB (FR)
SRERRH (SRET)

AR AR RSB A A S T

3,517,312

1,553,752

1,384,432
2.54

1,228,297
1.27
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33. Earnings per share (Continued)

Diluted

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. The Company
has 8,964,000 share options outstanding during the year
ended 371st December 2007, of which 7,964,000 share options
are dilutive potential ordinary shares. Calculation is done to
determine the number of shares that could have been acquired
at fair value (determined as the average daily market share price
of the Company’s shares) based on the monetary value of the
subscription rights attached to outstanding share options. The
number of shares calculated as above is compared with the
number of shares that would have been issued assuming the
exercise of the share options. The profit attributable to equity
holders of the Company and the weighted average number
of ordinary shares outstanding are also adjusted for the bonds
issued in February 2007.

33.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= AR

J1\ gy /\ﬁﬁ%i&% B,H‘E\E

BSERER @

31

STESREERTE  CHBBITL R NE
FHHELRAE  URSMEAEEENZER
RERSER - ARNFANEE_ZT+F+-A
=+— B EFEH8,964,00017 i AT TEEEAHE -
Er7,964,00017 AR 1 B EEETE ) 2 ik o
FTE IR M ARITEEARERM 2 R 2 &%
BEH - AUEBTREUAFE (BRI ALRAR
Bz ERFHRE) WEZRHZEE - £X
FratE 2R MmE B Ty R R AR R TR M E 2%
T2 A BB ELLER - ANA RIRIERE A AFE(R 5
MRBETLBRMELSEE TR ST LF
ZABBITZERELAE -

2006
ZETREF
HK$'000
FHT
Profit attributable to equity holders RRAEIRERE B AR
of the Company 3,517,312 1,553,752
Interest expense on convertible bonds AR ESZ M BRAX
(net of tax) (N FiE) 68,587 =
Profit for calculation of diluted earnings AESREERR 5T
per share 3,585,899 1,553,752
Weighted average number of ordinary shares — 2 217 %@ A% 2 An#E
in issue ('000) FEHE(TRR) 1,384,432 1,228,297
Adjustments for BB K
— shares to be issued on conversion —RER AR R E S
of convertible bonds (‘000) T 81T 7’5 (FAR) 53,423 -
— share options ('000) —ERE (T1H) 830 2,896
Weighted average number of ordinary shares & & #EE R T 2 L @A
for diluted earnings per share ("000) MEFHE (TI’) 1,438,685 1,231,193
Diluted earnings per share (HK$ per share) FRESEHN (FRET) 2.49 1.26

196

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2007



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
T e B R MR

34. Dividends 34. B2
2006
ZTTREF
HK$'000
FHIT
Interim dividend paid of HK$0.099 B Bk B e A AR
(2006: HK$0.108) per ordinary share 009 L (ZZTTNF ¢
0.108% 7T ) 145,764 132,311
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.32 Bk KBRS BRE B
(2006: HK$0.271) per ordinary share 032BTL (ZTETNF -
0.271%7T) 471,158 348,669
616,922 480,980
The proposed final dividends have to be approved by shareholders IR R HARR BB IR A F 45 B 12 BN ig 8217 2 IR 53R
at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting subsequent to the FREGLHE - RZZBTLF+_A=+—RHZHH
year end. The financial statements as at 31st December 2007 WERAPIWERMZEENRE

have not reflected such dividend payable.
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35. Notes to the consolidated cash flow 35. ZeRERERME
statement
(a) Cash generated from operations (@ REMEBEZHEE
2006
ZETREF
HK$'000
FHT
Profit before taxation R F4 A1 S8 F 5,177,451 2,461,536
Adjustments for: AE
— Interest income —FLE WA (50,394) (26,814)
— Finance costs — B F& AR AR 136,916 84,808
— Share-based payments —UARMDAEREZER
(Share options granted) (BEREZHERRE) 43,401 1,620
— Share of profit of and other — o h—EERZEHEE
gains relating to jointly 25 A B Bt e as
controlled entities (101,964) (128,343)
— Share of profit less loss —DIEHE QA
of associates 34 5 18 599 80
— Depreciation of properties and —MERRBETE
equipment 43,841 22,117
— Loss on sale of properties and —HEMERREER
equipment 3,283 18,681
— Loss on disposal of equity interest —HERWBRAAZ
in subsidiary iR A #E 25 2 548 - 1,116
— Goodwill impairment —EERE 2,039 -
— Amortisation of land costs — - AR AN 2 £ 4,240 9,177
— Fair value gains on investment —REMELAFEKR
properties (386,732) (261,414)
— Amortisation of issuance costs and — BTN MBS
premium of senior notes ERGE - 8,148
— Excess of acquirer's interest over cost — — U i 75 # 25 = A U B
of acquisition AR 2 215 (1,052,965) (199,803)
— Net exchange gain — BN W E A (162,760) (111,373)
Changes in working capital HEESEY (TBF
(excluding the effects of acquisition and WEFEZRGAKEE 2
exchange differences on consolidation):  FE 3} Z%8) :
— Land costs — & #h AR A 1,530,877 (1,084,160)
— Properties for sale — AR EZME 1,016,536 471,805
— Accounts receivable —EWBR = (20,809) (13,255)
— Prepayments, deposits and —ERRIE RERk
other current assets H i &h & B (3.672,539) 787,335
— Accounts payable —FERBEER 108,225 (577,312)
— Land cost payables — A AR AR (1,605,246) (1,201,931)
— Deferred revenue —iEEW A (562,554) 1,609,971
— Accruals and other payables —FEET A R H fb e 208 330,044 (78,923)
— Mainland China business tax N 34,199 (130,626)
Cash generated from operations KEmS2ERES 815,688 1,662,440
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35. Notes to the consolidated cash flow
statement (continued)

(b) Major non-cash transactions
() The Company issued 182,232,346 shares at
HK$21.95 per share totalling HK$4,000 million as
part of the consideration for the acquisition of 80%
interest in Believe Best Investments Limited (see also
Notes 25 and 40(e)).

(i) Increase in land cost includes that of GZQREL revalued
upon completion of acquisition of further interest
in GZQREL amounting to approximately HK$6,921
million (see also Notes 6, 15, 26 and 39)

36. Financial guarantees

Consolidated
mE

e MR

35. ZERERERMF @

(b) EEFRELS

) ARBAFE21.95%8 T 2 BKREIT
182,232,346 B B {7 + & £ i%4,000 B
BET FANBEREEREERAQ
AIB0%ME 2 2 #B 5 (1B (R M 7F25 &
40(e)) ©

(i) AR ZEINBIERTRE —F U
BEHMMEL T HRAZ BHIEELD
6,921,000,000 7 7T ( & Hf £6,15,26 &
39) °

36. TSR

Company

|

2006 2006
—2TRE & A
HK$000 HK$000

THET TR

Financial guarantees not RN BwmE S
provided for in the financial EH B2
statements are as follows: MG EERNT
Guarantees given to banks RBEAEEYEL
for mortgage facilities granted & TERRMIRE
to certain buyers of the Group’s B i mER1T
properties e 2 R 7,792,981 5,297,090 - -
Guarantees given to banks for bank KB AR ZRIT
borrowings of subsidiaries EEmMRITELZ
ER - = 6,153,147 2,374,790
7,792,981 5,297,090 6,153,147 2,374,790
AEBREEAR AN ZTIT +FER 199
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36. Financial guarantees (continued) 36. MBHHER @
The Group’s share of financial guarantees of the jointly controlled YARBEN EXZAREBEARENER  IRE

entity (Note 15), not included in the above, is as follows: & (15T

Consolidated
ma

2006
—TERF
HK$'000
FHT
Guarantees given to banks for MEELARIEREEYE Y
mortgage facilities granted to certain ETERRERIBER
buyers of the jointly controlled i M R 1T E H 2 FE 1R
entity’s properties - 241,892
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37. Pending litigations 37. fFRERFA

Nambour Properties Limited (“Nambour”) and the project
company of the Gallopade Park project (the Gallopade Project
Company”), each of which is a wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, together with Guangdong Zhujiang Investment
Company Limited (“Zhujiang Investment”), an affiliate of the
Group, and another individual (the “Individual Defendant”),
have been sued by Guangzhou Municipality Tianhe Technology
Park Development Company Limited (“Tianhe Development”)
in connection with the sale of the site of the Gallopade Park
project in Guangzhou (the “Gallopade Site”) by the joint
venture company (the “JV") established by Zhujiang Investment
and Tianhe Development to the Gallopade Project Company.
The Group holds 100% of the equity in the Gallopade Project
Company through Nambour. Tianhe Development has alleged
that (i) Zhujiang Investment prejudiced its rights as a minority
shareholder of the JV by procuring the JV to sell the Gallopade
Site to the Gallopade Project Company without its consent and (ii)
Nambour is jointly liable for its economic loss by accepting the
sale. Tianhe Development claims damages for the value of the
Gallopade Site and approximately RMB32 million in respect of the
amount that was paid by Tianhe Development for the acquisition
of the Gallopade Site, as well as a reinstatement of its rights
under the JV's shareholders’ agreement. The Group believes that (i)
the allegation by Tianhe Development in respect of the disposal
of the Gallopade Site is invalid as the JV has received monetary
compensation for the disposal and an earn-out entitlement from
the Gallopade Project Company; (i) Tianhe Development does
not have sufficient evidence to establish Nambour’s liabilities
in the shareholders’ dispute between Zhujiang Investment and
Tianhe Development; and (iii) Tianhe Development does not
have a sufficient basis to claim the amount of damages claimed
by it. In November 2006, the trial court of the Guangdong
Provincial Court ordered (i) Nambour, Zhujiang Investment and
the Individual Defendant to jointly and severally pay to the
JV approximately RMB144 million plus interest; (ii) Zhujiang
Investment to pay to the JV approximately RMB308 million plus
interest; (iii) the Gallopade Project Company to pay to the JV
approximately RMB4 million plus interest; and (iv) that all other
claims of Tianhe Development be rejected. The defendants are
in process of appealing the court’s decision. Based on the advice
of the Group’s legal advisors, the Directors will vigorously defend
the case and therefore no provision has been made in these
financial statements.

AHEARSEAR

1
oy

mEEXERAF ([FAiE]) ARERERZER
AEl([BR]) BARBIZEZEFAR - BINKA
SIEMEERRRERAAR ([RA])EER
- BMEIREGRAR((HE]D (AEEY
BERR])  UE—BUEEABBE—=BEM
KR EEEERER AR ([RHRE]) HE®
SREM 2z ([F2HR]) - RIEERHKIER
SRR - AEERBRAIGHEE SRR PER -
FAZ R BOKRBERCERTRE R LEHEE
HEBSHEE - AmEGEERREZ DHRR
S (NEEBEER UL &R mE LR &5 Bl
EHAERK - KB RERBSMIRIHAR
BBEEBTHIELR B BRMEERRE
ERRBZE R - AEERBORTIEERE
BELEHSHRT KT - ARBERELEE
SRR S EBERBR ; ()R RRIE
WARKAZ RRFHHE RHEERAEETR
BE  R)KAIWARE RHIEEREREZ KA
B R=ZTTARF+—A BEREHHARER
MLOEE KR ERBI S AERZARATA
REE144BTTINFLE (VRIS RTAREES.08
BITIFLE. ; (V5 =X R ATARELE STinF)
B RWIBBRIN 2 B ZRE o 4453 ERhERT
ZHRRE LR o ERAKEEZBERZER - A
SEzESHEBMALRENE  ALETE
A IRER P I TR -
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37. Pending litigations (continued) 37. fFRERAA )
Various Group companies are involved in litigations arising in the HTEBERRERE B EEBBRR D REEFR o &
ordinary course of their businesses. Having reviewed outstanding FEH M ARTHRCRELKERFATEREERE
claims and taking into account legal advice received, the Directors EERR/EEVBRRFIEL TR REE

are of the opinion that adequate provisions have been made in
the financial statements.

38. Commitments 38. KiE
(a) Capital commitments (@) BAKRE
Capital expenditures at the balance sheet date but not yet REEBNAEEZ ARSI ;

incurred are as follows:

Consolidated

RE

2006
ZEETR
HK$'000
FHT
Contracted but not provided for BRI AEREE
— Property construction costs — W) EEFEER AR 519,057 247,700
— Acquisition of equity interests —WEETHEAEER
in certain Mainland China entities 5 2 2 1,340,795 1,531,117
— Capital contribution to —RIERR A NEZER
BJ Dongfangwenhua (Note 15) BRL(MFsE15) 246,846 241,005
2,106,698 2,019,822
Authorised but not contracted for EEERRITH
— Land costs — A A 92,679 168,160
— Property construction costs — W EE R K 739,490 1,528,236
832,169 1,696,396
2,938,867 3,716,218
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38. Commitments (Continved) 38. i)
(a) Capital commitments (Continued) (@) BAKIE @)
The Group’s share of capital commitments of a jointly WARBIEE E X2 RNEE S —HHRRZEGE
controlled entity (Note 15), not included in the above, is as B2 2 HthEHE (BzE15) AT
follows:

Consolidated

e
2006
—EERF
HK$'000
FHT
Contracted but not provided for BETHER AR
— Land costs — A A - 7,967
— Property construction costs — W EE R K 319,525 165,880
319,525 173,847
Authorised but not contracted for EREEKRETL
— Land costs — A A 62,736 94,595
— Property construction costs — W EE R K 196,071 986,399
258,807 1,080,994
578,332 1,254,841
The Company has no capital commitment as at 31st RARRZEELF T A=+ R U EEREE
December 2007 (2006: Nil). (ZETRF ) -
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38. Commitments (Continued) 38. &)
(b) Operating lease commitments (b) BEHEKE
The Group has operating lease commitments in respect REERZHABEEME 2 A HLEH
of premises under various non-cancellable operating lease EiamASLHRERE - BRETAIEHEELY
agreements. The future aggregate minimum lease payments RA&Z&EENBESIOT :

under non-cancellable operating lease are as follows:

Consolidated

o)
2006
ZETRF
HK$'000
FHT
Amounts payable THIEAN AR 2 FKRIE
— Within one year ——F R 27,113 33,910
— Within two to five years ——EZRER 97,237 136,159
— After five years —hF%& 24,278 -
148,628 170,069
The Company has no operating lease commitment as at ARBRZBELF+ A=+ —HAELE
31st December 2007 (2006: Nil). HERE(ZZSRF  |E) -
(c) Future minimum rental payments receivable (0 RXRFRREWHEEME
The Group leased out certain investment properties under REBRBEEHELHE TREME o KB
operating leases. The future minimum rental receivable PAHEHE LA E 2 AREEERESAT
under non-cancellable operating leases is as follows:
Consolidated
RE
2006
ZTTREF
HK$'000
FHET
Within one year —F R 51,211 48,208
In the second to fifth years E_EZFERF 151,374 173,879
Over five years REM E 97,029 78,957
299,614 301,044
The Company has no future rental receivable as at 31st RRBRZZBZELF+ZR=+—RBAEEM

December 2007 (2006: Nil). RKFEWIAE (BT NF - &) o
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39. Business combinations

During the year ended 31st December 2007, the Group
completed the acquisition of the entire equity interest in
Guangzhou Nonggongshang Construction and Development
Company Limited, Shanghai Zhengze Real Estate Development
Company Limited, Tianjin Babo Real Estate Development
Company Limited, Zhongxian International Company Limited,
Shanghai Yu Tai Real Estate Development Company Limited,
Huizhou Yapai Real Estate Company Limited, Huizhou Haolong
Development Company Limited, Grand Avenue Limited,
Guangzhou Ziyun Village Real Estate Company Limited and
Tianjin Meixin Architectural Design Company Limited, 51% equity
interest in Nam Fong Guangzhou Plaza Limited, 95% equity
interest in Zhejiang Ke Hua Digital Plaza Company Limited, 30%
equity interest in GZQREL and a further 10% equity interest in
Shanghai Ze Yu Properties Limited, at a total consideration of
approximately HK$2,081,800,000.

Details of net assets acquired and the excess of acquirer’s interest
at fair value over costs are as follows:

ire SRR

39. ¥ 56

REBE-_ZTLF+_A=1+—RALFE  A&EE=
RUEEENTEIEEERFAEAR - DEIEER
HEBRAR REEBEHMERZEERAR - Pk
BB BER AR - EEHREHEZEARAR
ENTRREHERRAR BEMNTEREXERE
RARE - BBERAR - BEMNEZIWHEEFR
RAIRRERNEERTBRAR 22 HBRME : /@
FBEESERARZ51%MEE T IRIZESEE
BBRATZI5%EHE  BE230%MK%E ARk E
BEFEEFRDAZHMI0%KE - BRENA
2,081,800,0007 7T °

BRBEzEEFEMRAHEFEZWET RSN
A Z Bin 2 7B

HK$'000

FERT

Purchase consideration BEARE 2,081,800
Less: Fair value of net assets acquired B BREBEEFEZATYE

— shown as below —5RaAR (3,132,726)

(1,050,926)

Less: Goodwill (Note 12) B mE (MEE12) (2,039)

Excess of acquirer's interest at fair value over costs WATEFEZWE RSN Z 2D (1,052,965)

I
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39. Business combinations (Continued) 39. #¥%B&H @
The assets and liabilities arising from the acquisitions are as WEEFMEA 2 EERBEWT
follows:
Acquiree’s
Fair value carrying amount
WRES 2
AFE BREE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FET
Properties and equipment EYS L 190,943 190,943
Land costs and properties under development =+ b B AN &2 25 R Fh 4 3 10,531,993 3,121,117
Prepayments for acquisition of land e B + b TE A B 850,256 776,516
Other receivables H b pE W 2R 2,119,229 2,119,229
Cash and cash equivalents B4 RELEEY 246,892 246,892
Other payables H B 3KE (2,321,580) (2,321,580)
Long-term borrowings REEE (500,810) (500,810)
Land cost payable & 5 + 3 B AR (706,806) (706,806)
Asset revaluation reserve BEEMLEE (2,180,096) =
Deferred tax JEIEF IR (3,871,555) (396,688)
Net assets BEERE 4,358,466 2,528,813
Minority interests DHA R S (177,988)
4,180,478
Interest held by the Group AEERBBERLRZERER
as a jointly controlled entity TRER (1,047,752)
Net assets acquired BWEEETEE 3,132,726
I
Purchase consideration BEAE 2,081,800
Cash and cash equivalents acquired BERBEZRERBRESSEY (246,892)
Cash outflow on acquisitions U B BF 2 B8 8 7% 1,834,908
I
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40. Related-party transactions 40. AEANETR 5
The Company is controlled by Mr. Chu Mang Yee, who owns RRARRREKEELTS - ERBE_TTHF+Z
approximately 53.29% to 67.44% (2006: 52.5% to 54.3%) of A=+—HIEFEREAFL53.29%%67.44%(—F
the Company’s shares during the year ended 31st December TIRF 52.5%FE54.3%) RAFIRG o #R TR B
2007. The remaining shares are widely held. HMATEZEE °
(@) The following significant transactions (@ TIHAHBMBEATETZEER
were carried out with related parties: 7 !
Sales of goods and services SHE Han R AR
2006
—TTREF
HK$'000
FHET
Rental services to a related company () 24 F#E R T 2 B ERBEG) - 692
Property management services to REFHEEQAZ
related companies (i) ) % & 1B R ) 1,938 4,652
1,938 5,344
Purchases of goods and services BEEm RS
2006
—ETTREF
HK$'000
FHET
Property construction services from FAiENRRM
related companies (i) BER) 2,862,087 1,475,868
Property design services from BEQERMtZ
related companies (i) LE S i ()] 24,298 29,814
Communication network ER AR
installation services from a i A A% 2 RS ()
related company (i) 18,720 11,161
Decoration services from a related AEQRIRHEZ
company (i) 5 87 FR 7% (1) 28,466 24,667
Office rental services from BERRRBEZHAE
related companies (i) HERKI) 5,352 4,974
Property management services from BE N AR 2
related companies (i) B IR () 2,689 49
2,941,612 1,546,533
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40. Related-party transactions (Continued)
Note:
(i) These related companies are minority shareholders of certain

subsidiaries of the Company and subsidiaries of these minority
shareholders.

(b)

Amounts due from/to related parties were

40. AEANTX 5 @)
BisE :

() ZERERRRARRETHEATNDHK
REZELBBROMBERF -

(b) MW EEALTRENT

as follows:

Due from related companies
Amounts due from minority
shareholders of certain subsidiaries
of the company and subsidiaries of
these minority shareholders

Due from an associate

Due to an associate

Due to related companies
Amounts due to minority
shareholders of certain subsidiaries

of the Company and subsidiaries of

the minority shareholders

Due to a jointly controlled entity

2006
TETRF
HK$'000
T
e Uk B8 D A
BRARRETFTHE AR
LERREZS
LHREAH B AR
ZFRIE 17,390 18,531
JiE Uy — FE Bt i A 7 22,344 -
JE < — FE B i A 7 5,624 5,343
FEfTRE R A
ERARRATETHB RS
LERRERZE
LH BRI B R R
ZFRIE 137,836 103,398
JES — R R E S 231,253 1,037,287
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40. Related-party transactions (Continued)

(b)

(9]

(d)

Amounts due from/to related parties were
as follows: (Continued)

As at 31st December 2007, the Group had accounts
payable of approximately HK$70,686,000 (2006:
HK$344,617,000) due to subsidiaries of minority
shareholders of certain subsidiaries of the Company in
respect of property construction fees.

As at 31st December 2007, all outstanding balances with
related companies, associates and a jointly controlled entity
were unsecured, non-interest bearing and without pre-
determined repayment terms.

Pledges and guarantees provided to banks
for related parties are as follows:

As at 31st December 2006, HK$237,449,000 of the
Group's investment properties, HK$10,926,000 of the
Group's completed properties for sale, and HK$82,562,000
of the Group’s land use rights were pledged as collateral
for bank loans borrowed by a jointly controlled entity. No
pledges or guarantees were provided to banks for related
parties as at 31st December 2007.

Key management compensation:

e MR

40. AEANTX S @)

()

©

FEUW{SEREA T ERIEMNT )

R_ZT+F+-_A=+—8 NEBERF
AARETHBRARLEBREZHB AR Z
W) 5 5B 4970,686,00058 7T ( - BT /N4 ¢
344,617,000/87T) °

RIBZALF+-A=+—H  HEEQF
B N A R — M RIE S E i 2 2 AR E

S
&

- 2B R EIETEIE

ARAEANLTRERITIEH ZRB R
R :
R-_TEEXE+-_A=+—0 BEH
#49237,449,000 B T 2 A E B E W E -
10,926,000/ 7T 2 A& B A 1 & 2 B &R
% 1%82,562,000/8 T 2 AL B T FAKE -
BRI E BATE R RITE R 2 P
Mo RZEZLEFE+-_F=+—0 - HEREH
B AT MAERITIEH EARSIELR o

d) FEEEEBRM

Salaries and allowances e ROER
Share-based payments LARR 10 7 BTt 2 (B A

(Share options granted) (B2 ERE)
Pension costs RIKE KA

2006

—ETRF

HK$'000

T

21,722 19,131
43,401 1,620
181 142
65,304 20,893

aEBAEREEARAA =

TETLFEFH
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40. Related-party transactions (Continued)

40. AEANLTRF @)
(e) Acquisition of Believe Best and Shanghai ) WEEERLEEXE

Dazhan

Shanghai Dazhan

The Group acquired from a connected person, Guangdong
Zhujiang Investment Company Limited, the entire equity
interest in Shanghai Dazhan Investment Management
Company Limited (“Shanghai Dazhan”) which has acquired
a piece of land for development in Yangpu District,
Shanghai, China pursuant to a transfer contract with
the Shanghai Land Bureau. The acquisition of Shanghai
Dazhan, which was approved at a special general meeting
of the shareholders of the Company on 25th September
2007, has been completed. As of 31st December 2007, the
Group has paid in aggregate RMB663,158,000 in respect
of the acquisition of Shanghai Dazhan and completion of
Shanghai Dazhan’s acquisition of the aforesaid land. The
Group is in the process of obtaining the land use right
certificate for Shanghai Dazhan in respect of the aforesaid
land.

Believe Best

During the year ended 31st December 2007, the Group
has paid HK$6,000 million (as to HK$4,000 million by the
issuance of shares in the Company and HK$2,000 million
in cash) to a connected person, Mr. Chu Mang Yee, for
the acquisition of 80% of the issued share capital of
Believe Best Investments Limited (“Believe Best”) pursuant
to an agreement which was approved at a special general
meeting of the shareholders of the Company on 30th July
2007. Believe Best has, through its indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary, acquired a piece of land for development in
Chaoyang District, Beijing, China (known as the “Jing
Run Project”). The acquisition of Believe Best has been
completed in August 2007 and the demolition and
relocation of the construction land for Jing Run Project has
been substantially completed at the year end. The Group is
in the process of obtaining the land use right certificate in
respect of the aforesaid land.
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40. Related-party transactions (Continued)

(f) Undertaking provided by Mr. Chu Mang

Yee, the Chairman, to the Group

In relation to the Group’s interest in the Jing Run Project
through its 80% interest in Believe Best, Mr. Chu Mang
Yee, a connected person, has undertaken to the Group to
(i) fully guarantee any bank loan which may be required
by the project company for the demolition and relocation
of the extra public greenfield site peripheral to the Jing
Run Project at the request of the local government; (ii)
be responsible for the excess amount, if any, being the
difference in the unit cost per square meter (including
the demolition and relocation fees for the extra public
greenfield site and the land transfer fees as compared with
the original agreed valuation price of Jing Run Project)
for the gross floor area to be developed, payable by the
project company in respect of any increase in plot ratio as
the government may approve.

ire SRR

40. AEANTX S @)
P EFXRZRELEOAEBRER

R

A AR EIE B E NS E80% A M A X
HHRBZEmME - FREEAL  KRRMKE
EEAASEFERAZEICZ2ERASREZE
BAREEMHNZ 2R - shUHRE AR
SMNARERAL 132 PR T AT BE R B 2 (EIRTT
B3R G E IR AT 5E E AR IN R A AR 3t
ZIRBMBIB L Z BEE - METFITRZK
R(BREFEINRHEE L2 IFEER R L
BEE) RRRAREZGE  RAMKFELEK
ENYAEERREL 2 S8

EEAREEAERRAA —ZTE L FFR
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A SRR MR

41. T EWMB L RFE

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31st LTARZZT+F+—A=+—B 2 ENBAF
December 2007: HE

41. Details of principal subsidiaries

Percentage of

Place of equity interest
incorporation Issued and attributable to
Name of company and operations fully paid capital the Group Principal activities
NG SRR L R R i B BEROTRBEREA AEEEEREBDL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
HE &
Hopson Development British Virgin Islands US$2,000 100% - Investment holding
International Limited RERZHE 2,000% 7T REER
BEARBRERD A
Addup International Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Investment holding
KEERAERAR Ak 1787 REER
Archibald Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 - 100% Investment holding
FEEXARRAA EBERHE 2ETT KREER
Beijing Hopson Beifang Mainland China RMB1,000,000 = 49%(ii)  Provision of training
Education and LlEiN AR #1,000,0007T and consultancy
Technology Limited? services
I REELFTHEREK REEAMIFII R
BRARC HEH®A
Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Mainland China Us$61,500,000 - 100% Property
Estate Development LlEiN 61,500,000 7T development
Limited# MEER
EREELETEHE
MERRAAY
Beijing Hopson Lu Zhou Real ~ Mainland China RMB463,370,000 = 100% Property
Estate Development LlEiN A R # 463,370,000 7T development
Limited# MEER
IEREEZNEHE
MEBRAAY
Beijing Hopson Wang ling Real Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 100% Property
Estate Development B K BE A R #10,000,000 7T development
Company Limited* MEER

ItREEEREHERE
BRAR
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A T ERR MR

41. Details of principal subsidiaries (continued) 41. TEWBLEFE @

Percentage of

Place of equity interest
incorporation Issued and attributable to
Name of company and operations fully paid capital the Group Principal activities
NCIECE SRR L K R i B ERTRBERES AEEEGEREBDL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
HE B &
Beijing Hopson Xing Ye Real Mainland China US$31,600,000 = 100% Property
Estate Development Limited* Bl K 31,600,000 7T development
IbREEREEMER MEER
BRRAH
Beijing Hopson Yuling Real Mainland China US$12,000,000 = 100% Property
Estate Development Limited# Bl K BE 12,000,000 7T development
ItREERREHE MEER
MEBRAA
Beijing Xingjingrun Property Mainland China US$3,000,000 = 80% Property
Co., Ltd.# B K B 3,000,000 7T development
R EEMERRA A MEER
Beijing Zhujiang Mainland China RMB5,000,000 - 100% Property
Century Property BTN A R #5,000,000 7T management
Management Limited* MEER
LTREIERYEER
BB A
Believe Best Investments Limited British Virgin Islands UsS$100 = 80% Investment holding
EEREERAF HEBELHE 1003 7T REER
Chia Lung Group Samoa US$6,500,000 = 100% Investment holding
Company Limited FERETE 6,500,000 7T REER
EREEFRAT
Dalian Hopson Hotel Investment Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 100% Hotel operation
Management Company H B K B A K #30,000,0007T A
Limited®
REGEHEREERER AT
Dalian Hopson Xing Ye Real Mainland China RMB50,000,000 = 100% Property
Estate Development e A B #50,000,0007T development
Company Limited® MEER
RESEREEEMERZ
BRRAEP
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ire SRR MEE

41. Details of principal subsidiaries (continued)

Name of company
YNGR

Dynawell Investment Limited
BAMKERRRA

Ever New Properties Limited
BHEXERAR

Funland Properties Limited
FREEXERAR

Grand Avenue Limited
(Acquired on 7th August 2007)

Y AR A
(R=ZZEZLFNALBEKE)

Guangdong Esteem
Property Services Limited*
BRERRMERSERA A"

Guangdong Hopson Dijing Real
Estate Co. Ltd.*
BREEFREHERRAA!

Guangdong Hopson Hong
Jing Real Estate
Company Limited*
BREEARFEHERR R

Guangdong Hopson Lejing
Real Estate Co. Limited*
ERAELSFEHERR AR

Guangdong Hopson Minghui

Real Estate Limited!
EREGEHERMERR AR

214

Place of
incorporation

and operations
FER B I R E i B

Hong Kong
EA

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands
RBRRHE

Hong Kong
BB

Mainland China
EelEib N

Mainland China
B K B

Mainland China
A K B

Mainland China
B A B

Mainland China
L= N

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

41. T EWMBLARFE @

Issued and
fully paid capital
EBRTRBERE

HK$10,000
10,0007 7T

HK$2 ordinary
HK$3 non-voting
deferred shares (i)
2B T E B
3SETERSRE
B ()

Us$2
2XTT

HK$22,500,000
22,500,000 7T

HK$5,000,000
5,000,000 7T

US$25,000,000
25,000,000 7T

RMB12,550,000
AR #12,550,0007T

RMB83,000,000
A K 1#83,000,0007T

RMB41,532,852
AR #41,532,8527C

Percentage of
equity interest
attributable to

the Group

rEEEERET DL
Directly Indirectly

HE

Annual Report 2007

%

50%(ii)

100%
100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

90%

Principal activities
TEXH

Investment holding
REZK

Investment holding
and property
investment

REZEBREMERE

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
REER

Property
management
YEERE

Property
development
MEER

Property
development
MEER

Property
development
MEER

Property
development
MEER
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41. Details of principal subsidiaries (continued) 41. TEWBLEFE @

Percentage of

Place of equity interest
incorporation Issued and attributable to
Name of company and operations fully paid capital the Group Principal activities
NCIECE SRR L K E i B ERTRBERES AEEEGEREBSL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
HE B &

Guangdong Hopson Yuehua Mainland China RMB41,500,000 - 100% Property

Real Estate Limited* e lEipN A R # 41,500,000 development
BREEBERMWERRAA! MEER
Guangdong Huajingxincheng ~ Mainland China RMB93,500,018 - 100% Property

Real Estate Limited# e N AR 193,500,0187C development
ERESNWEMESRA R MEER
Guangdong Huanan New City  Mainland China RMB464,898,684 = 99% Property

Real Estate Limited ! B oK FE AR # 464,898,684 7T development
EREMHWEMEGRAR MEER
Guangdong Huanan Real Mainland China RMB48,046,856 - 70% Property

Estate Limited ! e lEipN A R 48,046,856 70 development
BEREEEMEARAR MEER
Guangdong Jinan Real Mainland China RMB65,084,340 = 90% Property

Estate Limited ! e N AR 165,084,340 7T development
BREEEMERR AR MEER
Guangdong New Tai An Mainland China RMB19,100,000 = 100% Property

Real Estate Limited* B A AR #19,100,000 7T development
BRI FZEHERRA A" MEER
Guangzhou Esteem Property Mainland China RMB1,010,000 - 100% Property agency

Agency Limited # H B K B AR #1,010,0007C WERIE
BMTRSMEREERAF°
Guangzhou Hopson Cuijing Mainland China RMB53,550,000 - 97% Property

Real Estate Limited ! e N AR 53,550,000 7T development
EMNEERSEHMEBRAR MEER
Guangzhou Hopson Dongyu Mainland China RMB42,500,000 = 100% Property

Real Estate Limited ! B oK fE AR #42,500,000 7T development
BMEERFRMERRRA" MEER
Guangzhou Hopson Junjing Mainland China RMB221,670,000 - 95% Property

Real Estate Limited ' e lEipN AR #221,670,0007T development
BMEERREHERRAR MEER
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41. Details of principal subsidiaries (continued) 41. FEMBLRAFE @

Percentage of

Place of equity interest
incorporation Issued and attributable to
Name of company and operations fully paid capital the Group Principal activities
YNGR SRR L K IR i B ERTRBERES AEEEGEREBDL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
HE &

Guangzhou Hopson Keji Mainland China RMB133,340,000 - 95% Property

Garden Real Estate Limited © B AP A F# 133,340,000 7T development
BMEERZBEEESR AR MEER
Guangzhou Hopson Qinghui Mainland China RMB42,287,624 = 100% Property

Real Estate Limited ! el N AR 42,287,6247C development
BEMNEEEEREMESBRAR MEER
Guangzhou Hopson Qingyuan  Mainland China RMB3,000,000 = 100% Water supply

Water Supply Limited ¢ LalEipN 3 A R #3,000,0007C ik
BM&EEREKERAR"
Guangzhou Hopson Xingjing ~ Mainland China RMB500,000 - 100% Provision of

Business Services Limited ¢ B K BE A R #500,0007T clubhouse and
BHNEEERBEBARDAC residential

services
RtgmRETRS

Guangzhou Hopson Yihui Mainland China RMB131,420,019 - 100% Property

Real Estate Limited ' AR B K BE AR #131,420,0197TC development
BHEEREREMERRAA MEER
Guangzhou Hopson Yijing Mainland China RMB82,073,720 = 99.5% Property

Real Estate Limited ! LlEiN AR82,073,7207C development
EMNEERSEHEBRAR MEER
Guangzhou Hopson Yujing Mainland China RMB47,250,000 = 70% Property

Real Estate Limited ' B A BE A K #47,250,0007C development
BME&ERREHERRRR MEER
Guangzhou Nonggongshang ~ Mainland China RMB2,170,243 - 100% Property

Construction and e N AR#2,170,2437C development

Development Company MEER

Limited*
(Acquired on 7th September 2007)

BNTRIREEZRAEAA"

(R=ZEZLENALHKE)
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AR MR

41. Details of principal subsidiaries (continued) 41. TEWBLEFE @

Percentage of

Place of equity interest
incorporation Issued and attributable to
Name of company and operations fully paid capital the Group Principal activities
NCIECE SRR L K E i B ERTRBERES AEEEGEREBSL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
HE B &
Guangzhou Sanlian Huagiao Mainland China RMB30,000,000 - 67% Property
Estate Company Limited? B K B A K # 30,000,000 7T development
(Acquired on 7th September 2007) MEER
BM=HEBERERRAF"
(R=ZEZLFEAALBEE)
Guangzhou Xin Chang Jiang ~ Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 95.5% Property
Development Limitede B K fE A K # 10,000,000 7T development
BMHRIZRMEFR R MEER
Guangzhou Xiu Nan Real Estate Mainland China US$4,465,000 - 51% Property
Development Company B K BE 4,465,000 7T development
Limited? MEER

BNTAEEEHEREER DR

Guangzhou Yi Cheng Real Mainland China RMB42,000,000 = 75% Property
Estate Development Hh B K AR 42,000,000 7T development
Limited ! MEER

&M T 55 % 5 E R B
BRRA

Guangzhou Yi Hui Real Estate  Mainland China RMB37,000,000 = 75% Property
Development Limited ! Hh B K A R 37,000,000 7T development

& M 7 i R 5 4 E o MEER
BRAF

Guangzhou Yijing Arts and Mainland China RMB11,200,000 - 100% Investment holding
Culture Company Limiteds & B KB AR 11,200,0007T REER

BMES LB ER
BB AT

Guangzhou Yiming Real Estate  Mainland China RMB43,800,000 - 50%(ii)  Property
Development Company b N A R 43,800,000 7T development
Limited# MEER

BINEAEMEREEFR QA

AHEARSEAR T EFELEHFFR 217
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41. Details of principal subsidiaries (continued) 41. TEWBLEFE @

Percentage of

Place of equity interest
incorporation Issued and attributable to
Name of company and operations fully paid capital the Group Principal activities
YNGR SRR L K IR i B ERTRBERES AEEEGEREBDL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
HE &
Guangzhou Zhujiang Qiaodao  Mainland China RMB535,500,000 - 99.5% Property
Real Estate Limited' AR B A B A K # 535,500,000 7T development
(Consolidated on becoming a MEER
subsidary on 7th September
2007)
BMRKIBHEERRAR'
(RZZT+ENALBRANE
NRIKEAAR)
Guangzhou Ziyun Village Real ~ Mainland China US$2,000,000 - 100% Property
Estate Company Limited# A K B 2,000,000 7 development
(Acquired on 25th July 2007) MEER
BMNEELEEMESBRAR!
(R=ZFZTLFLA=-TRAKE)
Hopson Development British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100% Provision of property
(Consultants) Limited EBEXES 2%TT design and
aEalRE (BH) BRAA advisory services
R E R M B
MR
Hopson Development Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100% Property investment
(Properties) Limited B 10,0007 7T MERE
RHAR(EX)BRAA
Hopson (Guangzhou) Mainland China USs$4,830,000 - 100% Property
Industries Limited* B A B 4,830,000 7T development
AE(BM) BEEXERRAR MEER
Hopeson Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary = 100% Investment holding
BEEEFRAT B HK$10,000 non- REER
voting deferred
shares (i)
2B T E R
10,0007 7T

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

ERREBELRNO)
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AR MR

Name of company
NCIECE

Hopson Properties
(China) Limited
EEFBEEMERGR AT

Huizhou Dayzhou New
Coastal City Development
and Investment Co., Ltd.?

BINREBEHEFRTERKRE

BRRARe

Huizhou Haolong Industrial
Development Company
Limited®
(Acquired on 3rd July 2007)

BMNTREEXEREBRAF"

(R=ZTLFELA=AKE)

Huizhou Hopson Xin Neng
Properties Limited*

BMNTAEGREZRAERAR

Huizhou Yapai Real Estate
Company Limited*
(Acquired on 9th July 2007)

EMNWRREMERRA A"
(R=ZZ+F+ANBKE)

Huizhou Yaxin Real
Estate Company Limited#
BMNTRIEHESRA A"

Interwell Developments Limited

Ji Run Property Investments
Limited
EHEXREARLA

41. Details of principal subsidiaries (continued)

Place of
incorporation

and operations
FER AL R E i B

British Virgin Islands
RBRAEE

Mainland China
B K B

Mainland China
2l

Mainland China
2l

Mainland China
2lEiyN

Mainland China
2lEiyN

British Virgin Islands
EBEXHE

Hong Kong

AHEARSEAR

L\)

41. T EWMBLARFE @)

Issued and
fully paid capital
EBRTRBERAE

US$1
1£7T

RMB72,500,000
A K #72,500,0007T

RMB 10,000,000
A K #10,000,0007T

HK$50,000,000
50,000,000 7T

RMB1,000,000
AR #1,000,0007C

RMB 119,000,000
A R #119,000,000 7T

US$100
1003 7T

HK$1,000,000
1,000,0007% 7T

I

Percentage of

equity interest

attributable to
the Group

AEEEGERET DL

Directly Indirectly
BEE 4

100%

= 60%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

- 50% (ii)

= 80%
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Principal activities
TEXH

Investment holding
REZRK

Property
development
MEER

Property
development
MEE R

Property
development
MEER

Property
development
MEER

Property
development
MEER

Investment holding
REER

Investment holding
KREZK
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41. Details of principal subsidiaries (continued) 41. TEWBLEFE @

Percentage of

Place of equity interest
incorporation Issued and attributable to
Name of company and operations fully paid capital the Group Principal activities
YNGR SRR L K IR i B ERTRBERES AEEEGEREBSL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
B LEES

Karworld Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding
EMEEERLQA & 10,0007 7T REER
Malaysian Teoghew Industrial ~ Mainland China HK$25,000,000 - 55% Property

Estate Development (Guang Bl K 25,000,000 7T development

Zhou) Ltd.2 MEERE

(Acquired on 7th August 2007)
BEMBSHBIENERERAAA

(R=ZZEZLFENALBEKE)
Max Clear Investments Limited Hong Kong HK$1 - 100% Investment holding
FEREBRDA N 1787 KB R
Nambour Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 - 100% Investment holding
AEEEARAA RERLHS 2ETT REER
Nam Fong Guangzhou Plaza British Virgin Islands US$10,000 - 51% Investment holding

Limited RERLHS 10,000% 7T REER

(Acquired on 15th August 2007)
MAMAEESERAR

(RZZEZLFENATHBYKE)
Ningbo Hopson Real Mainland China RMB20,000,000 = 100% Investment holding

Estate Company Limitede B K A K #20,000,0007T REER
EREEEREHEBRAR
Outward Expanse British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100% Investment holding

Investments Limited REEXMES 2% REERK
BARREERRAA
Plaza Royale Water Mainland China RMB72,000,000 - 70% Hotel operation

Palace Convention Hotel B K BE A K #72,000,0007T BERE

Tianjin Co. Limited?
RAET R mROBERRA A
Pomeroy Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 - 100% Investment holding
HEBEERRA RERLHS 2ETT REER
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41. Details of principal subsidiaries (continued)

Name of company
DREE

Prestige Dragon
Development Limited
BERERARRAA

Right Strong International
Limited
EaERAERAR

Shanghai Hopson Property
Development Company
Limited*

PERERMERERRAA!

Shanghai Long Jia Properties
Limited®
LEREEXERAFC

Shanghai Lung Meng Real
Estate Development
Company Limited#

PERBRFEMEREZERR ARG

Shanghai Mintai Real Estate
Company Limited*
FERFREMERR QA

Shanghai Son Xiang Real Estate
Development Company
Limited*

FE=RFEXRBERAA"

Shanghai Yu Tai Real Estate
Development Company
Limited®
(Acquired on 21st May 2007)

FEHNREMEERAR A
(R=ZFLFRA-T—BIKE)

AHEARSEAR

Place of
incorporation

and operations
SER BRI R E i B

Hong Kong

0

Hong Kong
&

Mainland China
B KR

Mainland China
B K B

Mainland China
B K B

Mainland China
B K B

Mainland China
B K BE

Mainland China
B K B

L\)

41. T EWMBLARFE @

Issued and
fully paid capital
ERTRBERAE

HK$10,000
10,0008 7T

HK$1
187

US$59,900,000
59,900,000 7T

RMB20,000,000
AR #20,000,0007T

US$15,000,000
15,000,000 7T

US$30,100,000
30,100,000% 7T

US$8,000,000
8,000,000 7T

RMB400,000,000
AR #400,000,0007T

I

Percentage of

equity interest

attributable to
the Group

AEEEGERETD L

Directly Indirectly
BEE &

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 50%(ii)

100%

= 100%

—Z2Z2LtFFH 221

Principal activities
TEXH

Investment holding
KREER

Investment holding
REZK

Property
development
MEER

Property
development
MEER

Property
development
MEER

Property
development
MEER

Property
development
MEER

Property
development
MEER



Name of company
NREE

Shanghai Ze Yu
Properties Limited?

LEEFTEXERAF"

Shanghai Zhengze Real Estate
Development Company

Limited®

(Acquired on 22nd May 2007)

LEEZFHERR AR

(R=ZZLFERA-+-HKE)

Shanxi Hopson Dijing

Construction Company

Limited*

WAAAFRERARA A

Shine Wealth
Consultants Limited
SEEBBRAA

Size Up Investments Limited

BHREFRDA

Solawide Properties Limited

REEXERAA

Sun Advance Investments

Limited
HEREBRAA

Sun Yick Properties Limited

MEBEXERDA
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Place of
incorporation

and operations
SER B I R E i B

Mainland China
Ll N

Mainland China
LN

Mainland China
A K B

British Virgin Islands
KBRAEE

Hong Kong
BB

British Virgin Islands
RERUHS

British Virgin Islands

REREXEE

British Virgin Islands
HERLHS

Hopson Development Holdings Limited

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
4= A
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41. T EWMBLARFE @

Issued and
fully paid capital
EBRTRBERAE

RMB8,000,000
A R #8,000,0007T

RMB8,000,000
AR #8,000,0007C

RMB50,009,655
A K #50,009,655 7T

US$1
1%

HK$1
18T

US$2
2ETT

Us$1
(B

US$2
2ETT

Percentage of

equity interest

attributable to
the Group

AEEEGERETD L

Directly Indirectly
BEE &

= 94%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

= 100%

Annual Report 2007
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MEER

Property
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MEER
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REZR
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41. Details of principal subsidiaries (continued) 41. TEWBLEFE @

Percentage of

Place of equity interest
incorporation Issued and attributable to
Name of company and operations fully paid capital the Group Principal activities
NCIECE SER BRI R E i B BRORBERE FEEEGREEDL TEXH
Directly Indirectly
HE B &

Tianjin Babo Real Estate Mainland China RMB20,000,000 - 100% Property
Development Company H B K B AR 20,000,000 7T development
Limited? MEER
(Acquired on 1st March 2007)

REDCEEBEREER AR
(R=ZBZ+E=A—AKE)

Tianjin Hopson Binhai Real Mainland China RMB375,826,000 - 98.9% Property
Estate Development F B0 K B AR #375,826,0007T development
Company Limited ! MEER

REEEBSRMERE
BRAF

Tianjin Hopson Environmental ~ Mainland China US$500,000 - 75% Research and
Protection and Energy Saving & Bl K[ 500,000 7T development of
Technology Development environmental
Company Limited" technology and

REEGERRE LR product
HERR AR I RFEERR

A R Em

Tianjin Hopson Zhujiang Real ~ Mainland China RMB280,000,000 - 70% Property
Estate Development Limited 1 R B A B A R #280,000,0007C development

REGERIEHE MEE R
MEARAR

Tianjin Meixin Architectural Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 100% Architectural Design
Design Company Limited® B A fE A F#1,000,000 7T BERF
(Acquired on 27th September
2007)

REZHBERFBROA-"

(RZZTLFAAZTLRKE)
Tumen Properties Limited British Virgin Islands us$2 = 100% Investment holding
HHREXARAT RERTHE 2% RE 2K
A REEBARLQAA ZTTF L FFR 223
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41. Details of principal subsidiaries (continued) 41. TEWBLEFE @

Percentage of

Place of equity interest
incorporation Issued and attributable to
Name of company and operations fully paid capital the Group Principal activities
NCIEE SRR L R B i B ERTRBERE XrEEELREBRIL TEEK
Directly Indirectly
HiE Lk
Value-Added Guangzhou Mainland China RMBS8,000,000 - 70% Property
Limitede o B A A R #8,000,0007T development

BM Tz AR AR MEER

Zhejiang Ke Hua Digital Plaza ~ Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 95% Property
Company Limited? B K BE A K #10,000,000 7T development
(Acquired on 8th February 2007) MEER

IR E S EISER A A
(R=—ZT 5= A/\BKE)

Zhongshan Hopson Hao Jing Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 100% Property
Real Estate Company Limitede Bl K A K #10,000,0007C development

R EERREME MEER
BRAR

Zhongshan Hopson Hong Jing ~ Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 100% Property
Real Estate Company Limited® Bl K[ A K 10,000,0007T development

RTEERRFEE MEER
BRAA-

Zhongshan Hopson Xi Jing Mainland China RMB10,000,000 = 100% Property
Real Estate Company Limited® # Bl A A K #10,000,000 7T development

FLTmEERRFEHE MEER
BR A"

Zhongxian International Mainland China RMB500,000,000 - 100% Property
Company Limited® B K B A F 500,000,000 7T development
(Acquired on 6th April 2007) MEZER

REBBRERERAR’

(RZZZLFEMANBRE)
& These are wholly owned foreign enterprises established in Mainland # s BN B AR S 2 B B INE D o
China.
a These are equity joint ventures established in Mainland China. A 2 BN B AER Y 2 A B AL -
1 These are cooperative joint ventures established in Mainland China. 1 2 BN B ABER ST A TES LD -
° These are domestic enterprises established in Mainland China. o sy AN B A BER ST 2 B o
" These are foreign enterprises established in Mainland China. A sy BN B ABER ST SNE D E o
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41. Details of principal subsidiaries (continued)

42,

Notes:

@)

(i)

The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights and are not
entitled to any dividend or distributions upon winding up unless
a sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to the
holders of the ordinary shares and thereafter one-half of the assets
are distributable to holders of the non-voting deferred shares.

These are subsidiaries because the Group has the power to
govern the financial and operating policies of these companies,
notwithstanding that the Group’s equity interests in these
companies are not more than 50%.

Events after the balance sheet date

(@

On 29th January 2008, the Group entered into a
land transfer contract and a first class development
reimbursement agreement with Beijing Land Bureau and
Beijing Zhujiang Real Estate Development Company, a
related company of the Group respectively for a piece of
land situated in Ma Ju Qiao, Tong Zhou District, Beijing with
a site area of approximately 129,000 square metres. The
total consideration of the transaction is HK$750,559,000
(RMB698,020,000).

The Group on 2nd April 2008 entered into a first class
development reimbursement agreement with Beijing Land
Centre and will on 25th April 2008 enter into a land
transfer contract with Beijing Land Bureau for a piece of
land situated in Qiao Zhuang Village, Yong Shun Town,
Tong Zhou District, Beijing with a site area of approximately
115,000 square metres. The total consideration of the
transaction is approximately HK$1,870,968,000 (equivalent
to approximately RMB1,740,000,000).

AHEARSEAR

1
oy

ire SRR

41. T EWMBLARFE @

42.

B

0)

BERERECRMN I EETE  BERRN
EARERERENBEEZE DR BRI
100,000,000,000,000/# T 273k T E @A FT A
A RIHREEZ — A Dk TERFERT
BAFEA

BEAEERNZET AR 2 RAEEIL THEE
50% @ ZEABRMEH AR TIHRAEES
BREZF R W RICERR

mEBHRER

@

EEEXEE xS

RZZEZENFE—AZ+NAB  N&EEHHEE
RMmBETERB IR IEERZEERA
A (AEBZBELR) B —RARIERTBE
M 55 5U4% 2 £ b (3th 8% T F& 4 4129,000 F
FR)FTZ LR A R R+ — R EAERHE
s © X B HR(EA750,559,00078 78 (AR
698,020,0007T) °

R-ZBENENMA-H AEEEIRT+
I BE IR 4 TR0 BT L b — AR B B (E
YR ZEENGFEA -+ RAEILER
TE+TERBII I EEAR  ARHE
B — R R R BN B K EE B A 2 £
I (M B EFE4)/5115,000F 5 5K) - KB AR
1B #)%1,870,968,0008 7T (X ZE N AR K
1,740,000,0007%) °
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Summary of Financial Information
I E R 2

Consolidated Balance Sheets CEEERER
2003 2004 2005 2006
—TE=F —TTWMFE —TTHFE —TTAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHT FHT FHBT FHET
(Restated) (Restated)
(E51) (Z51)
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Land costs TR 1,139,277 760,827 426,499 500,367 639,205
Properties and equipment MR HE 35,730 709,777 938,913 1,267,460 2,063,811
Investment properties REME 2,568,758 2,835,469 2,583,313 2,503,845 2,736,835
Properties under for long-term FIERBREZ
investment development BREBYE 659,486 338,586 234,411 227,765 135,157
Intangible assets BREE 4,072 (155,846) 102,142 106,349 111,819
Investments in associates REERRIZRE 770 36 80 - 39,206
Investment in a jointly R — £ RE
controlled entity BEBZEE 107,297 256,761 867,632 1,033,245 676,460
Available-for-sale financial asset EHEFEEE - - - 291,834 463,158
Deposit paid Bffke = = - 554,579 -
Deferred tax assets EERBEE 55,387 47,272 51,962 42,357 107,878
Other non-current asset HMIEREHEE - - - 919,584 -
4,570,777 4,792,882 5,204,952 7,447,385 6,973,529
Current assets mEBEE
Land costs TR A 2,180,028 3,775,910 5,131,465 7,135,951 16,151,494
Prepayments for acquisition g B8 + 3 78 1 2008
of land - - - 634,080 12,027,112
Properties under development AHHEZEEF
for sale wE 2,209,479 2,775,320 4,320,803 4,146,742 5,183,349
Completed properties for sale AEEEZEERDE 1,011,727 1,177,729 1,071,604 1,953,586 2,180,924
Accounts receivable e 43,415 80,789 90,324 111,142 138,743
Other receivables H A pE U h0E - - - 9,000 682,815
Prepayments, deposits and BAHE ek
other current assets HimeEE 450,150 758,574 1,171,863 1,678,347 2,293,656
Due from an associate JE U & A R FUB = - - - 22,344
Due from related companies JE U5 B8 B 1 B A 3,138 2,170 2,285 18,531 17,390
Pledged/charged bank deposits BEA/ HRBIIER 309,732 258,650 237,068 157,317 277,031
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBREZEEY 350,247 477,959 2,353,280 2,412,479 1,985,055
6,557,916 9,307,101 14,378,692 18,257,175 40,959,913
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Summary of Financial Information

M E R &

Consolidated Balance Sheets (continued) GeEEAER®
2003 2004 2005 2006
—2E=F Z—TTWFE Z—FTTHFE —TITAF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTHT THBT THET
(Restated) (Restated)
(275) (271)
LIABILITIES =R
Current liabilities mEAE
Accounts payable FE < BE X 1,329,840 662,854 800,524 563,378 953,128
Land cost payable FEAF 1 AR AR 108,819 828,128 1,000,039 1,070,928 605,289
Borrowings BTy 1,384,093 1,957,752 1,837,342 1,345,042 2,898,895
Deferred revenue BT W e 1,850,377 3,408,938 2,837,090 4,167,431 4,981,769
Accruals and other JE 5T ZUE K E iy JE A+
payable Er:) 411,026 451,049 866,831 989,702 1,763,446
Due to an associate e — R B & 1 Rl 3B 2,226 1,192 5,146 5,343 5,624
Due to directors ENESHIE 1,922 5,667 13,891 - -
Due to related companies EfE DR KIE 215,732 479,818 266,362 103,398 137,836
Due to a jointly controlled FE £+ — R £ R
entity RN 185,347 391,006 148,117 1,037,287 231,253
Due to a holding company e —RERARRE = = 18,997 = -
Current tax liabilities TEHHBEAR 188,682 353,051 584,191 416,109 369,836
5,678,064 8,539,455 8,378,530 9,698,618 11,947,076
Net current assets MBEEFE 879,852 767,646 6,000,162 8,558,557 29,012,837
Total assets less current liabilites — #EEREHEE 5,450,629 5,560,528 11,205,114 16,005,942 35,986,366
I I I I I
Non-current liabilities E =L
Land cost payable FEAF 1 4 AR AR 11,847 190,566 522 - 175,959
Borrowings By 1,662,224 1,547,805 4,826,851 6,076,963 9,718,998
Deferred revenue BT Wz 53,934 49,640 - - -
Deferred tax liabilities BEMBARG 546,286 374,743 612,466 1,119,814 6,013,099
Due to a director EN—2ES5HE 10,000 10,000 - - -
Due to a holding company P — B4R 2 R 5B 32,000 59,000 = = -
Other non-current liability HikErRBaE = - - 581,250 -
2,316,291 2,231,754 5,439,839 7,778,027 15,908,056
Net assets EEFE 3,134,338 3,328,774 5,765,275 8,227,915 20,078,310
I I I I I
EQUITY B
Capital and reserves attributable RAFBERE A
to the Company’s equity holders {5 ik J (4 1
Share capital (&N 100,200 100,300 121,360 128,510 147,237
Reserves B 2544804 3073427 5342348 7,709,155 17,717,146
2,645,004 3,173,727 5,463,708 7,837,665 17,864,383
Minority interests LHRERER 489,334 155,047 301,567 390,250 2,213,927
Total equity e k] 3,134,338 3,328,774 5,765,275 8,227,915 20,078,310
I I I I I
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M E R &

Consolidated Income Statement FEEHER
2003 2004 2005 2006
T —TINFE  —TTRFE —TTRF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHL FHEL FHET FHET
(Restated) (Restated)
(25) (E3)
Revenues U 2§ 2,511,630 3,973,184 6,133,894 6,920,294 11,130,643
Cost of sales HERAE (1,892,421) (2,895,770) (4,189,275) (4,509,340) (6,669,998)
Gross profit E ] 619,209 1,077,414 1,944,619 2,410,954 4,460,645
Other gains H bl zs - 113,222 261,994 505,531 1,483,447
Selling and marketing costs HERTGHEER (230,080) (180,699) (211,880) (228,618) (281,082)
General and administrative —RRITHER
expenses (139,852) (241,898) (331,075) (296,600) (500,402)
Operating profit 1R 249,277 768,039 1,663,658 2,391,267 5,162,608
Finance income BT N 7,211 4,484 17,382 26,814 50,394
Finance costs B 78 AR (4,280) (13,375) (59,966) (84,808) (136,916)
Share of profit less loss of DEEE R A
associates e 1R (1,118) (734) 44 (80) (599)
Share of profit of and Sl —EEAREHEE
other gains relating to M R H A Y g
jointly controlled entities 51,671 57,732 191,509 128,343 101,964
Profit before taxation R 5 A& A 302,761 816,146 1,812,627 2,461,536 5,177,451
Taxation A (101,192) (298,338) (611,446) (837,358) (1,629,245)
Profit for the year FEREA 201,569 517,808 1,201,181 1,624,178 3,548,206
I I I I I
Attributable to: 1S
Equity holders of the Company KATREZREA 168,905 432,785 1,217,323 1,553,752 3,517,312
Minority interests DR RER 32,664 85,023 (16,142) 70,426 30,894
201,569 517,808 1,201,181 1,624,178 3,548,206
Dividends @A 50,100 90,270 412,494 480,980 616,922
I I I I I
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Principal Office

Suites 3305-3309

33rd Floor, Jardine House
1 Connaught Place
Central

Hong Kong

Guangzhou Representative Office
16th Floor, South Tower

Zhujiang Investment Building

421 Zhujiang East Road

Zhujiang New City

Guangzhou

Beijing Representative Office
Zhujiang Development Centre
23 Dawang Road West
Chaoyang District

Beijing

Shanghai Representative Office

18th Floor, Guangdong Development Bank Building

555 Xujiahui Road
Shanghai

Tianjin Representative Office
No. 14 Dongchengnan Road
Baodi District

Tianjin
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